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THE ESSENCE OF

TOGETHERNESS

In the modern times, a lot of emphasis is laid on variety,

with people demanding instant grati�cation and wearing their diversity ads a badge.

But in a land like India, constituent of many diverse culture, the sense of unity is second to existence. 

Like a well-automated machine made up of various parts, but works only in unison,

we stress on the importance of unity for a greater cause. One may be �lled with �aws,

yet it’s through unifying with our compatriots where we can maximize our positives for the common 

goal of success.  At SRS we believe in “Essence of Togetherness”



“

SRS Limited is the �agship company of SRS Group. Among the fastest growing companies in 

India. SRS Limited is a diversifed company covering sectors like Gold & Jewellery, Cinemas, 

Retail and Food & Beverages among others.

SRS Group companies currently operate over 12 business verticals with

133 touch points in 11 states and 4 countries.

The people behind most landmark events in the world,

whether in the political space or the economic space are 

neither individuals nor large groups. Rather, teams of a 

few people dedicated to their cause and committed 

to seeing it through, and working by trusting and 

helping one another, without trying to attain 

individual glory, that has always made a 

di�erence.

SRS LIMITED
IN BRIEF
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“
”

Coming together is a begining.
Keeping together is progress.
Working together is success.

- Henry Ford
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BRANDS 
AT A GLANCE
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Dear Shareholders,

As eminent members of SRS, you would know that our energy 
comes from an endless desire to impress our customers. We work 
zealously to inspire customers, with a long term vision to deliver 
outstanding performances. As a fact, it is our customer-centric way 
which is the defining element of our culture.

Our company has been built on a strong underlying business 
approach, guided by our values and vision that have allowed us to 
develop a strong customer base, and helped us establish SRS as a 
leading brand. Steered by our strong sense of commitment, we 
continue to implement our strategies, backed by an inspiring team 
that delivers strong performances – despite a highly volatile and 
challenging business environment. 

2015-16 was a challenging year for SRS; we tried to optimize the 
resources but were not able to and thus, due to strike in the last 
month of FY 2015-16, could not serve the Bank interest and got 
D-Rating.

The Indian economy has traversed during the course which it has 
stepped up to its growth trajectory over successive decades. 
Notwithstanding the slowdown in the economy, Our Company is 
not an exception and got badly affected by the economy 
slowdown.

Considering all our segments: Jewellery, Cinema, Retail and Food & 
Beverages, we enjoy a robust foundation that has supported 
growth across almost all our lines of businesses. We have 
demonstrated our capabilities across products, customer segments 
and markets, and intend to continue to leverage this solid platform 
to achieve our aspirations and deliver value to our stakeholders and 
customers. 

With each passing year, our SRS Parivar grows bigger. However, in 
F.Y. 15-16, the PAT stood at Rs.15.98 Crore, declined by 58.85%, as 
compared to last year’s 38.81 Crore.  EPS reduced from 1.39 to 0.57.

However, despite being low in figures, if we look closely at our 
individual capacities, we have achieved several milestones in each 
business sector. With the cinema exhibition business segment we 
had added 2 multiplexes one in Muktsar, Punjab and another in  
Kashipur, Uttrakhand. Currently, we are prominently present in 
major regions including Haryana, Uttar Pradesh, Punjab, Himachal 
Pradesh, Rajasthan, Uttrakhand, Bihar and new addition in 
Jharkhand. For cinema segment 2015-16 was our year, where we 
had produced internationally competitive theatres, established SRS 
as a leading cinema exhibitor in the country. We are now present 
across 22 properties, 17 cities and 8 states with 62 screens. Our 
customer centric approach has helped us achieve our goals and 
targets efficiently, and we have positioned ourselves as popular 
choice among movie lovers. 

We grew all our businesses, 
increased and advanced key 
strategic initiatives, and proactively 
worked to optimize resources to 
ensure a positive growth, despite all 
odds. This enabled us to improve our 
competitiveness and create value for 
shareholders. We achieved strong 
�nancial performance, and laid a 
strong foundation for our future.  

“

”

MESSAGE FROM  

THE CHAIRMAN
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Contributing to around 90% of company revenues, our gold and 
jewellery division faced a few challenges this year. Following the 
jewellers strike that initiated against 1% levy in excise duty in 
Budget of Financial Year 2016-17, which continued from 2nd March, 
2016 to 27th  April, 2016, has deeply impacted the jewellery 
business, resulting in severe loss of revenues, cash crunch and 
liquidity issues. 

Due to strike in the last quarter, the revenues of the company have 
decreased to the tune of 52% during the last quarter ended 31st 

March, 2016 as compared to the quarter ended December, 2015 
and the company suffered huge losses during the last quarter in 
comparison to profits earned in other three quarters. 

The Company was unable to serve the interest for the quarter 
ended 31st March, 2016 and thus our account slipped to NPA 
(Non-Performing Assets) Category. Consequently, credit rating 
agencies revised the rating to “D” and thus our share price 
plummeted to a low. As the Company was not able to make timely 
payments to its Depositors on time, we have filed a petition before 
National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) for extension of time for 
repayments. 

On a positive note, our keen understanding of the market, 
combined with strategical planning, we have taken measures to 
revive our growth and streamline all processes to overcome all 
shortcomings. Through the following measures, we strive to initiate 
the revival of our organization:

•         Closure of non-profitable outlets of jewellery

•         Closure of loss making Food and Beverages units

•         Reduction in salaries of KMP’s

•         Reduction in day to day expenses

•         Improved turnover through the businesses of the company

•         Improved business conditions in the market

•         Recovery from Debtors

At the retail forefront, we delivered another year of significant 
growth. We have introduced 7 new stores, establishing a multi-level 
presence with stores in significant locations such as Lucknow, Delhi 
NCR, Kurukshetra and more. With a continued focus on the middle 
and upper middle consumer segment, we have established a 
multi-city presence in a short span of time. Today, we have a total 
count of 28 stores. 

To build a stronger foundation for the future we also started some 
strategically critical initiatives that I believe, if continued, have the 
potential to change the DNA of the organization for the better in 
the medium to long term timeframe. And I have no doubt that, as 
the spirit of excellence penetrates to all parts of the company, it will 
lift the productivity and the pride of our employees. We all want to 
be part of an organization that needs and expects our very best.

We are a morally bound community, striving to give back to the 
society what it has given us in immeasurable terms. As a 
conscientious corporate organization, we believe in creating 
goodness around us. Celebrating 25 years of Corporate presence of 
SRS Group, a unique CSR initiative has been undertaken, and we 
donated an automatic sewerage cleaning machine to Faridabad 
Municipal Corporation. This remarkable initiative was highly 
appreciated and has set a benchmark for other business groups as 

well. Additionally, SRS Social Welfare Association organized a 
Self-defense course for over 150 girls in Faridabad, empowering 
women to be more independent in life.  We also organized a blood 
donation camp in Faridabad, which witnessed many volunteers 
who came forward and contributed towards the community. 
Through this drive, we successfully managed to raise awareness on 
the importance of donating blood and saving lives. We have 
donated winter uniforms and schoolbooks to 610 students of 
Government Senior Secondary School of Ferozepur Kalan village in 
Faridabad.  These all  initiatives  were undertanken during the 1st 
three quarters.

Every organization experiences ebbs and tides. The growth of SRS 
has been a collective effort and we work with a positive attitude to 
recover its growth journey. I would like to thank our associates, 
partners and vendors for their unwavering support and trust in SRS. 
On this podium, it is quite essential to owe our gratitude to our 
esteemed clients for the trust and acceptance and of course to our 
employees who have been the vertebral column of the leading 
periphery performance. As we step into a new phase of vitality and 
revival, we continue to rely on this support and confidence. 

The seed planted nearly thirty years ago has germinated and 
grown into such a huge tree of life, bearing good fruit enjoyed by 
both employees and clients alike. There are times when institutions 
go through challenges. Despite this, we have forged ahead to be 
where we are now to become an instrument in transforming the 
lives of many. We have always promoted the thought “Sab Rahen 
Sath” as we strongly believe that sustainable success comes from 
staying together as a team and realizing extraordinary victories. 

Currently, I can say that SRS touches the lives of at least a 20 million 
people directly and indirectly. We provide services to about 1500 
clients and offer employment to over 2000 people, not forgetting 
their families whose lives are also touched by the employment we 
offer. We are, indeed transforming lives and want the support of all 
the stakeholders……….

Regards,

Dr. Anil JIndal
Chairman
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 The Global and Indian Economy (2015-16)
An overview

The global economy has been shaken by a dramatic deterioration 
in oil prices, an unprecedented hike in the value of the dollar etc., 
China’s economy is taking back step with a slowdown, there is 
ambiguity in Europe, and US monetary policy is undergoing a 
change. Moreover, there has been a sharp deviation between 
monetary policy in the United States and policy in other major 
economies, contributing to exchange rate volatility.  The US 
economy appears to be on a path to progress, bolstered by 
domestic demand but offset by external demand weakening. 
Europe is finally getting a grip on progress, but faces ongoing 
indecision about financial stability stemming from troubles in 
Greece. China is slowing, but the government is becoming more 
proactive in attempting to even-out growth. Japan is on the path to 
recovery, but doubts remain about non-monetary policies. While 
India is optimizing the investor wave.

The Global Economy
Developments have conflicting implications for the growth 
forecasts. On a positive note,  the decline in oil prices influenced by 
supply factors—which are expected to reverse only with time — 
will boost global growth over the next two years or so by elevating 
purchasing power and private demand in oil importers. The impact 
is predicted to be stronger in advanced economy’s oil importers, 
where the pass-through to end-user prices is expected to be higher 
than in emerging market and developing oil importers. 

Three main factors explain the downshift:
Lower growth in China and its implications for emerging Asia: 
Investment growth in China has declined and leading 
indicators point to a further slowdown. The authorities are 
now expected to put greater emphasis on reducing liabilities 
from recent rapid credit and investment growth. Slower 

growth in China will also have important regional effects, 
which partially explains the downward adjustments to 
growth in much of emerging Asia. In India, the growth forecast 
is broadly unchanged, however, as weaker external demand is 
offset by the boost to trade from lower oil prices and a pickup 
in industrial investment.

A much weaker outlook in Russia: The projection reflects the 
economic impact of sharply lower oil prices and increased 
geopolitical tensions, both through direct and confidence 
effects. Russia’s sharp slowdown and rubble depreciation have 
also severely weakened the outlook for other economies in 
the Commonwealth of Independent States (CIS) group.

Downward revisions to potential growth in commodity 
exporters: This is the impact of oil and other commodity prices 
lowering on the terms of trade and incomes is now projected 
to take a heavier toll on medium-term growth.  

The Indian Economy
India has emerged to be the fastest growing major economy in the 
world as per the Central Statistics Organisation (CSO) and 
International Monetary Fund (IMF). According to the Economic 
Survey 2015-16, the Indian economy will surge on to more than 7 
per cent in 2016-17.

The improvement in India’s economic fundamentals has 
accelerated in the year 2015 with the unified impact of strong 
government reforms, RBI's inflation focus supported by 
accommodating global commodity prices.

Market size
According to IMF World Economic Outlook Update (January 2016), 
Indian economy is expected to grow at 7-7.75 per cent during FY 
2016-17, despite the fluctuations in the global market. The 
Economic Survey 2015-16 had estimated that the Indian economy 
will be growing by more than seven per cent for the third 

MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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successive year 2016-17 and can start growing at eight per cent or 
more in next two years.

Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) in India have increased by 29 per 
cent during October 2014-December 2015 period post the launch 
of Make in India campaign, compared to the 15-month period 
before the launch.

The Nikkei/Markit Manufacturing Purchasing Managers’ Index 
(PMI) for February 2016 was reported at 51.1, indicating expansion 
in Indian manufacturing activity for a second month in a row, as 
both domestic and foreign demand increased due to lower prices.

According to a Goldman Sachs report released in September 2015, 
India could grow at a potential 8 per cent on average during fiscal 
2016 to 2020 powered by greater access to banking, technology 
adoption, urbanization and other structural reforms.

Recent Developments
With the improvement in the economic scenario, there have been 
various investments leading to increased M&A activity. Some of 
them are as follows:

India has arisen as one of the sturdiest performers with respect to 
deals across the world in terms of mergers and acquisitions (M&A). 
In the M&A space, Telecom was the leading sector, amounting to 40 
per cent of the total transaction value. Also, Private equity (PE) 
investments increased from 86 per cent to 94.38 billion.

Total private equity (PE) investments in India for 2015 reached a 
record high of 1287 billion through 159 deals, according to the PwC 
Money Tree India report.

According to The World Bank, India's per capita income is expected 
to cross Rs.100,000 in FY 2017 from Rs. 93,231 in FY 2016.

Government Initiatives

Mr. Narendra Modi, Prime Minister of India, has launched the Make 
in India initiative with an earnest effort to boost the 
self-sustenance sector of Indian economy. This initiative is expected 
to accelerate the purchasing power of an average Indian consumer, 

which would further boost demand, and hence spur development. 
Besides, the Government has also come up with Digital India 
initiative, which focuses on three core components: creation of 
digital infrastructure, delivering services digitally and to increase 
the digital literacy.

Currently, the manufacturing sector in India contributes over 15 per 

cent of the GDP. The Government of India, under the Make in India 

initiative, is trying to give a lift to the contribution made by the 

manufacturing sector and aims to take it up to 25 per cent of the 

GDP. Following the government’s initiatives several plans for 

investment have been undertaken:

• The Union Cabinet has approved several short terms (within 

one year) and medium term measures (within two years) to be 

executed by government ministries, departments and 

organizations for promotion of payments through cards and 

digital means, and to reduce dependence on cash transactions.

• Government of India has positioned sustainability as the core 

of India’s development. To achieve this, the government aims 

to promote education, skill development, digital connectivity 

and entrepreneurship in a sustainable method.

• The government will continue to bring in new reforms for 

transforming economy without resorting to underestimate its 

exchange rate to boost trade.

• Government of India plans to create a National Investment 

Grid to chart business opportunities across the country which 

will make it comprehensive for investors, especially domestic 

investors, to access and explore investment opportunities.

• Prime Minister, Mr Narendra Modi, launched the Start-up India 

initiative and unveiled the Start-up Action Plan which includes 

creation of a dedicated Start-up fund worth Rs 10,000 crore 

apart from other provisions like no tax on profits for first three 

years and relaxed labour laws.
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

GOLD & JEWELLERY 

Global Overview

Historically, Thailand has been a gemstones sourcing country. 
Although today most of the raw materials are imported, the 
country continues to maintain its reputation as a major colored 
gemstone manufacturing center and sourcing hub. Thailand 
maintains its position as the top supplier of coloured gemstone to 
the United States, Hong Kong, Italy, Germany and Japan.  

However, the Thai coloured gemstone industry is still facing many 
challenges due to the prolonged global economic slowdown, 
which will affect the US economic recovery and impede China's 
growth.

Rich natural resources in Indonesia, Brunei and Malaysia will 
continue to support their extensive progress in economy.  Gold 
prices driven by the demand of the consumer markets-mainly from 
China, India, Indonesia and Malaysia- are predicted to rise to 1.65 lac

per ounce in 2015.  Coloured gemstones will follow the trend even 
more than diamonds. The value is pursued by luxury brands as well 
as the public-listed companies such as Gemsfield, True north Gems 
with the aggressive "Mine to Market" marketing strategy. It will 
benefit the gem and jewellery industry in term of value and 
recognition of colour stones.   

Singapore competes with Hong Kong for the high-end gemstone 
and jewellery market. Most luxury brands move their exhibitions to 
Singapore, also a place for high-stake auctions. 

Indian Overview
The Gems and Jewellery sector plays a noteworthy role in the 
Indian economy, contributing to around 6-7 per cent of the 
country’s GDP. One of the fastest growing sectors, it is export 
oriented and labour intensive.

2003 2005 2007 2009

Branded Unbranded

2011 20201

Branded vs Unbranded Jewellery, %

10% 13%
19%

90% 87% 81%

19%

81%

20%

80% 60%-
70%

30%-
40%

1Estimated  | Source: Expert interviews; Mckinsey analysis
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Based on its probability for growth and value addition, the 

Government of India has declared the Gems and Jewellery sector as 

a focus area for export promotion. 

India is considered to be the pivot of the global jewellery market 

because of its low costs and accessibility to high-skilled labour. 

India is the world’s largest cutting and polishing centre for 

diamonds, with the cutting and polishing industry being well 

backed up by government policies alongside exporting 95 per cent 

of the world’s diamonds. The industry has generated 2547.6 billion 

of revenue from exports in 2015-16, making it the second largest 

exporter after petrochemicals.

India's Gems and Jewellery sector has been providing to the 

country's foreign exchange earnings (FEEs) and is viewed as a 

thrust area for export promotion. The Indian government currently 

allows 100 per cent Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) in the sector 

through the automatic route.

Market size

The gems and jewellery market in India hosts more than 500,000 

players.

UAE, US, Russia, Singapore, Hong Kong, Latin America and China are 

the biggest importers of Indian jewellery.

The overall gross exports of Gems & Jewellery in April 2016 

positioned itself at 213.18 billion, whereas exports of cut and 

polished diamonds stood at 117.48 billion. Exports of gold coins 

and medallions had a holding at 19976.22 million and silver 

jewellery export was placed at 19779.64 million in April 2016. The 

overall gross imports of Gems & Jewellery in April 2016 stood at 

191.4 billion.

According to a report by Research and Markets, the jewellery 

market in India is expected to grow at a Compound Annual Growth 

Rate (CAGR) of 15.95 per cent over the period 2014-2019.

The cumulative Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) inflows in diamond 

and gold ornaments in the period April 2000-December 2015 were 

49590.42 million, according to Department of Industrial Policy and 

Promotion (DIPP).

During April-December 2015, India imported 1143.78 billion worth 

of raw material for gems and jewellery. With 8 per cent share in 

polished diamonds, India has become the world's third largest 

diamond consumer.

Investments/Developments
The Gems and Jewellery sector is evolving in accordance to 
consumer preference, a result adoption of western lifestyle. 
Consumers are demanding new designs and varieties in jewellery, 
and branded jewellers are adapting to changing demands better 
than the local unorganised players. Moreover, increase in per capita 
income has led to an increase in sales of jewellery, being a status 
symbol in India.

 KSS Limited, a digital and entertainment major, has ventured 
into the jewellery retailing business through franchise model 
and is looking to open 500 stores under brand 'Bjewelz' which 
is owned by Birla Jewels Limited, a solely owned subsidiary of 
KSS Limited.

 Kerala-based Kalyan Jewellers is investing Rs 900 crore over 
the next three years to have a foothold in the international 
markets such as Sri Lanka, Singapore and Malaysia. Also, the 
Indian faction of US private equity (PE) firm Warburg Pincus 
picked up a minority stake in Kerala-based Kalyan Jewellers 
for Rs 1,200 crore. The jeweller intends to use the proceeds for 
funding its retail and manufacturing expansion plans.

 Melorra, a Bengaluru-based online jewellery start-up, has 
received 330 million funding from venture capital firm 
Lightbox Ventures, for expansion and talent acquisition.

 Major mining companies such as Rio Tinto, De Beers and 
Alrosa have decided to participate in the Indian Diamond 
Trading Centre (IDTC) which has been set up to eradicate the 
concept of middlemen in diamond trade and allow Indian 
manufacturers to deal directly with miners.

 Global luxury brand Montblanc International has entered into 
a joint venture with India’s largest watch maker Titan Co Ltd to 
start retail expansions in India by opening five Montblanc 
boutiques in Mumbai, Delhi, Hyderabad and Pune.

 Jewellery major Joyalukkas invests Rs 1,500 crore on setting 
up 20 stores in India and 10 overseas. The new stores, coming 
up almost in a year’s time, will add to the company's existing 
95 outlets.

 London-based Gemfields, a multi-national firm specialising in 
colour gemstones mining and marketing, plans to acquire 
colour gemstone mines in Odisha and Jharkhand, and 
participate in the exploration of the Kashmir sapphire mines 
in Jammu & Kashmir.

Indian exports will now receive concessional duty treatment in the 
US as it has renewed the Generalised System of Preferences 
retrospectively from August 1, 2013 – December 31, 2017.

Web 2014 Jewellery Exhibit 2 of 2
The channels that are gaining share in jewellery are also winning in apparel.

Source: McKinsey analysis based on data from Euromonitor and Mintel

Jewellery trends,
2013-20

Apparel trends,
1990-2013

Monobrand
Stores

Multibrand
Boutiques

Department
Stores

Online
shops Other
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Since inauguration in the year 2008, SRS Jewells has been 

successfully trading and exporting elegant Real Diamond fashion 

jewellery as well as Gold Jewellery (including antique designs) to 

complement the women community of today. Our range comprises 

of pieces such as studded earrings,  bracelets, bangles, designer sets 

etc., combining the essence of traditional and contemporary 

jewellery. Through our jewellery, we promise to enhance the beauty 

and style of women of all ages.

2015 was a year of mixed reviews for SRS Jewells, as we started on 

a rocky beginning. The situation in the market was precarious, with 

an All-India Jewellers strike going on to protest decision of Central 

Govt. for imposition of 1% excise duty, operations in the jewellery 

industry came to a standstill from 2nd March, 2016 which continued 

unabated till 27th  April, 2016. This affected the organized jewellery 

sectors with big giants such as SRS, Tanishq, Nakshatra  and so on, 

facing financial crisis.  We were afraid that imposition of excise duty 

may shift the customer’s preference of buying jewellery from 

un-organized sector, thereby adversely impacting the revenue 

generation of the Company, further affecting its cash inflows. SRS 

had taken some difficult measures to damage control of the 

situation by closing down of Noida and Rajouri Garden stores, 

downsizing remuneration of all the Key Managerial Personnel, 

cutting down the number of employees for optimum utilization of 

resources, controlling other cost factors, renegotiating rentals with 

lessors and so on .

Yet there were positives to look forward, with us receiving awards 

for season of love and popular brand in jewellery. Scoring 84.6% 

marks, a remarkable number in the world of diamond, from Forever 

Mark Diamond for its quality and hospitality. Also the shift of 

SRS JEWELLS
AT A GLANCE

Types

18

Design

1000+

“
”

Jewellery has the power
to be this one little thing

that can make you feel
unique.
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SRS Jewlls Retail Showrooms

1 Ghaziabad SRS Jewells , Plot No 57, Main Market , Ambedkar Road, Ghaziabad.  

2 Faridabad SRS Jewells , SCF Plot No. A -6 , Nehru Ground , NIT Faridabad. 

3 Faridabad SRS Jewells , SRS Mall, Sec -12,  Ground floor, Faridabad. 

4 Delhi SRS Jewells, 2129-2130, Gurdwara Road, Opp Post office, Karol Bagh, New Delhi

5 Ghaziabad SRS Jewells, G-9-10,  F -8, Krishna apra shopping plaza, Near Shipra Mall,  Indirapuram, GHZ (U.P)

6 Palwal SRS Jewells , NH-2, Near SRS Value Bazaar, Agra Chowk,Main Mathura Road, Palwal

S.No. Unit Name Address

SRS Jewells Wholesale O�ices

1 Mumbai Shop No. 201, 2nd Floor, Jewel World, Cotton Exchange, Building,175,kalba Devi Road,
   Zaveri Bazaar, Mumbai-400002.

2 Delhi 1165, 2nd Floor, Kucha Mahajani, Chandni Chowk, Delhi.

3 Delhi S-4, 2nd Floor, Building No. 2609, Corner Building, Bank Street, Karol Bagh, New Delhi

4 Ahmedabad Shop No. GF-10, Supper Mall, Near Lal Bungalow, CG Road, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad

S.No. Unit Name Address

preference towards lightweight jewellery, targeting youth, will 

enable SRS to increase its revenues. .

The key focus of any SRS faction is deliverance of optimum value at 

a levelled price and SRS Jewells hadn’t deviated from the path.  

Our capitalization of the festive season was noteworthy with 

“Sharad Navratra” offer that continued from 13th Oct till 13th Nov 15. 

Leading to an increase in sale from 16% to 17%. It is a common fact 

that Dhanteras hold a significant value in business and consumer 

scenario, with purchase of precious metals being auspicious that 

day. We have successfully tapped into this through offering 0% 

making charges on Gold Coins and hence achieving highest sale of 

coins till date. Our hospitality has reached an unmatched quality 

with customer indulging in repeated visits with an increase in 

referrals.

With this high note, SRS intends to surge through 2016 with a new 

zeal and fresh profits to capitulate into its business zenith.
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CINEMAS
INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The boom in multiplex industry highlights the need for composite 
entertainment outlets, and a lifestyle that offers viewers with a 
choice of a 3 or 5-star environment. In India, the emergence  of 
multiplex cinemas began in the mid-90s and now the growing 
fashion has changed the flow of the Indian Film Industry. 

Global Economic View of Cinema/Multiplex 
Global box office for all films reached 459.6 billion in 2015, 
experiencing a 5% increase over 2014’s total, with U.S./Canada 
reaching 133.2 billion and international box office recorded 326.4 
billion. The international growth was primarily driven by Asia 
Pacific region with a 13% increase from 2014. China’s box office 
increased by 49% to 81.6 billion, accounting for nearly 50% of the 
Asia Pacific box office. International box office in U.S. dollars is up 
21% over five years ago, and global box office is up 18% in the same 
time period.

The number of Cinema screens, too, increased by 8% worldwide in 
2015 to over 152,000, owing to the continued double digit growth 
in the Asia Pacific region (+19%). 93% of the world’s cinema 
screens are now digital. Owing the rapid digitalization, there has 

been a rapid increase in the number of 3D cinema screens, 
especially between 2006 and 2015. According to IHS Screen Digest, 
there were 258 3D movie screens worldwide in 2006 and 74,562 in 
2015. 

When it comes to digital technology, Asia Pacific region is in the 
lead with the best equipped in 3D cinema technology, hosting 
more than 35 thousand of such screens.

Multiplex Industry in the Indian Economy
The Indian Cinema industry is the largest in the world  in terms of 
total number of films produced and tickets sold and is expected to 
remain so till 2020 , according to PWC Report, . However, with the 
expanding markets in China, the Asian country is a strong 
contender, and is expected to be close to overtaking India by 2020.

According to Pricewaterhouse Coopers (PwC)’s Global 
Entertainment and Media Outlook 2016-20, the Indian Media and 
Entertainment sector grew 12% to reach Rs.1.68 trillion in 2015. 
This sector is expected to grow at a Compound Annual Growth Rate 

(CAGR) of 13.9 per cent year-on-year to reach Rs. 196,400 crore by 

2019.  

SCREEN PRESENCE

Films Released  707 342 1778
Ticket Sold (Mn Units) 1,268 830 1,930
Total Screens (Units) 40,158 24,317 10,167
Screen Density (Per Mn People) 125 17 8
Average Ticket Price($) 8.17 5.5 2
Box Office Gross ($ Bn) 10.4 4.8 1.7
Other Revenues ($ Bn) 26 0.3 0.4
Total Film Revenues ($bn) 36.4 5.1 2.1

US China India
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“
”

Cinema is changing
every week, and multiplex
audiences are demanding

every week.

This is a new for India's media and entertainment industry as it  

marks a first-time entry into the league of top five in the world in 

terms of attracting investment. India ranks fourth, behind United 

States, United Kingdom and China, and ahead of Germany's M&E 

sector. Despite the negative outlook for many emerging markets in 

the present economy, investor sentiment towards India is seeing a 

significant recovery, crediting the government's pro-business 

stance and an increasingly promising economic outlook that foster 

a more attractive investment landscape for inbound investment. It 

is estimated that the Indian M&E sector which is over 240 billion, 

growing at approx. 15% annually, is expected to double in five 

years. 

While there is a decreasing shelf life of movies, the number of 

consumers have increased that too, against higher average ticket 

prices. This means there is a growing appetite for the cinema-going 

population. The boom in the multiplex industry is seeing the 

shrinking of the traditional single screen cinema.  However, the 

Indian multiplex industry is still a small part of the huge cinema 

industry. Out of more than 16000 cinema screens, only 2100 are 

multiplex screens. This is in contrast to the statistics of a similar 

developing economy like China, which has more than 20000 

multiplex screens. A stark testimony to the under-penetration of 

screens in India is that there are only two multiplex screens per 

million citizens in the country.

The undeniable fact is that there is enormous potential for 

multiplexes in the country. In the race to expand, multiplexes are 

preferring to grow organically, where most of the expansion for the 

larger players in the industry has taken place through acquisitions 

over the last three years.

The Trend and Growth Opportunities in Tier 2/Tier 3 Cities
Having a strong consolidation at the Pan-India level, some major 

players have appeared in the multiplex business. Due to the 

saturation of box office collection in Tier 1 markets such as Mumbai 

and Delhi NCR, multiplex chains are rushing to smaller towns, 

progressing forward for the next phase of growth. The industry 

trend suggests organic growth to occur in Tier 2 and Tier 3 cities 

which still have an appetite for cinema consumption backed by the 

rising purchasing power of an expanding middle class population. 

Every major player in the industry has new screen projects lined up 

in the under-penetrated markets, with future consolidation plans 

that extend through acquisitions of regional players. 

The overall Indian film industry is expected to grow at a CAGR of 

11.9% to reach a value of INR 220 billion by 2018. Out of this, about 

INR 35 billion is commanded by the Multiplex industry.  The shift in 

focus to Tier 2 and Tier 3 cities results in cheaper real estate 

available for industry players. And mostly, the entertainment tax 

incidence falls upon the final consumer implying that it has little 

effect on the multiplex.

Digitalization
The digitalization in this sector has played a vital role in the 

expansion of its reach to smaller cities by simultaneous releases, 

and has led to increase in the demand for regional and Hollywood 

movies. This is also influenced by the socio-economic factors in the 

cities.  In cities like Amritsar, Bollywood content is preferred, while in 

Hyderabad, Telugu and other regional content is preferred with 

Hollywood. Thus in many areas, more regional movies are being 

screened, and English movies dubbed in regional languages have 

now become a norm.

Threat
In a country where one-fifth of the 1.3 billion populations are 

online, the rapid availability of high-speed Internet connectivity 

has the potential of posing as a threat to the multiplex industry. 

The past decade has seen movie theatres struggling to bring viewer 

back to the silver screens, the reason mainly was outdated content 

and increasing prices of tickets, we still have yet to see how the 

emergence of piracy and online streaming services like Netflix, are 

to play out in ticket sales. 

The future of Mutliplex in India
In the coming years, the industry will benefit from rising disposable 

income, which will encourage consumers to spend more on 

entertainment. But in terms of multiplexes, India remains 

underserved. Issues such as a high tax structure, where multiplexes 

pay approximately 45% of revenue in tax, and exorbitant real 

estate prices will slow down growth in this area. 

In order to survive the costs and keep up with the multiplexes, 

many single screens will convert to multiplexes, increasing the size 

and rate of expansion of the industry. This will lead to a more 

competitive industry space, resulting in newer revenue models and 

cost-minimization techniques that will allow for 50-80 seater 

mini-plexes. With national players now focusing on regional 

dominance, regional movies will get greater exposure at 

multiplexes. Hollywood movies are also gaining greater traction as 

more youth start going to movies. On the whole, the industry may 

outperform expectations. 

While traditional media struggle to find relevance in today’s time, 

the digital sector is leading the growth trajectory and 

consequently bringing in continuous disruptions. The rate at which 

the Indian digital/broadband ecosystem matures will depict how 

the Indian players adapt and drive business models in what would 

be a rapidly changing environment for consumption of 

data/content fashioned largely by India’s under 35 populations

Organic growth of multiplexes is also happening, albeit on a much 

quieter note. The scope for new screens is immense and there is a 

lot of competition for space in malls.
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Industry Value x Volume
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SRS CINEMAS
AT A GLANCE

Ranking in
India

5th

Total Number
of Screens

62

Total Number
of Seats 

16099

Number of
Cities

17

Number of
States

8

Admits

72
Lacs

Gross
Sale

150 Cr

Revenue
Per Seat 

98 K

SRS Cinemas is the brand name under which the company operates 
a chain of premium multiplexes across several cities that include 
Faridabad, Gurgaon, Ghaziabad, Bijnor, Gorakhpur, Patiala, 
Ludhiana, Shimla, Lucknow, Bhiwadi, Agra, Hajipur, Saharanpur,  
Muktsar, Ranchi, Bareilly and Kashipur. 

We have always believed in providing entertainment with 
world-class experience. This can be reflected through 22 properties 
at strategic locations having 62 screens and 16099 seats. One is sure 
to receive a wholesome movie going experience with SRS Cinemas.

2015 has been a year of new avenues and opportunities for SRS 
cinemas. With the advent of the multiplex age at its apogee.  With 
cinemas such as Bahubali, which earned more than any Hindi 

movie, making it an even ground for regional movies to come, 
Indian movies have ushered a wave of fresh competition.Indian movies have ushered a wave of fresh competition.Indian movies have ushered a wave of

Activities have been a key word in promoting movies and we have 
contributed to this through fun events such as Street food festival 
along with “Tanu weds Manu returns” and Riddle popcorn activity 
along with “Ek Thee Leela”, to name a few. Also the multiplexes were 
a touch point for star casts of Mukhtar Chaddha, Ghulami, Ramta 
Jogi and so on. These events ensure SRS Cinema generated the 
most buzz.

Expansion wise, SRS has successfully ventured into Tier 2 towns 

with a triple screen multiplex opening in Muktsar, Punjab in July, 
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2015. We have also made progress in Uttrakhand with the unveiling 

of a double screened multiplex in Kashipur in December, 2015. 

We have strived to provide premium movie going experience 

through our “Online Class” venture, where people can look for 

premium seats in a nominal price range. Added benefits would be 

exclusive treatment, best view, extra leg space etc. Also, we have 

revamped our menu, with an extensive line to cater all taste buds. 

Alongside that, one can book their food and beverage with the 

tickets in BookMyShow.com, bridging the gap between online and 

on-point sale. Meal combos such as Republic day combo, 

Independence Day combo, Raksha Bandhan combo, Valentine’s Day 

combo proved to be a hit amongst moviegoers. We have also 

attempted to revamp our online presence through an Instagram 

account, which especially stresses on “Insta Info and Insta 

Feedback”. Now, multiplex-goers can connect to their favourite 

franchise through a new platform. Also, our Facebook page was 

updated and new events kept up the hype.

We have launched the revolutionary campaigns to grab majority of 

eyeballs. We have launched a campaign to promote the metro 

railway service in Faridabad through reduction of ticket price to 8 

rupees, being at par with the least priced metro fare. Also they have 

brought forward a special scheme for women, through our 

“Queen’s Queue”, which would provide special benefits for female 

moviegoers such as a separate line for queuing. 

Even with all these plans of expansion and facilitation, SRS had a 

moment of sharing goodwill. Through our tie-up with CRY, SRS 

became the first North-Indian multiplex franchise to host multiple 

movie screenings on behest of CRY.t

We are coming up with the paperless ticket (M-Ticket) for our 

customer. In the coming year SRS Cinemas will launch its web 

portal and mobile app for movie ticket booking and food and 

beverage booking, this will help the customer to booking tickets 

and F&B with ease along with fabulous offers.

With such big accomplishments, SRS Cinemas seemed to be on a 

roll in 2015-16 and strives to continue this momentum in years to 

come.

Financial analysis
The Cinema segment generated Revenue of Rs.107.74 Crore in FY 

2015-16, up by 14.95% as compared to Rs.93.73 Crore in the year 

2014-15. The profit for the segment before interest, other income, 

depreciation and taxes increased by 30.3029% from Rs.16.46 47 

Crore in FY 2014-15 to Rs.21.46 Crore in FY 2015-16. 

Screen presence

1 SRS Cinemas, SRS Mall, (Faridabad) Faridabad Haryana 11/12/2004 3 776

2 SRS Cinemas, Pristine Mall, (Faridabad)* Faridabad Haryana 8/24/2007 3 644

3 SRS Cinemas, Shubham Tower, NIT (Faridabad) Faridabad Haryana 1/11/2008 1 233

4 SRS Cinemas, Eldeco Station 1 Mall, (Faridabad) Faridabad Haryana 1/21/2011 3 689

5 SRS Cinemas, Omaxe Mall, (Gurgaon) Gurgaon Haryana 12/8/2006 2 506

6 SRS Cinemas, Celebration Mall, (Gurgaon)  Gurgaon Haryana 11/20/2009 2 551

7 SRS Cinemas, Aditya City Centre, (Ghaziabad) UP Ghaziabad UP 2/12/2010 4 918

8 SRS Cinemas, JaIpuria Mall, (Ghaziabad) Ghaziabad UP 2/19/2010 3 974

9 SRS Cinemas, City Mall, (Gorakhpur) Gorakhpur UP 6/20/2008 3 742

10 SRS Cinemas, Shoppers Pride Mall (Bijnor) Bijnor UP 3/31/2010 2 458

11 SRS Cinemas, Omaxe Mall (Patiala) Patiala Punjab 9/17/2010 4 1117

12 SRS Cinemas, Omaxe Mall (Ludhiana) Ludhiana Punjab 1/26/2012 3 1013

13 SRS Cinemas, CK Mall (Shimla) Shimla Himachala Pradesh 5/18/2013 2 341

14 SRS Cinemas, Phenix United Mall, (Bareilly) Bareilly UP 7/5/2013 4 986

15 SRS Cinemas, City Mall, (Lucknow) Lucknow UP 9/8/2013 3 884

16 SRS Cinemas, V Square Mall, (Bhiwadi)* Bhiwadi Rajasthan 12/20/2013 3 621

17 SRS Sarv Cinemas, Sarv Multiplex, (Agra) Agra UP 1/24/2014 3 1075

18 SRS Cinemas,(Hajipur)* Hajipur Bihar 3/28/2015 2 500

19 SRS Cinemas, (Saharanpur) Saharanpur UP 3/31/2015 4 1132

20 SRS Cinemas, (Muktsar)* Muktsar Punjab 7/17/2015 3 590

21 SRS Cinemas, (Kashipur)* Kashipur Uttrakhand 12/18/2015 2 468

22 SRS Cinemas, (Ranchi) Ranchi Jharkhand 7/22/2016 3 881

 TOTAL    62 16099

S.No. Site Name Location State Date Of Opening Screen Capacity

* Under the franchisee model
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

RETAIL

Introduction
The Indian retail industry arose as one of the most active and 
rapidly growing market due to the entry of several new players into 
the field. This makes the competition intense- with unorganized 
players and mom-n-pop stores fighting for leverage. This accounts 
for over 10 per cent of the country’s Gross Domestic Product (GDP) 
and around 8 per cent of the employment, catapulting India to the 
stature of world’s fifth-largest global destination in the retail space.

By 2015, the total market size is projected to be around US$ 600 
billion, thereby registering a CAGR of 7.45 per cent since 2000. Plus, 
Retail industry is anticipated to grow to 97.13 trillion by 2020, 
registering a CAGR of 9.7 per cent between 2000-2020.

The retail market is expected to reach an astounding figure of Rs. 47 
Lakh Crore by 2016-17, as it widens at a compounded annual 
growth rate of 15 per cent, according to the ‘Yes Bank - Assocham’ 
study.

Global Overview of Retail
The 2015 GRDI reflects a retail environment in developing markets 
filled with exciting challenges. The role of these markets as sources 
of growth continues to entice global retailers, which are still 
investing in building a long-term advantage. Even as they become 
more selective in their expansion strategies in new frontiers, they 
are clearly committing to the long haul.

Many luxury brands struggled in 2014 amid lower economic 
growth and political instability in developing markets. Several 
brands shifted their short-term attention back to growth opportu-
nities in United States, which is rebounding nicely post-financial 
crisis. Still, developing markets remain long-term targets: Today, 
emerging markets comprise about 30 percent of the global luxury 
market. And with wealth creation opportunities and the fast 

growth in the number of high-net-worth individuals, developing 
markets will continue to grab share. In this year's special feature, we 
examine luxury in the GRDI top 30 markets and discuss how luxury 
brands are adapting their strategies in order to succeed in a diverse 
and evolving landscape. 

India’s Retail Scenario
The Boston Consulting Group and Retailers Association of India 
published a report titled, ‘Retail 2020: Retrospect, Reinvent, Rewrite’, 
highlighting that India’s retail market is expected to nearly double 
to 67 trillion by 2020 from 40.2 trillion in 2015, driven by income 
appraisal, urbanizing cities and shifts in purchase behaviour.

 While the overall retail market is expected to grow at 12 per cent 
per annum, modern trade would expand twice as fast at 20 per cent 
per annum and traditional trade at 10 per cent.

Retail spending in the top seven Indian cities amounted to Rs. 3.58 
trillion, with organized retail infiltration at 19 per cent as of 2014. 
Online retail is expected to be at equivalence with the physical 
stores in the next five years.

India is close to become fertile for the e-commerce market, driven 
by vigorous investment in the sector and rapid increase in netizens.  
Indian e-commerce sales are expected to reach 3.68 trillion by 
FY2018 from 938 billion in FY2015. Further, India's e-commerce 
market is expected to reach 14.74 Trillion in terms of gross 
merchandise value (GMV) and 530 million shoppers by 2025, led by 
speed rate increasing on reliable telecom networks, faster 
assimilation of online services and influx in variety as well as 
convenience.

India’s direct selling industry increased 6.5 per cent in FY2014-15 to 
Rs. 7,958 crore and is expected to reach a size of Rs. 23,654 crore by 
FY2019-20, as per a joint report by India Direct Selling Association 
(IDSA) and PHD.
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Indian  retail industry (2015)
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Investment Scenario
The Indian retail industry in the solo-brand sector that has 
established Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) equity arrivals 
amounting to 23.10 billion during April 2000–September 2015, 
according to the Department of Industrial Policies and Promotion 
(DIPP).

With the demand for consumer goods in different sectors including 
consumer electronics and home appliances is on constant growth, 
a lot of investment in the Indian retail space have been finalizing 
since past few months.

• Amazon India expanded its logistics track three times to more 
than 2,100 cities and towns in 2015, as Amazon.com invested 
more than 46.9 billion in its India operations since July 2014.

• Adidas AG, popular for its Adidas and Reebok sports brands, 
has become the first foreign sports company to get 
government approval to open 100 per cent foreign-owned 
stores in India.

• Textile major Arvind Limited has publicized a partnership with 
Sephora, owned by LVMH Moet Hennessy Louis Vuitton, a 
French luxury multinational, in order to enter into the beauty 
and cosmetics segment.

• Abu Dhabi-based Lulu Group plans to invest Rs 2,500 crore in a 
fruit and vegetable processing unit, an integrated meat 
processing unit, and a modern shopping mall in Hyderabad, 
Telangana.

• With an aim to capitalize on the advertising segment, Flipkart 
acquired mobile ad network AdiQuity, which has a history of 
mobile innovations and valuable experience in the ad space.

Government Initiatives
The Government of India has taken various measures to expand the 
retail industry in India.

• The Ministry of Urban Development has propositioned a 

Smart National Common Mobility Card (NCMC) model to 
enable seamless travel by metros and other transport systems 
across the country, as well as retail purchases.

• IKEA, the world’s largest furniture retailer, purchased its first 
piece of land in India in Hyderabad, the joint capital of 
Telangana and Andhra Pradesh, for building a retail store. 
IKEA’s retail outlets have a standard design and each location 
requires an investment of around Rs. 500–600 crores.

• The Government of India has accepted the changes proposed 
by Rajya Sabha select committee to the bill introducing Goods 
and Services Tax (GST). Operation of GST is expected to enable 
easier movement of goods across the country, thereby refining 
retail operations for Pan-India retailers.

• The Government has approved a proposal to abolish the 
distinctions among different types of overseas investments by 
compiling it to a single composite limit. As a result, increase of 
foreign investment is predicted, especially in the attractive 
retail sector.

Challenges

• International Standards: Although India is brimmed with 5 
million retail outlets of different sizes and styles, there’s 
growth needed to come at par with its international 
counterparts. Indian companies along with the international 
brands have to speed up their impact. 

• Incompetent supply chain management: Indian retailing is still 
overpowered by the unsystematic segment and there is still a 
lack of efficient supply chain management. India must 
concentrate on enhancing the supply chain management, 
which in turn would bring down inventory cost, which can 
then be passed on to the consumer in the form of low pricing.

• Lack of Retail space: Most of the retail outlets in India have 
outlets that are less than 500 square feet in area. This is very 
small by International Standards. 
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• Cultural Diversity:  There is no established model or 

consumption pattern throughout the country as consumption 

varies from region to region. The diversity makes it difficult for 

manufacturers to gauge in the common consensus hence they 

have to devise strategies for different sectors and segments 

which would be challenging.

• Real estate issues: The mammoth growth of the retail industry 

has created a huge demand for real estate with property 

dealers creating retail real estate at an aggressive pace.

• Human resource problems: Trained manpower shortage is a 

challenge faced by the organized retail sector in India. The 

difficulty in finding trained person and providing incentives 

for their retention is nothing new for Indian retailers. This 

again leads to fluctuation of profit.

• Frauds in Retail: It is one of the chief challenges that 

companies would face. Frauds, including vendor frauds, thefts, 

shoplifting and inaccuracy in supervision and administration 

are the challenges that are difficult to handle inspite of 

security techniques, such as CCTVs and POS systems being 

utilized. As the size of the sector increases, this would increase 

the number of thefts, frauds and discrepancies in the system. 

• Challenges with Infrastructure and Logistics: The lack of proper 

infrastructure and distribution channels is a major hindrance 

for retailers as a non-efficient distribution channel is very 

difficult to handle and can result in huge losses. Urbanization 

and globalization are compelling companies to develop 

infrastructure facilities. 

Opportunities
There has been a sea of change in the parity of the Indian consumer. 
Heftier pay- packages, purchasing power of the youth, decreasing 

pay gap between genders, exposure to western influences, and 

more disposable income have given way to revolutionize purchase 

behaviour. The Indian consumer wants the convenience of eating, 

shopping and various other entertainments under one roof and 

this has also given Indian organized retail sector an opportunity to 

grow. 

AT Kearney’s study on Global Retailing Trends noted that India is 

the least competitive as well as least saturated of all major Global 

markets. This implies that there are significantly low entry hurdles 

for players trying to setup base in India, keeping competitive 

landscape in mind. The report further stated that Global Retailer 

such as Wal-Mart, Carrefour, Tesco and Casino would take benefit of 

more positive FDI Rules that are to be introduced in India. 

International retailers perceive India as the last retailing frontier left 

as the China’s retail sector becomes saturated. Domestic players are 

cautiously growing in India- revaluating aggressive expansion 

plans, adding stores judiciously and shifting gears to tier 2 and 3 

cities. While entering Indian markets has its barriers, the potential 

payoff is huge. 

A Way Forward
Retailers should leverage the digital retail channels (e-commerce), 

which would enable them to spend limited money on real estate 

while reaching out to more customers in tier-2 and tier-3 cities as 

e-commerce is a potential sector to capitalize on. 

Both organised and unorganised retail companies have to work in 

sync to ensure better prospects for the overall retail industry, while 

paving out opportunities/new benefits for their customers.

Nonetheless, the long-term outlook for the industry is optimistic, 

supported by rising incomes, productive demographics, entry of 

foreign players, and increasing development.
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SRS Value Bazaar is a chain of retail stores that brings the finest in 
food & groceries, personal care, home care, confectionary, packaged 
food, wines & spirits, frozen foods and much more so that all your 
needs are fulfilled perfectly at a single point. The stores offer you 
the finest products across a vast array of brands and are available in 
various package sizes to suit your needs. The hassle-free shopping 
actually becomes a pleasure in their premium, safe and pleasing 
ambience, matched perfectly by a team of customer care 
executives who are always at an arm's length to take care of your 
needs and comfort.

The Indian retail industry arose as one of the most active and 
rapidly growing market due to the entry of several new players into 
the field. This makes the competition intense- with unorganised 
players and mom-n-pop stores fighting for leverage. This accounts 
for over 10 per cent of the country’s Gross Domestic Product (GDP) 
and around 8 per cent of the employment, catapulting India to the 
stature of world’s fifth-largest global destination in the retail space.

SRS has opened up these new stores in 2015-16

• Gate No. - 3, Baljeet Market,  Gurgaon

• SCO -151, Sector - 21C, Faridabad

• Plot No. 95 & 96, Urban Estate, Sector 55, Gurgaon

• SCO- 17, Sector - 16, Faridabad

• D-88, Khsara No. - 267, Chhattarpur Enclave, 100 ft. Road,  
New Delhi

• Lower Ground Floor, Orange County, Ghaziabad

• G.F, Gaur Valerio, Commercial Block, Ahinsa Khand, 
Indirapuram, Ghaziabad

• Lower Ground Floor, Divine Business Park, Kurukshetra 

We had come up with innovative ways to generate buzz. Through 
offers such as annual clearance and Monthly shopping, where 
winner will get one-year grocery complimentary, we have 
successfully drawn the most footfalls in supermarket sector. Good 
quality, best staff, excellent customer service makes our 
supermarket chains worth visiting. Our competitive pricing with 
great ambience ensures that the customers get the best in-class 
experience and induce SRS Value Bazaar as a part of their lifestyle.

It was a year of awards with us winning the Debutant award from 
e-retailer association, cementing our name as a force to reckon 
with. Our direct sourcing from ITC, HUL, PEPSI, COCA COLA ensures 
no middleman being involved.  We have also tied up with Delivery 
partner like DELHIVERY, ROAD RUNNER to provide our consumers 
with convenience of home delivery

SRS VALUE BAZAAR
AT A GLANCE

Total Retail Outlet

45

Total Sq. Feet Area
under Retail O�ering

1.65
lacs

SKU

5000

Brands

500 +

Memos Generated

40
lacs 
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SRS Value Bazaar Stores

1 SRS Value Bazaar, Sector-12, Faridabad 9500 SRS Multiplex, City Centre, Sector 12 Faridabad

2 SRS Value Bazaar, Sector-3, Faridabad 5200 Housing Board Cly.,Near Bishamber Vatika,Sector 3,Faridabad

3 SRS Value Bazaar, Sec-9 Faridabad 1200 SCF-151/152,Huda Mkt. Sec-9, Faridabad

4 SRS Value Bazaar, Sector-34, Faridabad 900 SCO - 1, Opp Kanishka Tower, Sec-34, Faridabad

5 SRS Value Bazaar, Sector-46, Faridabad 1800 SCO -67 & 68, Huda Market, Faridabad.

6 SRS Value Bazaar, Palwal 6271 Bye Pass, GT Road, Palwal

7 SRS Value Bazaar, Sector-57, Gurgaon 6414 Bestech Mall,  Sec 56, Sushant Lok, Gurgaon

8 SRS Value Bazaar, Omaxe Mall, Gurgaon 8722 Omaxe Plaza, Sector 49, Sohna Road, Gurgaon

9 SRS Value Bazaar, Sec-7, Gurgaon. 2250 765/11,Dayal Mkt.,Shivpuri,Sec-7, Gurgaon

10 SRS Value Bazaar, Shushant Lok-1, Gurgaon 4125 Ground Floor,Shri Ram Complex,C Block,Near Maple
   Height,Shushant Lok-I,Gurgaon.

11 SRS Value Bazaar South City -I, Gurgaon 4000 Village - Silokhara, Opp. Unitech Shopping Arcade,
   South city-I, Gurgaon.

12 SRS Value Bazaar,Malviya Nagar, Delhi.. 1900 D-78,Main Market, Malviya Nagar, Delhi

13 SRS Value Bazaar Sector-51, Noida 5140 C-3, Near Kendriya Vihar,Sector-51,Noida.

14 SRS Value Bazaar Sector-62, Noida 3800 RN 4-6, Sector-62, Noida.

15 SRS Value Bazaar Sector-48, Noida 4300 232A/01, Block - C, Setor-48, Noida.

16 SRS Value Bazaar Sector-44, Noida 4000 Khsara no. 513,Village - Chellera, Sector-44, Noida

17 SRS Value Bazaar Crossing Republik, Ghaziabad 7117 Paramount Spectrum, Crossing Republik, Ghaziabad

18 SRS Value Bazaar Ardee City Gurgaon 4400 Gate no. - 3, Baljeet Market, Sector - 52, Gurgaon

19 SRS Value Bazaar Sector 21C III 1000 SCO -151, Sector - 21C, Faridabad

20 SRS Value Bazaar Sector 55 Gurgaon 4700 Plot no. 95 & 96 , Urban Estate, Sector 55 , Gurgaon

21 SRS Value Bazaar Sector-87  Faridabad 2689 SRS Residency, Sector - 87, Faridabad

22 SRS Value Bazaar Sector -16 Faridabad 2100 Ground Floor, SCO- 17, Sector - 16, Faridabad

23 SRS Value Bazaar Chhattarpur Delhi 4500 D-88, Khsara no. - 267, Chhattarpur enclave, 100 ft Road, New Delhi

24 SRS Value Bazaar Orange county Faridabad 8682 Lower Ground Floor, Orange County, Ghaziabad

25 SRS Value Bazaar Gaur Valerio Indirapuram,  4790 G.F, Gaur Valerio, Commercial Block,Ahinsa Khand, Indirapuram, Ghz

26 SRS Value Bazaar Kurukshetra Haryana 5000 Lower Ground Floor, Divine Business Park, Kurukshetra Haryana

27 SRS Value Bazaar Sector-82, Noida 5000 Plot No.77, Sector 93 Noida

28 SRS Value Bazaar Sector-120, Noida 5000 Khasra no. – 482 & 483, Village – Sarfabad,Tehsil – Dadri,
   Sector – 73, Noida.

S.No. Unit Name Area sq.ft. Address

SRS Fashion Wear Stores

1 SRS Fashion Wear, Faridabad GF-28-29, Crown Interiorz Mall, Sector – 35,  Delhi Mathura Road, Faridabad

2 SRS Fashion Wear, Faridabad SRS Mall,  Sec-12, Faridabad

3 SRS Fashion Wear, Palwal Agra Chowk, G.T Road, Palwal

S.No. Unit Name Address

Apart from above, the Company operates several Exclusive Brand Outlets of Leading Brands

From a buzzword to a current-day reality, e-commerce in India has 
been experiencing remarkable growth, successfully changing the 
way people transact. People today can shop literally everywhere 
within minutes, be it their workstations or homes, and most 
importantly, at any time of the day at their leisure. The online 
market space in the country is burgeoning in terms of offerings 
ranging from travel, movies, hotel reservations and books to the 
likes of matrimonial services, electronic gadgets, fashion 
accessories and even groceries.

SRS has tapped into this through their inclusion in Ecommerce 
portal association, enhancing our chances of garnering new target 
customers. Also, our tie up with online grocery portal like Grofers, 
Pappertab for order fulfilment ensures channelizing new avenues 
for profits.

With these positive highlights, we plan to pave our way to a 
profitable financial year in 2016-17 and keep the momentum on an 
active path.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

FOOD AND BEVERAGE

We have started SRS 7 Dayz business 12 years ago with a goal to 
expand our footprint in all major cities of India.  We had many years 
in this business and have seen the ups and downs of the business 
and understood the in and out about the business. In the last 8 
months, we’ve come to realize that food and beverage business is 

getting more challenges due to major competitions, different 
choice of foods, major real estate cost, etc. SRS 7 Dayz contribution 
is very less in the revenues and has not been a profitable venture of 
the Company. Therefore, we are consolidating the food business 
and focusing our self towards other businesses.
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Automation is the mother of all solutions and no one can prove that better than IT. The IT has played an important role in the smooth 
functioning of all factions in our organization. Through it, the following sectors were assisted-

• Value Bazaar – Up gradation of existing running software on next level from decentralised mode to centralised mode. All the 
transactions were done on central level and real time data updating across all locations.

• Cinemas – Up gradation of existing ticketing system. Helped day to day operational work more easy. Implementation of e-kiosk 
system to help customer directly generate the online tickets without standing in queue. Updated and made a fully functional 
centralised system which helps the business team to derive the data of all location on single click and generate reports in a 
short time to make better decision. Real time centralised portal which showed the current status of all locations of cinemas.

• Jewells – Developed centralised reporting system to generate reports of each location in real time. Helped management as well 
as account audit team to get the information in a short time.

• Food Courts – Developed an in-house fully, customised billing software which served our both food court as well as fine dine 
restaurant.

• E-commerce – Implementation of a complete online grocery website along infra setup at D.C. points in Delhi - NCR with the 
name of SRSgrocery.com.

• HR – Up gradation in HR software as well as added new feature in ESS portal like directly download payslip etc.

With IT, we intend to streamline and synchronize major functions and hence make it comprehensive to serve customers in an 
integrated fashion.

In today’s era of technological leap-frogging, every resource can be quickly mobilized, barring one: the intellectual capital of the 
Company. And key among this class of assets is the Human Resource capital, which gives flight to any company's vision and plans. 
With this belief, the Company aspired to treat HR in a very careful, concerned and responsible manner, with a mix of qualitative and 
quantitative elements. 

The Company, thus, has a star team which believes in their Company passionately, and goes the extra mile to deliver fine results 
leveraging the financial and physical assets of the Company. So essentially, it is a two way process wherein a Company nurtures a 
great team, which in turn creates a great company. Your Company is fortunate to be blessed with this self-sustaining mode. As a 
result, your Company remains a company of choice for talented professionals, and during fiscal 2015-16, we received around 8738 
employment applications. Out of this, approximately 3641 were interviewed and 1567 job offers were made. 

Your Company takes care to nurture this key resource through career enhancement and staff welfare measures such as skill 
enhancement, divergent exposure through job rotation across verticals, health and life protection, restructuring of key HR policies, 
measures etc.   

To have a pertinent and dynamic framework, HR policies such as Leave Policy, Local Meal Allowance, Employee Travel Policy, 
Employee Perks Policy, Local Conveyance Policy, Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace, Employee Relocation Benefits Policy, 
Rewards and Recognition Policy, Employee of the Month (EOM) Program etc. have been fine-tuned for smoother and empowered 
working for its 1883 workforce. Tie-ups with 5 reputed private hospitals ensure ready medical treatment for the employees, should 
that need ever arise. 

Your company is doing paperless and efficient mobilization of leaves and attendance and performance management system. To 
make this happen, HR Portal has been introduced in to the system. Your company organized monthly Vertical Meeting, giving a 
common place for all the vertical heads to sit together and put their suggestions, ongoing processes, results & achievements. 

With a challenging work environment, personal and professional growth and a congenial atmosphere, your Company boasts of 
having a competent and happy team, which will continue to bring greater victories.

SRS IT IMPLEMENTATION

HUMAN RESOURCES
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INTERNAL CONTROLS 
With various business verticals and multi-locational operations, the Company has always had strong system of internal control and 
audit so as to ensure that all systems and processes are adhered to take all decisions in a proper, timely and transparent manner. This 
ensures that each vertical is treated as a de facto separate business unit, and undergoes stringent and focused internal audits. Apart 
from this, clear policies have been institutionalized for wide-sweeping control management such as Insider Trading, IT Policy etc.

What also helps matters is the fact that since the Company is listed on the BSE and NSE, it follows Corporate Governance norms as 
laid down by the regulators thus leading to good transparency and disclosure levels enables customers to earn seamlessly on every 
transaction they make at these two verticals, quite different from other such programs that work only in a single vertical 
environment. It is also working on a uniform platform based feedback application that will help the Company to assess its services 
levels and provide inputs for better brand building and effective marketing initiatives.

The Company believes in constant upgrade of Technology and invests wisely to utilize the true potential of technology to provide 
stability, speed and transparency to business.

Some information in this report may contain forward-looking statements. We have based these forward looking statements on our 

current beliefs, expectations and intentions as to facts, actions and events that will or may occur in the future. Such statements 

generally are identified by forward-looking words such as “believe”, “plan”, “anticipate”, “continue”, “estimate”, “expect”, “may”, “will” or 

other similar words. 

A forward- looking statement may include a statement of the assumptions or bases underlying the forward-looking statement. We 

have chosen these assumptions or bases in good faith, and we believe that they are reasonable in all material respects. However, we 

caution you that forward-looking statements’ and assumed facts or basis almost always vary from actual results, and the differences 

between the results implied by the forward-looking statements and assumed facts or bases and actual results can be material, 

depending on the circumstances. You should also keep in mind that any forward-looking statement made by us in this report or 

elsewhere speaks only as of the date on which we made it. New risks and uncertainties come up from time to time, and it is 

impossible for us to predict those events or how they may affect us. We have no duty to, and do not intend to, update or revise the 

forward- looking statements in this report after the date hereof.

The risks and uncertainties relating to these statements include, but are not limited to, risks and uncertainties regarding fluctuations 

in earnings, our ability to manage growth, intense competition in multiplex, Jewellery, retail business due to the entry of new 

players, including those factors which may affect our cost advantage, lack of good quality content, onset of new technologies such 

as DTH, IPTV, e-commerce segment of Jewellery & grocery  and increasing penetration of Home-video, which may impact overall 

industry growth, wage increases in India, real estate costs increases, delay or failure in handover of properties from real estate 

developers, the success of our subsidiary companies, withdrawal of entertainment tax exemption granted by government and 

general economic conditions affecting our industry.

In light of these risks and uncertainties, any forward-looking statement made in this report or elsewhere may or may not occur and 

has to be understood and read along with this disclaimer.

Others: In this report, the terms “we”, “us”, “our”, “SRS” or “the Company”, unless otherwise implies, refer to SRS Limited (“SRS Limited”) 

and its subsidiaries, SRS Entertainment India Limited (Formerly known as SRS Entertainment Limited) and SRS Worldwide (FZC).

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT



NOTICE

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial 

Statements of the Company on a standalone and 

consolidated basis, for the financial year ended 31st March, 

2016, including the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016, the 

Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended on that date, 

together with the Reports of the Directors’ and Auditors’ 

thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Sh. Raju Bansal 

(DIN:00007344), who retires by rotation at this Annual 

General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for 

re-appointment.

3. To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration by passing 

the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution with or 

without modifications: - 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 

139(8) and other applicable provisions (if any) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time, the  

Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014 or any other law 

for the time being in force, M/s. SVP & Associates, Chartered 

Accountants and M/s. Oswal Sunil & Company, Chartered 

Accountants be and are hereby appointed as Joint Statutory 

Auditors of the Company to fill the casual vacancy caused by 

the resignation of M/s. S. S. Kothari Mehta & Co., Chartered 

Accountants and M/s. Rakesh Raj & Associates, Chartered 

Accountants.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT M/s. SVP & Associates, Chartered 

Accountants and M/s. Oswal Sunil & Company, Chartered 

Accountants be and are hereby appointed as Joint Statutory 

Auditors of the Company to hold office until the conclusion 

of the Five consecutive Annual General Meetings, subject to 

ratification by members at every AGM held after this AGM 

and that the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized 

to fix their remuneration plus travelling and other out of 

pocket expenses incurred by them in connection with 

statutory audit and such other remuneration, as may be 

recommended by the Audit Committee in consultation with 

the Auditors.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

4. Appointment of Sh. Praveen Kumar Kapoor (DIN: 
00005617) as a Director, liable to retire by rotation

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 

 “RESOLVED THAT Sh. Praveen Kumar Kapoor 
(DIN:00005617), who was appointed as an Additional 
Director of the Company by the Board on 19th January, 2016 
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and whose tenure of office expires at the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in respect of 
whom a notice from a member proposing his candidature 
for the office of Director of the Company, has been received 
along with a deposit of Rs.1,00,000/- under the provisions of 
Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, be and is hereby 
appointed as Director of the Company, liable to retire by 
rotation.” 

5. Appointment of Sh. Vaibhav Gupta (DIN: 
07429261) as an Independent Director 

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:  

 “RESOLVED THAT Sh. Vaibhav Gupta (DIN:07429261), who 
was appointed as an Additional (Independent) Director of 
the Company by the Board on 13th July, 2016 pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (referred to as 
the “Act”) and the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 17 of 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 read with Schedule IV to the Act, and 
whose tenure of office expires at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 
of the Act and in respect of whom the Company has received 
a notice in writing under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 
2013 from a member proposing his candidature for the 
office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an 
Independent Director of the Company to hold office for five 
consecutive years from 13th July, 2016 upto 12th July, 2021 
and whose office shall not be liable to retire by rotation.”

NOTICENOTICE
Notice is hereby given that the 16th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of SRS Limited will be held as under: 

Day  : Friday
Date  : 30th September, 2016
Time  : 3:00 P.M. 
Venue  : SRS Banquet, Near SRS Multiplex, City Centre, Sector – 12, Faridabad, NCR Delhi-121007

to transact the following business: 
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6. Re-classi�cation of Status of Promoter(s) as
 Non-Promoter(s)

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as Special 
Resolution: 

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 31A of the 
Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and 
other applicable provisions, if any and subject to necessary 
approval(s) from the National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited (NSE) and BSE Limited (BSE), the consent of the 
members be and is hereby accorded for re-classification of 
“SRS Hitech Projects Limited (Now known as Trishul Dream 
Homes Limited”), “Latest IT Solutions Limited (Formerly 
known as SRS IT Solutions Limited”), SRS Meditech Limited 
and Topchoice Computech Limited (Formerly known as SRS 
Computech Limited), existing in Promoter Group of the 
Company, from Promoter Category to Non-Promoter 
Category.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the above promoter group 
entities seeking re-classification does/will not:
1. Directly or indirectly, exercise control, over the affairs of
  the Company;

 2. Have any special rights through formal or informal
  agreements.

 3. Hold more than ten percent of the paid up capital of the
  Company.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT after such reclassification, “SRS 
Hitech Projects Limited (Now known as Trishul Dream 
Homes Limited”, “Latest IT Solutions Limited (Formerly 
known as SRS IT Solutions Limited”, SRS Meditech Limited 
and Topchoice Computech Limited (Formerly known as SRS 
Computech Limited), shall cease to be the Promoter Group 
Entities of the Company.

 RESOLVED FURHER THAT Sh. Sunil Jindal, Managing Director; 
Dr. (Ms.) Navneet Kwatra, C.O.O. & Company Secretary and 
Ms. Mamta Rastogi, Deputy Company Secretary & 
Compliance Officer be and are hereby severally authorized 
to make application to the Stock Exchange(s) along with all 
required documents and to do all that may be deemed 
necessary to give effect to the said resolution.”

 Place: Faridabad  By order of the Board
Date: 24th August2016  For SRS Limited

  

(Navneet Kwatra)
 C.O.O. & Company Secretary
  M. No.ACS-16672
   

NOTES

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is 
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on poll 
instead of himself/herself and the proxy need not be a 
member of the Company. 

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, a person can act as 
proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and 
holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the 
total share capital of the company carrying voting rights. A 
member holding more than ten percent of the total share 
capital of the company carrying voting rights may appoint a 
single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a 
proxy for any other person or shareholder.

3. The enclosed proxy form, duly completed, stamped and 
signed, must reach at the Registered Office not later than 48 
hours before the scheduled time of the Meeting.  

4. During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed 
for the commencement of the meeting and ending with the 
conclusion of the meeting, members entitled to vote would 
be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged, at any time during 
the business hours of the company, provided not less than 
three days’ notice in writing is given to the Company.

5. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized 
representative to attend the meeting are requested to send 
a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their 
representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the 
meeting in terms of Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013.

6. The relevant Explanatory Statements setting out the 
material facts pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 
2013 concerning the Special Business in the notice is 
appended herein below. 

7. Sh. Raju Bansal retires by rotation and being eligible offers 
himself for re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting.

8. The relevant information as required in terms of Regulation 
36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 in respect of the Directors 
seeking appointment/re-appointment is annexed to this 
notice. The Directors have furnished the requisite 
consents/declarations for their appointment/ 
reappointment.

9. M/s. S. S. Kothari Mehta & Co., Chartered Accountants and 
M/s. Rakesh Raj & Associates, Chartered Accountants have 
submitted their resignation letters due to other 
pre-occupations.  
It is proposed to appoint M/s. SVP & Associates, Chartered 
Accountants and M/s. Oswal Sunil & Company, Chartered 
Accountants, who have submitted their certificates 
expressing their eligibility for appointment as a Joint 
Statutory Auditors of the Company in terms of Section 141 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder. 

10. Beetal Financial & Computer Services Pvt. Ltd. is the 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (RTA’s) of the Company. 
All investor relation communication may be sent to RTA’s at 
the following address: 
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 Beetal Financial & Computer Services Pvt. Ltd.
Beetal House, 3rd Floor, 99, Madangir,
Behind Local Shopping Centre, 
Near Dada Harsukh Dass Mandir, New Delhi–110062
Ph. #011-29961281-283, Fax#011-29961284
Email id: beetalrta@gmail.com

11. Members are requested to notify all the changes, if any, 
in their  addresses/particulars to their depository 
participants in respect of their holding in electronic form 
and to RTA’s at the above address in respect of their holding 
in physical form.

12. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books will 
remain closed from Monday, 26th September, 2016 to Friday, 
30th September, 2016 (both days inclusive).

13. In terms of the Investor Education and Protection Fund 
(uploading of information regarding unpaid and unclaimed 
amounts lying with companies) Rules, 2012 (IEPF Rules),, the 
Company has uploaded the information in respect of the 
unclaimed dividend, pending share application money, 
interest on refund account in IPO of the Company and 
Interest on Fixed/Public Deposits as on the last annual 
general meeting of the Company which was held on 3rd 
September, 2015, on the website of the IEPF viz. 
www.iepf.gov.in and under “Investors” section on the 
website of the Company viz. www.srsparivar.com. The 
concerned members are requested to verify the details of 
their unclaimed amounts, if any, from the said websites and 
write to the Company/RTAs before the same is due for 
transfer to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

14. The Company is concerned about the environment and 
utilizes all natural resources in an optimum way. Therefore, 
you are requested to update your email ids with your 
Depository Participants in case of shares held in demat and 
in case of physical shares, register/update your email id with 
the Company’s RTAs to enable us to send you the reports 
and other communications via email.

15. In terms of Section 101 and 136 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Rules made thereunder, Copies of the Annual 
Report containing Notice of 16th Annual General Meeting 
and the instructions for e-voting along with Attendance Slip 
and Proxy Form is being sent by electronic mode to all the 
Members whose email addresses are registered with 
Depository Participant(s) or Company or Registrar & Share 
Transfer Agents unless any member has requested a 
physical copy of the same. For Members who have not 
registered their e-mail addresses, physical copies of Annual 
Report along with attendance slip and proxy form are being 
sent by permitted mode. In case you wish to get the physical 
copy of Annual Report, you may send your request to 
complianceofficer@srsparivar.com.

16. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and provisions 
of Regulation 44 of the Securities Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 the Company is pleased to provide the 

members facility to exercise their right to vote at the 16th 
Annual General Meeting of the Company by electronic 
means and the businesses may be transacted through 
e-voting services provided by Central Depository Services 
(India) Limited (CDSL). 

17. The Shareholders can vote on all the businesses to be 
transacted at the Annual General Meeting by way of any one 
of the following methods:
• Remote e-voting i.e. the facility of casting votes by a
  member using an electronic voting system from a place
  other than venue of the Annual General Meeting;

 • Voting at the venue of the Annual General Meeting by
  poll through ballot paper, as will be provided by the
  Company. 

18. A Shareholder can opt for only one mode of voting. In case a 
shareholder votes through remote e-voting as well as casts 
vote though ballot form, the votes cast through remote 
e-voting shall be considered and the voting through 
physical ballot shall not be considered by the scrutinizer.

19. The Shareholders who have voted through remote e-voting 
shall be entitled to attend the meeting, however, they shall 
not be allowed to cast their vote again at the venue of the 
Annual General Meeting.     

20. The Shareholders attending the meeting, who have not 
already cast their votes through remote e-voting, shall be 
able to exercise their right at the meeting.

21. The Shareholders shall have one vote per equity share held 
by them. The facility of voting would be provided once for 
every folio/client id, irrespective of the number of joint 
holders.

22. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such 
joint holder who is higher in the order of names would be 
entitled to vote.

23. The Shareholders as on the cut-off date i.e. Friday, 23rd 
September, 2016 shall only be eligible to vote on the 
resolutions mentioned in the notice of annual general 
meeting.

24. Members may also note that the Notice of this Annual 
General Meeting and the Annual Report for the year 
2015-16 will also be available on the Company’s website 
www.srsparivar.com for their download.

 All the documents referred to in the accompanying Notice 
and Explanatory Statement are available for inspection at 
the Registered Office of the Company on all working days 
(except Saturdays, Sundays and Public holidays) between 
11.00 a.m and 1.00 p.m. up to the date of Annual General 
Meeting.

25. The Company has appointed Ms. Savita Trehan, Practicing 
Company Secretary, as the Scrutinizer for conducting the 
voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

26.  The scrutinizer will submit her final and consolidated report to 
the Chairman of the Company within 2 working days after 
the conclusion of the Annual General Meeti scrutinizer’s 
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 decision on the validity of all kinds of voting will be final.

27. The results of Annual General Meeting shall be declared by 
the Chairman or his authorized representative or any 
Director of the Company, so authorized, after the Annual 
General Meeting within the prescribed time limits.

28. The results of voting will also be placed at the website of the 
company viz. www.srsparivar.com and on the website of 
CDSL viz. www.cdslindia.com.    

The instructions for shareholders voting electronically
are as under:
(i) The voting period begins on Tuesday, 27th September, 2016 

at 10:00 A.M. and ends on Thursday, 29th September, 2016 at 
5:00 P.M. During this period shareholders’ of the Company 
holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized 
form, as on the cut-off date  of Friday, 23rd September, 2016, 
may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall 
be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting 
date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue.

(iii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website 
www.evotingindia.com.

(iv) Click on Shareholders.

(v) Now Enter your User ID 

 a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 

 b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client
  ID, 
c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter
  Folio Number registered with the Company.

(vi) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on 
Login.

(vii) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on 
to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting of 
any company, then your existing password is to be used. 

(viii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

(ix) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” 
tab.

(x) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly 
reach the Company selection screen. However, members 
holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password 
Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily 
enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly 
note that this password is to be also used by the demat 
holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on 
which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts 
for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly 
recommended not to share your password with any other 
person and take utmost care to keep your password 
confidential.

(xi) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can 
be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in 
this Notice.

(xii) Click on the EVSN for SRS Limited on which you choose to 
vote.

(xiii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION 
DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for 
voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option 
YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO 
implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xiv) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the 
entire Resolution details.

(xv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, 
click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you 
wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your 
vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

(xvi) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will 
not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xvii) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by 
clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

(xviii) If Demat account holder has forgotten the changed 
password then enter the User ID and the image verification 
code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as 
prompted by the system.

(xix) Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and 
Custodians

• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, 
HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to log on to 
www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as 
Corporates.

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp 
and sign of the entity should be emailed to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

• After receiving the login details, a compliance user should 
be created using the admin login and password. The 
Compliance user would be able to link the account(s) for 
which they wish to vote on.

• The   l ist    of    accounts   should   be   mailed   to  

For Members holding shares in Demat
Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by
 Income Tax Department 
 • Members who have not updated their PAN

with the Company/Depository Participant are
requested to use the first two letters of their
name and the 8 digits of the sequence 
number in the PAN field.

 • In case the sequence number is less than 8 
digits enter the applicable number of 0’s 
before the number after the first two 
characters of the  name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. 
If your name is Ramesh Kumar with sequence 
number 1 then enter RA00000001 in the PAN 
field.

Dividend Bank Enter the Dividend Bank Details Date of Birth
details or details (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in 
date of birth your demat account or in the company records 
(DOB)  in order to login.
 • If both the details are not recorded with the 

depository or company please enter the 
member id/folio number in the Dividend Bank 
details field as mentioned in instruction (v).
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 helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the 
accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 

• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of 
Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the 
Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the 
system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

(xx) Any person, who acquires shares of the Company 
and become Member of the Company after 
dispatch of the Notice and holding shares as on 
the cut-o� date i.e. Friday, 23rd September, 2016 
may visit the Company’s website 
www.srsparivar.com for ‘Notice calling the 16th 

Annual General Meeting’ or may write to our RTA’s 
for copy of Notice and can follow the same 
instructions as mentioned above for e-Voting.

(xxi) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, 
you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and 
e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under 
help section or write an email to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com

(xxii) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile 
app m-Voting available for android based mobiles. The 
m-Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play Store. 

iPhone and Windows phone users can download the app 
from the App Store and the Windows Phone Store 
respectively. Please follow the instructions as prompted by 
the mobile app while voting on your mobile.

27. Members desiring any information/clarification on the 
accounts are requested to write to the Company at least 10 
days in advance, so as to enable the management to keep 
the information ready at the Annual General Meeting.

28. All documents referred to in the Notice will be available for 
inspection at the Company’s corporate & registered office 
during business hours on working days upto the date of 
AGM.

29. Should any assistance be desired or clarification be sought, 
you may write at complianceofficer@srsparivar.com.

Place: Faridabad   By order of the Board
Date: 24th August2016  For SRS Limited

(Navneet Kwatra)
 C.O.O. & Company Secretary
    M. No.ACS-16672
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Item No. 4

Sh. Praveen Kumar Kapoor was appointed as an Additional Director 
of the Company by the Board on 19th January, 2016 pursuant to 
Section 260 of the Companies Act, 1956. His tenure of office expires 
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting pursuant to Section 161 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and a notice has been received from a 
member proposing his candidature for the office of Director of the 
Company along with a deposit of Rs.1, 00,000/- under the 
provisions of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board 
believes that his directorship in the Company will be in the interest 
of the Company. 

The Company has received from Sh. Praveen Kumar Kapoor consent 
in writing to act as Director in Form DIR-2 pursuant to Rule 8 of the 
Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 
and intimation in Form DIR-8 in terms of the Companies 
(Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 to the effect 
that he is not disqualified under Section 164(2) of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) or their 
relatives is concerned or interested in the Proposed Resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item No. 4 for the 
approval of members.

Item No. 5

Sh. Vaibhav Gupta was appointed as an Additional (Independent) 
Director of the Company by the Board on 13th July, 2016. His tenure 
of office expires at the ensuing Annual General Meeting pursuant 
to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and a notice has been 
received from a member proposing his candidature for the office of 
Director of the Company along with a deposit of Rs.1, 00,000/- 
under the provisions of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Board of Directors of the Company, after reviewing the 
provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations, is of the opinion that 
Sh. Vaibhav Gupta fulfills the conditions specified in the Listing 
Regulations, Act & Rules made there under to be eligible to be 
appointed as Independent Director of the Company. The Board is 
also of the opinion that he is independent of the management of 
the Company. The Board considers that his association would be of 
immense benefit to the Company.

A copy of the draft letter for the appointment of Sh. Vaibhav Gupta 
as an Independent Director setting out the terms and conditions is 
available for inspection without any fee by the members at the 
Company’s registered office during normal business hours on 
working days up to the date of the AGM. 

The Company has received from Sh. Vaibhav Gupta consent in 
writing to act as Director in Form DIR-2 pursuant to Rule 8 of the 
Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014; 
intimation in Form DIR-8 in terms of the Companies (Appointment 
& Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 to the effect that he is not 
disqualified under Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and a 
declaration to the effect that he meets the criteria of independence 
as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The resolution seeks the approval of the members in terms of 
Sections 149 read with Schedule IV and other applicable provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under for 
appointment of Sh. Vaibhav Gupta as an Independent Director for 
Five (5) consecutive years commencing from 13th July, 2016 to 12th 
July, 2021. He is not liable to retire by rotation.

None of the Directors, KMP or their relatives is interested either 
directly or indirectly, in the said proposal, except Sh. Vaibhav Gupta.

The Board recommends the resolution set out in Item No. 5 for the 
approval of members.

Item No. 6

SRS Hitech Projects Limited (Now known as Trishul Dream Homes 
Limited), Latest IT Solutions Limited (Earlier Known as SRS IT 
Solutions Limited), SRS Meditech Limited and Topchoice 
Computech Limited (Formerly known as SRS Computech Limited) 
are existing promoter group entities of the Company. SRS Hitech 
Projects Limited (Now known as Trishul Dream Homes Limited), 
Latest IT Solutions Limited (Earlier Known as SRS IT Solutions 
Limited), SRS Meditech Limited and Topchoice Computech Limited 
(Formerly known as SRS Computech Limited) vide their application 
dated 23rd August, 2016 have requested the Company for 
reclassifying them as non-promoters of the Company.    

As per latest shareholding pattern as on 30th June, 2016, SRS Hitech 
Projects Limited (Now known as Trishul Dream Homes Limited), SRS 
Meditech Limited and Topchoice Computech Limited (Formerly 
known as SRS Computech Limited) hold NIL shares in the Company 
and Latest IT Solutions Limited holds 1,01,43,450 Equity Shares 
constituting 3.64% of paid up share capital and it has given trading 
plan under SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 
for sale of these shares. Hence, the said promoter group entities 
seeking reclassification does not hold any controlling stake in the 
Company.

On verification of the application in all aspects, the matter was 
taken up in the Board Meeting held on 24th August 2016 and the 
management has accepted the application and recommended the 
same for Members’ approval in the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting.

None of the Directors, KMP or their relatives is interested either 
directly or indirectly, in the said proposal, except to their 
Shareholdings.

The Board recommends the resolution set out in Item No.6 for the 
approval of members.

Place: Faridabad   By order of the Board
Date: 24th August2016  For SRS Limited

  

    (Navneet Kwatra)
 C.O.O. & Company Secretary
    M. No.ACS-16672

Explanatory Statement Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013
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INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/REAPPOINTMENT PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36(3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS
AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

Sh. Raju Bansal 06/06/1976 Matriculate  17 Years Nil   Nil  36,23,000

Sh. Praveen Kumar 15/10/1963 L.Lb, B.Com 26 Years 1) Horizon Global Nil  Nil
Kapoor    Limited Limited
     2) Hawk Designing
     House Private Limited
     3) SRS Knowledge &
     Technologies Private
     Limited
     (formerly known as
     SRS Professional
     Services Limited)
     4) JK Professionals
     Private Limited 

Sh. Vaibhav Gupta  30/06/1984 B.Com (H), 11 Years  N.A.  Nil  Nil 
  M.Com, C.A., 
  C.S, C.M.A,
  Certified
  Arbitrator
  (ICAI),
  Concurrent
  Auditor (ICAI) 

By order of the Board
For SRS Limited

(Navneet Kwatra)
C.O.O. & Company Secretary
M. No.ACS-16672

Name of Director Date of Birth Quali�cation Exp.
Directorship

in
other Indian
Companies

Chairmanship/
Membership of

Committees of the
Board of Public Ltd.

Companies

No. of
Shares held

in the
Company

Annual Report 2015-16 | SRS Limited

35



To, 
The Shareowners,

Your Directors present the 16th Annual Report of the Company for FY 2015-16, along with the audited statements of accounts for the same 
period. 

FINANCIAL RESULTS
The results of your Company for the year ended 31st March, 2016 are as follows: -

Particulars  31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Revenue from Operations  3,73,282.51 3,82,483.79

Other Income           90.55        586.00

Total Revenue 3,73,373.06  3,83,069.79

Profit/(Loss) before Finance Cost, Depreciation & Amortization Expense and Tax 11,898.55    14,051.50

Finance Cost  8,089.25 7,062.97

Pro�t before Depreciation & Tax 3,809.30 6,988.53
Depreciation  1,890.30 2,088.43
Pro�t before Tax 1,919.00 4,900.10
Provision for Tax

- Current 410.70 1,037.02
- Deferred Tax (36.66) (27.50)
- MAT Credit (71.41)   (12.85)
- Earlier Years 18.60  22.04

Pro�t after Tax 1,597.77 3,881.39
Face Value per Equity Share (in Rs.) 10.00 10.00
Earnings Per Share (in Rs.)
- Basic 0.57 1.39

- Diluted 0.57 1.39

₹ in Lacs

REPORT
DIRECTORS'
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND THE STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS
The jewellery industry is highly exposed to commodity (gold) price 
as well as regulatory risks.. 

It may be noted that jewellery segment contributes around 90% to 
the Company’s revenues and the jewellers strike initiated against 
1% increase in excise duty announced in Budget of Financial Year 
2016-17, has highly impacted the jewellery business and there is 
severe loss of revenues and profitability resulting in cash crunch 
and liquidity issues. 

The revenues of the company have decreased to the tune of 52% 
during the last quarter ended 31st March, 2016 as compared to 
quarter ended December 2015 and the company suffered huge 
losses during the last quarter in comparison to profits earned in 
other three quarters.

The Company reported revenue of Rs.3732.82 Crore in FY 2015-16, 
representing a decline of 2.41% over the figure of Rs.3824.84 Crore 
reported in FY 2014-15. The PBT and PAT for FY 16 stood at Rs.19.19 
Crores and Rs.15.98 Crore respectively.

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the 
financial position of the company which have occurred between 
the end of Financial Year 2015-16 and the date of this report.

DIVIDEND
Your Company is facing liquidity crunch and endures to utilise 
internal accruals for its business verticals, therefore, the Board do 
not recommend any dividend on equity shares for the financial 
year under review.

The details of amount lying as unclaimed in the Unpaid Dividend 
Account of the Company for the Dividend declared for the financial 
year 2011-12 & 2012-13 are given in the Corporate Governance 
Report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
In terms of the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 
2013, Sh. Raju Bansal  is due to retire by rotation at the forthcoming 
Annual General Meeting of the Company and being eligible offers 
himself for re-appointment as Director of the Company.

Sh. Nishant Goel, Independent Director has resigned from 
directorship of the Company on 10th September, 2015, due to other 
preoccupations. The Board placed on record its appreciation for the 
services rendered by Sh. Nishant Goel during his tenure of 
directorship with the Company.

CA Ms. Sangeeta Adlakha was appointed as an Additional 
(Independent) Director of the Company to hold office for five 
consecutive years w. e. f. 10th September, 2015 upto 9th September, 
2020, not liable to retire by rotation. However, due to other 
preoccupations, she was not able to continue as Director of the 
Company and resigned on 22nd June, 2016. The Board placed on 
record its appreciation for the services rendered by CA Ms. 
Sangeeta Adlakha during her tenure of directorship with the 
Company.

Sh. Praveen Kumar Kapoor was appointed as an Additional Director 

of the Company on 19th January, 2016. His tenure of office expires at 
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and he is eligible for 
reappointment.

Sh. Ankit Garg has resigned from the directorship of the Company 
on 19th January, 2016. The Board placed on record its appreciation 
for the services rendered by Sh. Ankit Garg during his tenure of 
directorship with the Company.

CA Sh. Vaibhav Gupta was appointed as an Additional 
(Independent) Director of the Company to hold office for five 
consecutive years w. e. f. 13th July, 2016 upto 12th July, 2021, not 
liable to retire by rotation. His tenure of office expires at the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and he is eligible for 
reappointment. 

A brief resume of appointee Directors, the nature of expertise in 
specific functional areas and names of Companies in which they 
hold Directorship and/or Membership/Chairmanship of 
Committees of the Board, as stipulated under Regulation 36(3) of 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 is annexed with the Notice calling 16th Annual 
General Meeting of the Company.

All the Independent Directors have given a declaration dated 31st 

March, 2016 under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 confirming their independence.

Sh. Sunil Jindal, Managing Director, Dr. Anil Jindal, Sh. Vinod Kumar 
and Sh. Raju Bansal, Executive Directors are not receiving any 
commission/remuneration from any Holding/Subsidiary Compa-
nies of the Company.     

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS
During the year under review, Eighteen (18) meetings of the Board 
of Directors were held. Independent Director’s also had their 
separate meeting on 30th March, 2016. The details of Board 
meetings and the attendance of Directors in such meetings are 
given in the ‘Corporate Governance Report’ forming part of this 
Annual Report. 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION MECHANISM
Information on the manner in which formal annual evaluation has 
been made by the Board of its own performance and that of its 
Committees and individual directors is given in the Corporate 
Governance Report.

REMUNERATION POLICY
Information regarding Remuneration Policy is given in the 
Corporate Governance Report.

COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEES 
The composition of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as 
required under Section 135(2) and the composition of Audit 
Committee as required under Section 177 (8) of the Companies Act, 
2013 is given in the Corporate Governance Report.

Further, the Board has accepted all the recommendations of the 
Audit Committee during the year under review.
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S. No. Name of the Entity Nature of transaction Amount Particulars of Loans,   
     Guarantee or  Investment

1 SRS Entertainment India Ltd. Loan Rs.3,28,66,977/- Temporary Loan for
 (Formerly known as   expansion of business. 
 SRS Entertainment Limited)

2. SRS Entertainment India Ltd. (Formerly Investment Rs.18,34,00,000/- Acquired the shares of   
 known as SRS Entertainment Limited)   the Company to make it  
     wholly owned subsidiary

LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

The Company has not given guarantee in favour of any person/company during the financial year 2015-16. 

The Company has provided following loans and has made the following investments u/s 186 of the Companies Act, 2013: -

CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES
All contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the Company 
during the financial year with related parties were in the ordinary 
course of business and on an arm’s length basis. There being no 
‘material’ related party transactions as defined under the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 27 of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 hence, 
there are no details to be disclosed in Form AOC-2 in that regard.

CREDIT RATING
The Directors hereby inform you that due to liquidity crunch in the 
Company, ICRA Limited has revised its ratings to the Bank Facilities 
and Fixed Deposits of the Company as under:

1. Long Term rating (Fund Based) -      ICRA D 
2. Short Term rating (Non-Fund Based)   -      ICRA D
3. Fixed Deposit (Medium Term)              -      MD

FIXED DEPOSITS
The Company has accepted Public Deposits/Fixed Deposits 
amounting to Rs. 7689.75 Lacs during the year under review after 
complying with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. During 
the Year Rs.196 Lacs were paid prematurely and the balance as on 
31st March, 2016 is Rs.9492.70 Lacs.

The Company has issued the Circular or Circular in the form of 
Advertisement inviting Deposits, pursuant to section 73 (2) (a) and 
section 76 read with rule 4(1) and 4(2) of the Companies 
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 which was in continuation of 
earlier Form DPT-1 dated 6th August, 2015 & Addendum to Form 
DPT-1 dated 15th December, 2015. . 

Due to liquidity crunch in the Company, the Company was not able 
to maintain liquid assets for the year ended 31st March, 2016 as 
required under Rule 13 of the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) 
Rules, 2014. 

The Company has been regular in repayment of Principal Amounts 
till mid of April, 2016. But after that there is a default in repayment 
of principal amounts. However, Interest is being paid regularly.

The Company has filed the petition for getting extension of time for 
repayment of Principal Amount as well as exemption from creating 
reserve of 15% as required under Rule 13 of the Companies 
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 from the National Company 
Law Tribunal, Principal Bench, New Delhi.

UNCLAIMED REFUND & INTEREST ON REFUND ACCOUNT    
The Company has Rs.1,49,900/- as unclaimed in the Refund 
Account and Rs.29, 277/- as unclaimed in the Interest on Refund 
Account maintained with the State Bank of India, for IPO of the 
Company as on 31st March, 2016.

AUDITORS
Statutory Auditors
M/s. S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co., Chartered Accountants and M/s. 
Rakesh Raj & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Joint Statutory 
Auditors of the Company have tendered their resignation letters 
dated 20th August, 2016. The Board has accepted their resignations 
in their meeting held on 24th August, 2016.

The Board has filled the casual vacancy by appointing M/s. SVP & 
Associates, Chartered Accountants and M/s. Oswal Sunil & 
Company, Chartered Accountants as a Joint Statutory Auditors of 
the Company in their meeting held on 24th August, 2016.

M/s. SVP & Associates, Chartered Accountants and M/s. Oswal Sunil 
& Company, Chartered Accountants have given their consent and 
confirmed that their appointment, if made, in the AGM will be 
within the prescribed limits under Section 141(3) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and they are not disqualified for such appointment within 
the meaning of Section 141 of the said Act. 

Internal Auditors
Presently, the following firms of Chartered Accountants are the 
Internal Auditors of the Company: 
M/s. Love Mangla & Co.
M/s. Sumit Chhabra & Co.
M/s. SRGM & Associates

Secretarial Auditor
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board has appointed Ms. 
Savita Trehan, Company Secretary in practice, to undertake the 
Secretarial Audit of the Company. 

Secretarial Audit Report for the year 2015-16 given by Ms. Savita 
Trehan in the prescribed form MR-3 is annexed to this Report as 
Annexure-I.

AUDITORS’ REPORT 
The Joint Statutory Auditors’ M/s. S. S. Kothari Mehta & Co., 
Chartered Accountants and M/s. Rakesh Raj & Associates, Chartered 
Accountants, have given the following two Qualifications in Joint 
Statutory Audit Report: 
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I. Trade Receivables at UAE Branch includes an amount  of Rs.34,272
 Lacs on account of sale to parties, during the year in UAE 
(including an amount of Rs.14,756 Lacs on account of sale to 
parties from inventories sent through NSEZ unit of the 
company located in India to UAE Branch through Branch 
Transfer), which are unsecured/not backed up by any security.

 Hence, the Auditors’ are unable to form an opinion on the 
recoverability of the same & consequent impact on the profit
 of the Company for the quarter/year ended 31st March 2016.

Management's estimation on the impact of audit quali�cation: 
'Nil' as per management in view of the following:

 There are Trade Receivables at UAE Branch amounting to 

Rs.34, 272 Lacs on account of sale to parties, during the year in 

UAE (including an amount of Rs.14, 756 lacs on account of sale 

to parties from inventories sent through NSEZ unit of the 

company located in India to UAE Branch through Branch 

Transfer and Rs.19,516 lacs on account of local sale to parties 

by the UAE Branch).

 Trade receivables of Rs.14,756 lacs on account of sale to 

parties from inventories sent through NSEZ are within the 

limit as prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) in terms 

of its Master Circular No. 14/2015-16 dated July 01, 2015. 

Moreover, the Company has a good track record of recovery 

from the overseas debtors since inception of overseas trade. 

An outstanding of Rs.23, 062 lacs standing as at 31st March 

2015 on account of direct sale to parties from NSEZ unit of the 

company was fully recovered in the first six months of current 

financial year ended 31st March 2016. 

 Further, Remaining Trade Receivables amounting to Rs.19,516 

lacs on account of local sale to parties by the UAE Branch is 

outstanding for less than six month which would be recovered 

in due course of time. There is a general practice in the local 

market of UAE to trade on unsecured basis. In the same way, 

company has unsecured trade payables amounting to 

Rs.19,717 lacs on account of local purchase from the parties by 
the UAE Branch.

II.  Deposit Repayment Reserve Account for the Fixed deposits at 
the close of the year, required under Section 73(2)(c) of the 
Companies Act,2013  equal to 15% of the deposits maturing in 
the year & year following were found short by Rs.1,158 Lacs.

 The Auditors’ are unable to comment on the financial 
implications in respect of the same.

 The Secretarial Auditor Ms. Savita Trehan has also mentioned 
this qualification in her Secretarial Audit Report. 

 Management's estimation on the impact of audit quali�cation:
 'Nil' as per management in view of the following:

The Company was not able to maintain funds in the liquid 

assets as required under the provisions of Section 73(2)(c) 

read with Rule 13 of the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) 

Rules, 2014 due to Jewellers strike initiated against 1% levy of 

excise duty in Budget of Financial Year 2016-17, which has 
highly impacted the jewellery business of the Company and 
there is severe loss of revenues, profits and liquidity issues.

 The Company has filed the petition for getting extension of 
time for repayment of Principal Amount as well as exemption 
from creating reserve of 15% as required under Rule 13 of the 
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 from the 
National Company Law Tribunal, Principal Bench, New Delhi.

 The auditors have not reported any incident of fraud to the 
Audit Committee during the financial year 2015-16.

SUBSIDIARIES AND BRANCHES
The Company has acquired 100% shareholding in SRS 
Entertainment India Limited (Formerly known as SRS 
Entertainment Limited) by making investment of Rs.1,34,25,000/-  
in this  Company  on 2nd January, 2016  for expansion of its  Cinema 
Business. On 31st March, 2016, the Company had investment of Rs.1, 
83, 40,000/- in this Subsidiary Company.

The Company is also having Wholly Owned Subsidiary in the name 
of “SRS Worldwide (FZC) at  Sharjah Airport International Free Zone 
(SAIF Zone), Sharjah.

The Company is also having Branch at Sharjah Airport International 
Free Zone (SAIF Zone), Sharjah, UAE for its jewellery business. 

A report on the performance and financial position of each of the 
subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statement is set 
out herein as Annexure-II in the Form-AOC-1

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In compliance with Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Accounting Standard – 21 on Consolidated Financial Statements, 
this Annual Report also includes Consolidated Financial Statements 
for the year 2015-16.

Further, the Annual Accounts and related documents of the 
subsidiary company shall be kept open for inspection at the 
Registered & Corporate Office of the Company. The Company will 
also make available copy thereof upon specific request by any 
Member of the Company interested in obtaining the same.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
The extract of the annual return as provided under sub-section (3) 
of section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed to this report 
as Annexure - III.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES
In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act , 
2013 read with sub-rules (2) and (3) of Rule 5 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014, there are no employees drawing remuneration in excess of 
the limits set out in the said Rules.

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as 
required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014 are provided here in below:-
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S.
No.

Name of
Directors / KMPs

Nature of
Directorship

Ratio

1. Sh. Sunil Jindal  Managing Director  -

2. Sh. Raju Bansal Whole-Time Director  -

3. Sh. Bhagwan Dass Chief Financial Officer 2.13%

4. Dr. (Ms.) Navneet C.O.O. &  2.13%
 Kwatra Company Secretary 

i) the ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median

 remuneration of the employees of the Company for the year

 2015-16:

(ii)  the percentage increase in remuneration of Managing 

Director, Whole-Time Director & CFO and Company Secretary 

in the financial year 2015-2016:

As the jewellery strike has badly impacted the Company and the 

Company’s operating cycle remained disrupted for the last 2-3 

months. The debtors realization of jewellery segment too was 

negligible.  All such things cumulatively affected the cash flows of 

the Company severely. 

Therefore, for better efficiency in the long-term and for overall 

good of the Company, the remuneration of all the Key managerial 

Personnel’s of the Company i.e. the Chairman, Managing Director, 

Executive Directors, C.O.O & Company Secretary, Chief Finance 

Officer and Chief Accounts Officer were reduced w. e. f. 1st June, 

2016. 

All the KMPs gave their consent for the same. 

Further, there was no increase in the remuneration of 

Non-Executive Directors by way of sitting fee for attending 

Board/Committee meetings for the financial year 2015-16. No 

profit linked commission is paid to Non-Executive independent 

Directors of the Company.

(iii)  the percentage increase in the median remuneration of 

employees during the financial year was 0.86 %.

(iv)  the number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company 

as on 31st March, 2016 is 1883.

(v)   there is no employee receiving remuneration in excess of the 

highest paid Director during the year: 

(vi)  yes, the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the 

Company:

VIGIL MECHANISIM 
The details of Vigil mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy are given in 

Corporate Governance Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT PLAN
For better corporate governance and in compliance with the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015  , the Company has 

adopted Risk Management Plan. The same is uploaded at the 

website of the Company www.srsparivar.com.

LISTING AGREEMENT
The Company has executed New Listing Agreement as per SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 with BSE & NSE in the Board Meeting held on 12th February, 

2016. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)  
The Company has Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy for 

your Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, on the recommendations of the 

CSR Committee.

Under the Corporate Social Responsibility, the Company has started 

various initiatives like:

‘BETI BACHAO BETI PADHAO’ MISSION under which, the following 

was done
• An amount of Rs.10, 000/- in the form of Fixed Deposit for 1st 

girl child and Fixed Deposit of Rs.15, 000/- in case of 2nd girl 

child (already having one girl child) was gifted to the parents 

of a Girl Child born in SRS Sunflag Hospital, Sector-16A, 

Faridabad

• Free education for all the girl students of all the classes of 

Govt. Senior Secondary School, Village Firozpur Kalan, 

Ballabgarh, Faridabad i.e. all type of fees - admission fees, 

tuition fees, examination fees etc. charged by the school for all 

the girl students has been paid by the Company under its CSR 

programme and further, books, note books, bag and required 

stationery items were provided to them at the time of 

admission/promotion to a class.

S.
No.

Name of
Directors

Nature of
Directorship

Ratio

1. Dr. Anil Jindal Chairman (Executive) 128:1 

2. Sh. Sunil Jindal Managing Director 68:1 

3. Sh. Raju Bansal Whole-Time Director  42:1 

4. Sh. Vinod Kumar Whole-Time Director 42:1 

S.
No. Name Designation

Revised
Remuneration
(p.m.) (in Rs.) 

1. Dr. Anil Jindal Chairman (Executive) 3,50,000/-

2. Sh. Sunil Jindal Managing Director 2,00,000/-

3. Sh. Raju Bansal Whole-Time Director 1,25,000/-

4. Sh. Vinod Kumar Whole-Time Director 1,25,000/-

5. Sh. Bhagwan Dass Chief Accounts Officer 1,00,000/-

5. Dr. (Ms.) Navneet C.O.O. & 1,00,000/-
 Kwatra  Company Secretary

6. Ms. Seema Narang  Chief Accounts Officer  1,00,000/-
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Particulars
For the year ended

31st  March, 2016 31st  March, 2015

₹ in Lacs

Advertisement  - 0.05

Bank Charges & 5.91 5.74
other �nancial expenses

Insurance Expenses 0.51 0.04

Lease Rent paid 2.57 0.41

Legal & Professional
Expenses 0.15 0.87

Miscellaneous Expenses 0.05 0.14

Rates & Taxes 19.87 0.29

Other Operational 39.13 -
Expense 

Security & House Keeping 0.21 0.03

Travelling & Conveyance - 4.04
Expenses 

Total 68.40 11.61

The following incentives were offered to the Girl Children admitted 
in SRS International School:

 50% of Admission fees and 50% of Tuition fees of 1st Hundred 
(100) Girl Children, 25% of Admission fees and 25% of Tuition 
fees of next Hundred (101-200) Girl Children,  and

 25% of Admission fees and 10% of Tuition fees of every Girl 
Child (201 and above), was borne by SRS Limited under its 
CSR activity  These incentive are provided for a period of 3 
years.

‘SRS-Swachchh Faridabad-Smart Faridabad’ initiative started from
sector-14, Faridabad and included the following activities: - 

 Placing of dustbins in Parks, Road side areas, Markets and at 
such other places where the need is felt;

 Maintenance of Parks; 

 Construction & Maintenance of Toilets in Parks, Markets and 
other Public Places;

 Purchase & running of Tractors with Trolleys, Automatic Dust 
Collecting Machine etc. Hand carts, Wipers, Spades (Phawras), 
Gaintees, Hammers, Jharoos etc. for collection of garbage,  
medicinal spray as a precautionary measure for dengue, 
malaria etc., watering the plants etc.;

 Plantation Activities by planting plants at different places, 
maintaining the same and/or sponsoring any such activity.

Development of Village Ferozepur Kalan, Ballabgarh, 
Faridabad

The Annual Report on the CSR Activities undertaken by the 
Company during the financial year is enclosed herewith as 
Annexure-IV

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
Energy Conservation
With the ideology of adhering to preservation and conservation of 
natural resources, we continue being environmentally responsible 
and energy efficient. We are committed to do its bit towards 
protection of environment and after taking positive steps in this 
area, the Company is keeping up its efforts to enhance its 
sustainable footprint. The following initiatives have been taken in 
this area: 

 Replaced 100% CFLs and CDMTs into low consuming LED 
lights at SRS Mall and all the outlets of SRS Value Bazaar. By 
this we can achieve optimum conservation of electricity. 

 Installed Air Cooled Fluid Cooler for 1010 KVA DG set for lower 
fuel consumption

 Rain Water Harvesting System is in place for re-using rain 
water.

 Zero water discharge status from SRS Mall area and are in a 
position to harvest every drop of rain water, that will improve 
the ground water substantially. 

 Installed latest technology Energy Star Rating HVAC items for 
reduced electricity consumption

 Regularly & timely servicing of all DG sets  and equipment for 
lower fuel consumption

 Increased green area around the mall, which is not only 
environmentally friendly but also helps control the 
temperature.

 Recycling of water by  Ist  using for fountains & then same 
water used for gardening purpose. This water is not drain in 
sewer/drain lines. 

 Cleaning of surrounding parking as mission of Swachchh 
Faridabad. 

 Timings reduced of running units to be controlled in early 
morning & late night. morning & late night. 

ii)  Technology Absorption   :   Nil

iii) Foreign Exchange Earning & Outgo
       Earning in foreign Currency:

Expenditure in foreign Currency: 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Directors of the Company confirm the 
following: - 

(a) that in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year 
ended 31st March 2016, the applicable accounting standards 
had been followed along with proper explanation relating to 
material departures;

(b) that the directors had selected such accounting policies and 
applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true 
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end 
of the financial year an of the profit and loss of the Company 
for that period;

(c) that the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the

Particulars
For the year ended

31st  March, 2016 31st  March, 2015

Export of goods 51,337.52 56,644.63

₹ in Lacs
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(Sunil Jindal)
Managing Director

DIN: 00013791

 (Raju Bansal)
Whole-Time Director 

 DIN: 00007344
 

 maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 
other irregularities;

(d) that the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a 
going concern basis;

(e) that the directors had laid down internal financial controls to 
be followed by the Company and that such internal financial 
controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(f ) that the directors had devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 
such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

DETAILS ON INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS RELATED TO FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

Your Company has put in place adequate internal financial controls 
with reference to the financial statements, some of which are 
outlined below:

Your Company has adopted accounting policies which are in line 
with the Accounting Standards prescribed in the Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 that continue to apply under 
Section 133 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 to the extent applicable. These are in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles in India. Changes in 
policies, if any, are approved by the Audit Committee in 
consultation with the Auditors.

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT 
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 
2013
Your Company has a policy for the prevention of sexual harassment 
which has been implemented at unit level. It ensures prevention 
and deterrence towards the commissioning of acts of sexual 
harassment and communicates procedures for their resolution and 
settlement. A Committee has been constituted in accordance with 
the requirements under the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 which 
ensures implementation and compliance with the Law as well as 
the policy at unit level. 

During the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to 
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

SIGNIFICANT/MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS
There are no significant/material orders passed by the Regulators 
or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status of your 
Company and its operations in future.

PENALTY FOR NON-COMPLIANCE OF REGULATION 33 OF THE SEBI 
(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) 
REGULATIONS, 2015
The Company has paid penalty of Rs.45,000/- each to BSE & NSE for 
delay in filing of Quarterly/Annual Results for the year ended 31st 

March, 2016 by 9 days.   

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
The report on Corporate Governance together with the certificate 
from Ms. Savita Trehan, Practicing Company Secretary [FCS 
No.4374], confirming the compliance of the Corporate Governance 
is annexed to this report for information of the Members.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
The Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report of financial 
condition and results of operations of the Company is given as a 
separate statement forming part of this Annual Report.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
The Board places its warm appreciation to all the Shareowners, 
Bankers, Auditors, Customers, employees and all other associates 
who supported and  stood with the Company in this challenging 
times.

For and on behalf of the Board
Place: Faridabad

Date: 24th August,  2016
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To
The Members
SRS LIMITED
SRS Tower, 305 & 307, 3rd Floor,
Near Metro Station Mewla Maharajpur,
G. T. Road, Faridabad. 

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliances of 
applicable statutory provisions and adherence to good corporate 
practices by M/s. SRS LIMITED (CIN:  L74999HR2000PLC040183) 
(hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted 
in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my 
opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms 
and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company 
and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, 
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my  opinion, the company 
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 
31st March, 2016, complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes 
and compliance mechanism is in place to the extent, in the manner 
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by M/s. SRS Limited for 
the financial year ended on 31st March, 2016 according to the 
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the rules made 
thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and 
the rules made thereunder; 

(iii) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and 
regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct 
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 
Commercial Borrowings; 

(iv) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI 
Act’) viz. :- 

 a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial 
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

 b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

 c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of 
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

 d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015.

(v) Other laws which are specifically applicable to the Company.
And hereby certify that the company has made compliance 
with all the provisions of the above said Act(s) and 
Regulations.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the 
following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India 

(ii)   Listing Aggreement entered into by the Company with BSE Ltd. 
and NSE read with SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 

During the period under review the Company has complied with 
the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc. 
mentioned above.

I further report that, as per the nature of activities carried on by the 
Company during the period under audit, the following Acts, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. are not applicable to the 
Company during the audit period:

a) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws 
framed thereunder;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock 
Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) 
Guidelines, 1999;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity 
Shares) Regulations, 2009;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of 
Securities) Regulations, 1998;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an 
Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding 
the Companies Act and dealing with Client;

I further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with 
proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and  
Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the 
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review 
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board 
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were generally 
sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the financial year ended 31st  March, 2016

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

Annexure I to Board’s Report and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda 
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the 
meeting.

All decisions of Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are 
carried out unanimously as recorded in the Minutes of the 
Meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee(s) of the Board, as 
the case may be. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in 
the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the 
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 
rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period following specific 
events/actions were taken by the Company which have major 
bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the act, rules, 
regulations, guidelines, standards etc. referred above:

a) The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 
11th May, 2015 has declared the Bonus Issue of Equity Shares 
to the existing shareholders in the ratio of 1:1, subject to the 
requisite approval of the shareholders and other competent 
authorities and to absorb the bonus issue, the Company has 
also decided to increase the Authorized Share Capital of the 
Company from Rs.150 Crores to Rs.280 Crores by way of Postal 
Ballot in terms of Section 110 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 
2014.

 The issue of Equity shares by way of Bonus and increase in 
Authorized Share Capital has been approved by the 

Shareholders by way of Postal Ballot on 13th June, 2015 and 
the Allotment of Bonus Shares was made on 29th June, 2015 
after getting In-Principle Approval from BSE & NSE on 15th 
June, 2015.

 The Company has got the Listing & Trading Approvals from 
BSE & NSE on 1st July, 2015 and 3rd July, 2015, respectively and 
the trading of Shares commenced on 6th July, 2015 at both the 
exchanges.   

 The Company has neither issued equity shares with 
differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise; nor 
issued any shares (including sweat equity shares) under 
ESOP/ESPS scheme for its employees/Directors.

b)  Deposit Repayment Reserve Account for the fixed deposits at 
the close of the year, as required under section 73(2)(c) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 equal to 15% of the deposits maturing in 
the year & year following were found short by Rs.1360 Lacs.

Date: 24th August, 2016
Place: Faridabad   

   (Savita Trehan)
   Practicing Company Secretary 

C.P. No.2569|
 M.No.4374
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To
The Members
SRS LIMITED
SRS Tower, 305 & 307, 3rd Floor,
Near Metro Station Mewla Maharajpur,
G. T. Road, Faridabad. 

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliances of 
applicable statutory provisions and adherence to good corporate 
practices by M/s. SRS LIMITED (CIN:  L74999HR2000PLC040183) 
(hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted 
in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my 
opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms 
and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company 
and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, 
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my  opinion, the company 
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 
31st March, 2016, complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes 
and compliance mechanism is in place to the extent, in the manner 
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by M/s. SRS Limited for 
the financial year ended on 31st March, 2016 according to the 
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the rules made 
thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and 
the rules made thereunder; 

(iii) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and 
regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct 
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 
Commercial Borrowings; 

(iv) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI 
Act’) viz. :- 

 a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial 
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

 b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

 c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of 
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

 d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015.

(v) Other laws which are specifically applicable to the Company.
And hereby certify that the company has made compliance 
with all the provisions of the above said Act(s) and 
Regulations.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the 
following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India 

(ii)   Listing Aggreement entered into by the Company with BSE Ltd. 
and NSE read with SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 

During the period under review the Company has complied with 
the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc. 
mentioned above.

I further report that, as per the nature of activities carried on by the 
Company during the period under audit, the following Acts, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. are not applicable to the 
Company during the audit period:

a) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws 
framed thereunder;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock 
Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) 
Guidelines, 1999;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity 
Shares) Regulations, 2009;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of 
Securities) Regulations, 1998;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an 
Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding 
the Companies Act and dealing with Client;

I further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with 
proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and  
Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the 
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review 
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board 
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were generally 
sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking 

and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda 
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the 
meeting.

All decisions of Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are 
carried out unanimously as recorded in the Minutes of the 
Meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee(s) of the Board, as 
the case may be. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in 
the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the 
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 
rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period following specific 
events/actions were taken by the Company which have major 
bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the act, rules, 
regulations, guidelines, standards etc. referred above:

a) The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 
11th May, 2015 has declared the Bonus Issue of Equity Shares 
to the existing shareholders in the ratio of 1:1, subject to the 
requisite approval of the shareholders and other competent 
authorities and to absorb the bonus issue, the Company has 
also decided to increase the Authorized Share Capital of the 
Company from Rs.150 Crores to Rs.280 Crores by way of Postal 
Ballot in terms of Section 110 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 
2014.

 The issue of Equity shares by way of Bonus and increase in 
Authorized Share Capital has been approved by the 

Shareholders by way of Postal Ballot on 13th June, 2015 and 
the Allotment of Bonus Shares was made on 29th June, 2015 
after getting In-Principle Approval from BSE & NSE on 15th 
June, 2015.

 The Company has got the Listing & Trading Approvals from 
BSE & NSE on 1st July, 2015 and 3rd July, 2015, respectively and 
the trading of Shares commenced on 6th July, 2015 at both the 
exchanges.   

 The Company has neither issued equity shares with 
differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise; nor 
issued any shares (including sweat equity shares) under 
ESOP/ESPS scheme for its employees/Directors.

b)  Deposit Repayment Reserve Account for the fixed deposits at 
the close of the year, as required under section 73(2)(c) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 equal to 15% of the deposits maturing in 
the year & year following were found short by Rs.1360 Lacs.

Date: 24th August, 2016
Place: Faridabad   

   (Savita Trehan)
   Practicing Company Secretary 

C.P. No.2569|
 M.No.4374

Note: This report is to be read with the notes of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.
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To
The Members
SRS LIMITED
SRS Tower, 305 & 307, 3rd Floor,
Near Metro Station Mewla Maharajpur,
G. T. Road, Faridabad. 

Dear Sir/Ma’m

My Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2015-16 of even date is to be read along with the following notes:

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the 
contents of the Secretarial records. 

 The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and 
practices I followed, provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records, personal records of employee(s) and Books of Accounts of 
the Company.

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and 
happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of 
management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

Date: 24th August, 2016    (Savita Trehan)
Place: Faridabad      Practicing Company Secretary

C.P. No.2569
 M.No.4374

(Savita Trehan)
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Annexure II to Board’s Report

Form AOC-I

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the �nancial statement of
subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

Name of the subsidiary

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from 
the holding company’s reporting period.

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the 
relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries. 

Share capital 

Reserves & surplus

Total assets

Total Liabilities

Investments

Turnover

Profit before taxation

Provision for taxation

Profit after taxation

Proposed Dividend

% of shareholding

 SRS Worldwide (FZC)

 1st April 2015 to 31st  March 2016, the period is same as of the 
holding company

 Reporting Currency : AED
Exchange Rate : Rs.18.02

 Rs.92,96,250/-

Rs.27,09,22,726/-

Rs.28,71,44,302/-

Rs.69,25,326/-

Nil

 Rs.3,85,00,79,620/-

Rs.24,43,38,179/-

Nil

 Rs. 24,43,38,179/-

Nil

100 %

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from 
the holding company’s reporting period.\

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the 
relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries. 

Share capital 

Reserves & surplus

Total assets

Total Liabilities

Investments

Turnover

Profit before taxation

Provision for taxation

Profit after taxation

Proposed Dividend

% of shareholding

 1st April 2015 to 31st  March 2016, the period is same as of the 
holding company

Reporting Currency :INR

Rs.18,34,00,000/-

(-) Rs.1,87,37,750/-

Rs.22,21,69,439/-

Rs.5,75,07,189/-

Nil

 Rs.8,75,88,887/-

(-) Rs.2,70,72,266/-

(-) Rs.83,00,910/-

(-) Rs.1,87,71,356/-

Nil

100 %
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Annexure III to Board’s Report

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2016

[Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014

 i) CIN - L74999HR2000PLC040183

 ii) Registration Date - 29th August, 2000

 iii) Name of the Company - SRS Limited

 iv) Category/Sub-Category of the Company - Company limited by Shares/ Indian Non-Government Company

 v) Address of the Regd. Office - SRS Tower, 305 & 307, 3rd Floor,
  And contact details  Near Metro Station Mewla Maharajpur,
    G.T. Road, Faridabad, NCR Delhi-121003
    Ph#0129-4323100        Fax#0129-4323195

    Ms. Mamta Rastogi
    Deputy Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
    Ph#0129-4323119   Fax#0129-4323105

 vi) Whether Listed Company - YES

 vii) Name, Address and Contact of the Registrar - Mr. Punit Mittal – General Manager
    Beetal Financial & Computer Services (P) Ltd.
    Beetal House, 3rd Floor, 99 Madangir, 
    Behind Local Shopping Centre,
    Near Dada Harsukh Dass Mandir, New Delhi-110062
    Ph#011-29961281        Fax#011-29961284

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company are: - 

Sl. No. Name and Description of main products/services NIC Code of the product/service % to total turnover of the Company

1. Gold & Jewellery 32111 90.81

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

S. No. Name & Address of the Company CIN Holding/Subsidiary/ % of shares Applicable
   Associate held Section

1. BTL Holding Company Limited U65929HR1993PLC053518 Holding 55.09 2(46)
 SRS Tower, 725, 7th Floor, Near
 Metro Station Mewla Maharajpur,
 G. T. Road, Faridabad, NCR Delhi

2. SRS Worldwide (FZC)  A Free Zone Company registered Subsidiary  100 2 (87)(ii)
 Executive Suite Q1-1-017,  with Sharjah Airport International
 P. O. Box:8637, SAIF Zone, Sharjah Free Zone Authority (SAIF Zone), 
 International Airport, Sharjah, Sharjah having License Nos. 14557
 UAE for general trading and 14558 for
   trading in Gold, Diamond, Precious
   Metals and Jewellery 

3. SRS Entertainment India Limited U92490HR2014PLC053358 Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)
 (Formerly known as
 SRS Entertainment Limited)
 SRS Tower, 5th Floor, Near Metro
 Station Mewla Maharajpur,
 G. T. Road, Faridabad, NCR Delhi 
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IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Break-up as percentage of Total Equity)

i)  Category-wise Share holding

A. Promoters

1. Indian         
a) Individual/HUF 200 0 200 0.00 90400 0 90400 0.03 0.03
b) Central Govt. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
c) State Govt. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
d) Body Corporate 93510930 0 93510930 67.13 187021860 0 187021860 67.13 0.00
e) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
f) Any Other Directors & their
 Relatives 9625000 0 9625000 6.91 19160000 0 19160000 6.88 (0.03)

 Sub-Total (A) (1) 103136130 0 103136130 74.04 206272260 0 206272260 74.04 0.00

2. Foreign

a) NRIs-Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
b) Other-Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
c) Bodies Corporate 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
d) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
e) Any Other 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

 Sub-Total (A) (2) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

 Total Shareholding of 103136130 0 103136130 74.04 206272260 0 206272260 74.04 0.00
 Promoter (A) = A(1) + A (2) 

B. Public Shareholding

1. Institutions         

a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

b) Banks/FI 9955382 0 9955382 7.15 17081616 0 17081616 6.1316 (1.0184

c) Central Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00

d) State Govt.(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00

e)  Venture Capital funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00

f) Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0 1538400 0 1538400 0.5522 0.5522

g) FIIs 23800 0 23800 0.017 13700 0 13700 0.0049 (0.0121)

h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

i) Others  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 Sub-Total (B) (1) 9979182 0 9979182 7.167 18633716 0 18633716 6.6888 (0.4782)

(3)   Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corporate

i) Indian 20439451 0 20439451 14.67 30995946 0 30995946 11.1263 (-3.5437)
ii) Overseas 

b) Individuals
i)  Individual shareholders 2536176 19177 2555353 1.83 14469399 19608 14489007 5.2009 3.3709
 holding nominal share
 capital upto Rs.1 Lakh 

ii) Individual shareholders 2656290 0 2656290 1.91 6127490 19600 6147090 2.2065 0.2965
 holding nominal share
 capital in excess of Rs.1 Lakh

c) Others
 Directors & their relatives 98763 0 98763 0.07 172876 0 172876 0.006 (-0.064)
 NRIs 73606 0 73606 0.05 721060 0 721060 0.2588 0.2088
 Clearing Members 44222 0 44222 0.03 344036 0 344036 0.1235 0.0935
 HUF 308016 0 308016 0.22 806035 0 806035 0.2893 0.0693

 Sub-Total (B) (3) 26156524 19177 26175701 18.79 53636842 39208 53676050 19.2113

 Total Public Shareholding 36135706 19177 36154883 25.96 72270558 39208 72309766 25.96 0
 (B) = B(1) + B(2) + B(3) 

C. Shares held by Custodian for 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
 GDRs & ADRs 

 Grand Total (A+B+C) 139271836 19177 139291013 100 278542818 39208 278582026 100 0

Category of Shareholders
No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year

Demat Physical Total % of Total
Shares Demat Physical Total % of Total

Shares

% change
during

the year
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ii.  Shareholding of Promoters

ii)  Change in Promoters’ Shareholding

1. Raju Gupta 200 0.00 0.00 400 0.00 0.00 0.00

2. Vinod Kumar 100 0.00 0.00 200 0.00 0.00 0.00

3. Vinod Jindal 20000 0.01 0.00 40000 0.01 0.00 0.00

4. Naresh Kumar Goyal 45000 0.03 0.00 90000 0.03 0.00 0.00

5. Jitender Kumar Garg 45000 0.03 0.00 90000 0.03 0.00 0.00

6. Sunil Jindal 214100 0.15 0.00 428200 0.15 0.00 0.00

7. Bishan Bansal 778500 0.56 0.00 1557000 0.56 0.00 0.00

8. Raju Bansal 1811500 1.30 0.00 3623000 1.30 0.00 0.00

9. Anil Jindal 6710800 4.82 0.00 13421600 4.82 0.00 0.00

10. SRS Real Estate Limited 100 0.00 0.00 200 0.00 0.00 0.00

11. Neelabh Engineers Pvt. Ltd. 1650000 1.18 0.00 3300000 1.19 0.00 0.00

12. Madhav Tech India Pvt. Ltd. 2100000 1.51 0.00 4200000 1.51 0.00 0.00

13. SRS Hitech Projects Ltd. 2775000 1.99 0.00 0 0.00 0.00 (1.99)

14. Latest IT Solutions Ltd. 5071725 3.64 0.00 10143450 3.64 0.00 0.00
 (Formerly known as SRS IT
 Solutions Limited) 

15. SRS Knowledge & Technologies 5178200 3.72 0.00 15906400 5.71 0.00 1.99
 Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly known as
 SRS Knowledge & Technologies
 Limited) 

16. BTL Holding Company Ltd. 76735905 55.09 0.00 153471810 55.09 7.86 0.00

 TOTAL 103136130 74.04 0.00 206272260 74.04 7.86 0.00

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the beginning of the year*

S. No. Shareholder’s Name No. of % of Total % of shares No. of % of Total % of shares % change in
  Shares Shares  pledged/ Shares Shares of pledged/ shareholding
   of the encumbered  the  encumbered during
   Company to total shares  Company to total shares the year

1. Raju Gupta

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 200 0.00 103136130 74.04

Allotment  of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on 200 0.00 - -
29th June, 2015 

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 400 0.00 206272260 74.04
if separated during the year) 

Particulars

ParticularsS. No.

S. No.

2. Vinod Kumar

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 100 0.00 103136130 74.04

Allotment  of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on 100 0.00 - -
29th June, 2015 

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 200 0.00 206272260 74.04
if separated during the year) 

* Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 were allotted on 29th June, 2015
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ParticularsS. No.

3. Vinod Jindal

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 20000 0.01 103136130 74.04

Allotment  of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on 20000 0.01 - -
29th June, 2015 

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 40000 0.01 206272260 74.04
if separated during the year) 

ParticularsS. No.

4. Naresh Kumar Goyal

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 45000 0.03 103136130 74.04

Allotment  of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on 45000 0.03 - -
29th June, 2015 

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 90000 0.03 206272260 74.04
if separated during the year) 

ParticularsS. No.

5. Jitender Kumar Garg

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 45000 0.03 103136130 74.04

Allotment  of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on 45000 0.03 - -
29th June, 2015 

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 90000 0.03 206272260 74.04
if separated during the year) 

ParticularsS. No.

6. Sunil Jindal

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 214100 0.15 103136130 74.04

Allotment  of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on 214100 0.15 - -
29th June, 2015 

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 428200 0.15 206272260 74.04
if separated during the year) 

ParticularsS. No.

7. Bishan Bansal

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 778500 0.56 103136130 74.04

Allotment  of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on 778500 0.56 - -
29th June, 2015 

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 1557000 0.56 206272260 74.04
if separated during the year) 
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ParticularsS. No.

8. Raju Bansal

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 1811500 1.30 103136130 74.04

Allotment  of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on 1811500 1.30 - -
29th June, 2015 

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 3623000 1.30 206272260 74.04
if separated during the year) 

ParticularsS. No.

9. Anil Jindal

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 6710800 4.82 103136130 74.04

Allotment  of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on 6710800 4.82 - -
29th June, 2015 

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 13421600 4.82 206272260 74.04
if separated during the year) 

ParticularsS. No.

10. SRS Real Estate Limited

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 100 0.00 103136130 74.04

Allotment  of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on 100 0.00 - -
29th June, 2015 

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 200 0.00 206272260 74.04
if separated during the year) 

ParticularsS. No.

11. Neelabh Engineers Private Limited

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 1650000 1.19 103136130 74.04

Allotment  of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on 1650000 1.19 - -
29th June, 2015 

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 3300000 1.19 206272260 74.04
if separated during the year) 

ParticularsS. No.

12. Madhav Tech India Pvt. Ltd.

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 2100000 1.51 103136130 74.04

Allotment  of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on 2100000 1.51 - -
29th June, 2015 

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 4200000 1.51 206272260 74.04
if separated during the year) 
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ParticularsS. No.

13. SRS Hitech Projects Limited
 (Now known as Trishul Dream Homes Limited)

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 2775000 1.99 103136130 74.04

Allotment  of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on 2775000 1.99 - -
29th June, 2015

Sale of shares through inter promoter transfer-19.02.2016 5550000 1.99 - -

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, NIL 0.00 206272260 74.04
if separated during the year)

ParticularsS. No.

14. Latest IT Solutions Limited
 (Formerly known as SRS IT Solutions Limited)

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 5071725 3.64 103136130 74.04

Allotment  of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on 5071725 3.64 - -
29th June, 2015

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 10143450 3.64 206272260 74.04
if separated during the year)

ParticularsS. No.

15. SRS Knowledge & Technologies Private Limited
 (Formerly known as SRS Knowledge & Technologies Limited)

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 5178200 3.72 103136130 74.04

Allotment  of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on 5178200 3.72 - -
29th June, 2015

Purchase of shares through inter promoter transfer- 5550000 1.99 - -
19.02.2016  

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 15906400 5.71 206272260 74.04
if separated during the year)

ParticularsS. No.

16. BTL Holding Company Ltd.

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 76735905 55.09 103136130 74.04

Issue of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 allotted  76735905 55.09 - -
on 29th June, 2015 

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 153471810 55.09 206272260 74.04
if separated during the year) 
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iii) Shareholding Pattern of Top Ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters, and holders of GDRs & ADRs)

1. Union Bank of India

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 2300106 1.65 15248187 10.95
Sale of Shares  (10000) (0.21)
26.06.2015–10000

Allotment  of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on 2290106
29th June, 2015 4580212

Sale of Shares
10.07.2015-15000
27.11.2015-10000 (45000)
04.12.2015-20000

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 4535212 1.63 27485057 9.87
if separated during the year) 

Shareholder’s NameS. No.

2. Punjab National Bank

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 1724100 1.24 15248187 10.95

Allotment  of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on 1724100
29th June, 2015 3448200

Sale of Shares
27.11.2015-29937 (114937)
04.12.2015-85000

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 3333263 1.20 27485057 9.87
if separated during the year) 

Shareholder’s NameS. No.

3. Bennett, Coleman and Company Limited

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 1654809 1.19 15248187 10.95

Allotment  of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on 1654809 1.19  -  -
29th June, 2015 

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 3309618 1.19 27485057 9.87
if separated during the year) 

Shareholder’s NameS. No.
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4. Olympia Builders Private Limited

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 1450882 1.04 15248187 10.95\

Allotment  of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on  1450882 1.04  -  -
29th June, 2015

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 2901764 1.04 27485057 9.87
if separated during the year) 

Shareholder’s NameS. No.

5. Live Star Marketing Pvt. Ltd.

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 00 0.00 15248187 10.95

Purchase of Shares on 11.12.2015 2693002 0.97  -  -

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 2693002 0.97 27485057 9.87
if separated during the year) 

Shareholder’s NameS. No.

6. Cains Traders Private Limited

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 1338000 0.96 15248187 10.95

Allotment  of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on 1338000 0.96  -  -
29th June, 2015

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 2676000 0.96 27485057 9.87
if separated during the year) 

Shareholder’s NameS. No.

7. Central Bank of India

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 1328180 0.95 15248187 10.95

Allotment  of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on 1328180 0.95  -  -
29th June, 2015

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 2656360 0.95 27485057 9.87
if separated during the year) 

Shareholder’s NameS. No.

8. Roseview Finance & Investment Pvt. Ltd.

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 1102919 0.79 15248187 10.95

Allotment  of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on 1102919 0.79   -  -
29th June, 2015

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 2205838 0.79 27485057 9.87
if separated during the year) 

Shareholder’s NameS. No.
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9. Canara Bank

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 800000 0.57 15248187 10.95

Allotment  of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on 800000 0.57  -  -
29th June, 2015

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 1600000 0.57 27485057 9.87
if separated during the year) 

Shareholder’s NameS. No.

10. Punjab and Sind Bank

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 787000 0.57 15248187 10.95

Allotment  of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on 787000 0.57   -  -
29th June, 2015

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 1574000 0.57 27485057 9.87
if separated during the year) 

Shareholder’s NameS. No.

ParticularsS. No.

1. Dr. Anil Jindal (Chairman)

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 6710800 4.82 8852875 6.35

Allotment  of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 allotted 6710800 4.82 - -
on 29th June, 2015

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 13421600 4.82 17615750 6.32
if separated during the year) 

ParticularsS. No.

2. Sh. Sunil Jindal (Managing Director)

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 214100 0.15 8852875 6.35

Allotment  of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1  on 214100 0.15 - -
29th June, 2015

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 428200 0.15 17615750 6.32
if separated during the year)  

ParticularsS. No.

3. Sh. Raju Bansal (Whole-Time Director)

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 1811500 1.30 8852875 6.35

Allotment  of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on 1811500 1.30 - -
29th June, 2015

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 3623000 1.30 17615750 6.32
if separated during the year) 

iv)  Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
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ParticularsS. No.

4. Sh. Vinod Kumar (Whole-Time Director)

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 100 0.00 8852875 6.35

Allotment  of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on 100 0.00 - -
29th June, 2015

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 200 0.00 17615750 6.32
if separated during the year) 

ParticularsS. No.

5. Sh. Jitender Kumar Garg (Non-Executive Director)

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 45000 0.03 8852875 6.35

Allotment  of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on 45000 0.03 - -
29th June, 2015

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 90000 0.03 17615750 6.32
if separated during the year) 

ParticularsS. No.

6. Sh. Shiv Mohan Gupta (Independent Director)

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 13625 0.010 8852875 6.35

Allotment  of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on 13625 0.010 - -
29th June, 2015

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 27250 0.010 17615750 6.32
if separated during the year) 

ParticularsS. No.

7. Dr. Navneet Kwatra (C.O.O. & Company Secretary)

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares
of the Company No. of Shares % of total shares

of the Company

At the beginning of the year 12750 0.009 8852875 6.35

Allotment  of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on 12750 0.009 - -
29th June, 2015

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, 25500 0.009 17615750 6.32
if separated during the year) 
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  Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits  Total
  excluding Deposits Loans   Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning
of the �nancial year

i. Principal Amount 51,918.81 13.82 8,276.50 60,209.13
ii. Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 103.51 - 234.57 338.08

Total (i + ii + iii) 52,022.32 13.82 8,511.07 60,547.21

Change in indebtedness during
the financial year
 • Addition 15,448.78 - 7,996.30 23,445.08
 • Reduction (6,611.54) (13.82) (6,617.82) (13,243.18)

Net Change 8,837.24 (13.82) 1,378.48 10,201.90

Indebtedness at the end of
the financial year
 i. Principal Amount 60,763.07 - 9,492.70 70,255.77
 ii. Interest due but not paid - - - -
 iii. Interest accrued but not due 96.49 - 396.85 493.34

Total (i + ii + iii) 60,859.56 - 9,889.55 70,749.11

V.  INDEBTEDNESS
  Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A.  Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-Time Directors and/or Manager

S. No. Particulars of Remuneration Dr. Anil Jindal Sh. Sunil Jindal Sh. Raju Bansal  Sh. Vinod Kumar Total  
   (Executive (Managing  (Whole-Time   (Whole-Time  Amount 
   Chairman) Director) Director)  Director)

1. Gross Salary
 a) Salary as per provisions
  contained in section 17 (1) 89,62,980 48,00,000 29,85,600  29,85,600 1,97,34,180
  of the Income Tax Act, 1961

 b) Value of perquisites u/s
  17 (2) of the Income Tax  -  -  -  - -
  Act, 1961

 c) Profits in lieu of salary
  under section 17(3) of the  -  -  -  -  -
  Income Tax Act, 1961 

2. Stock Option  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL

3. Sweat Equity  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL

4. Commission  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL
 - As % of Profit
 - Others, specify

5. Others    NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL

 Total (A) 89,62,980 48,00,000 29,85,600 29,85,600  1,97,34,180

 Ceiling as per the Act     2,10,52,723 
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B.  Remuneration to other Directors

S. No. Particulars of Remuneration Sh. Shiv Mohan Sh. Praveen Sh. Nishant     Sh. Jogindar  Total 
    Gupta Gupta Goel Lal Chhabra Amount 

1. Independent Directors

 • Fees for attending Board 114000 102000 48000 102000 366000
  Meetings

 • Fees for attending 15000 10000 7500 25000 57500
  committee meetings

 • Commission

 • Others

 Total (1) 129000  112000 55500 127000 423500

S. No. Particulars of Remuneration Sh. Lalit Mrs. Anjali  Mrs. Divya   CA Mrs. Sangeeta  Total 
    Kumar Trehan Gupta Adlakha Amount 

2. Independent Directors

 • Fees for attending Board 102000 78000 6000 48000 34000 
  Meetings

 • Fees for attending 15000 - - 7500 22500
  committee meetings

 • Commission

 • Others

 Total (2) 117000 78000 6000 55500 256500

S. No. Particulars of Remuneration  Sh. Jitender Sh. Ankit   Sh. Praveen Total 
     Kumar Garg Garg Kumar Kapoor Amount 

3. Other Non-Executive Directors

 • Fees for attending Board  102000 72000 18000 192000
  Meetings

 • Fees for attending  50000 - - 50000
  committee meetings

 • Commission

 • Others

 Total (3)  152000 72000 18000 242000

 Total (B=1+2+3)  922000

 Total Managerial Remuneration (A+B)  20656180

 Overall ceiling as per the Act For Executive Directors-Rs. 2,10,52,723/-
   For Non-Executive/Independent Directors- Rs.1,00,000 for attending
   each  meeting of Board of Directors or Committee Meetings 

₹ in Lacs

₹ in Lacs
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    Details of Penalty Authority  Appeal 
Type  Section of the Act Brief / Punishment/ (RD/NCLT/  made 
  Companies  Description Compounding Court) (if any)
     fees imposed 

A. Company
 Penalty
 Punishment   NIL 
 Compounding

B. Directors
 Penalty
 Punishment   NIL 
 Compounding

C. Other O�cers in Default
 Penalty
 Punishment   NIL 
 Compounding

C.  Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

S. No. Particulars of Remuneration    Key Managerial Personnel

     Company 
      Secretary CFO Total

1. Gross Salary

 a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17 (1)  16,54,608 16,26,900 32,81,508
  of the Income Tax Act, 1961

 b) Value of perquisites u/s 17 (2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 -  - -

 c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the  -  - -
  Income Tax Act, 1961

2. Stock Option  NIL  NIL NIL

3. Sweat Equity  NIL  NIL NIL

4. Commission  NIL  NIL NIL
 - As % of Profit
 - Others, specify

5. Others  NIL  NIL NIL

 Total  16,54,608   16,26,900 32,81,508

VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

₹ in Lacs
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1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of 
projects or programmes proposed to be undertaken and a 
reference to the web-link to the CSR Policy and projects or 
programs

 The CSR Policy is adopted by the Board of Directors in their 
meeting held on 26th August, 2014. 

 The brief details of the policy are as follows:

 SRS is a relationship-driven entity which deeply values the 
direct and indirect role played by varied elements of the 
society in its success. As a conscientious corporate citizen that 
works with a human touch, it believes in going beyond 
business to create goodness all around. This sentiment is well 
captured in our vision for CSR: “Enhance the quality of life of 
people by providing them with key skills, aid and support to 
make a marked change in their living conditions, putting in 
place a sustainable advantage to enable them live an 
empowered life. As a result, help in creating a lasting human, 
social, economic and cultural capital for the society.”

CSR POLICY

The CSR Policy of SRS Limited is:

- Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting 
preventive health care and sanitation and making available 
safe drinking water;

- Promoting education, including special education and 
employment enhancing vocational skills especially among 
children, women, elderly and the differently abled and 
livelihood enhancement projects;

- Promoting gender equality, empowering women, setting up 
homes and hostels for women and orphans; setting up old age 
homes, day care centres and such other facilities for senior 
citizens and measures for reducing inequalities faced by 
socially and economically backward groups;

- Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, 
protection of flora and fauna, animal welfare, agroforestry, 
conservation of natural resources and maintaining quality of 
soil, air and water;

- Protection of national heritage, art and culture including 
restoration of buildings and sites of historical importance and 
works of art; setting up public libraries, promotion and 
development of traditional arts and handicrafts;

- Measures for the benefit of armed forces veterans, war 
widows and their dependents;

- Training to promote rural sports, nationally recognized sports, 
Paralympic sports and Olympic sports;

- Contribution to the Prime Minister’s National Relief Fund or 
any other fund set up by the Central Government for 
socio-economic development and relief and welfare of the 
Scheduled Castes, the Scheduled Tribes, other backward 
classes, minorities and women;

- Contributions or funds provided to technology incubators 
located within academic institutions which are approved by 
the Central Government;

- Rural development projects; and 

- Slum area development.

Apart from this, the CSR Policy shall retain a dynamic outlook and 
shall take a call on the sectors, activities and areas for focus with a 
view to maximize the productivity from such efforts. SRS will also 
have the option to partner with complimentary governmental 
bodies, NGOs, industry bodies, proven social welfare experts etc. so 
as to create a more synergistic CSR plan.

2. Composition of CSR committee as on 31st March, 2016

3. Average Net Pro�t of the Company for last three �nancial year
Average Net Profits - Rs.47, 55,64,724/- 

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in 
item 3 above)
CSR Expenditure – Rs.95, 11,294/-

Name Designation

Sh. Lalit Kumar (Independent Director) Chairman
Dr. Anil Jindal Member
Sh. Raju Bansal  Member 

5. Details of CSR spent during the �nancial year:
a) Total amount spent for the financial year: Rs.95, 25,000/- 
b) Amount unspent if any: Nil
 a)  Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of the CSR policy is in compliance with the CSR objectives and
policy of the Company.

(Sunil Jindal)        (Lalit Kumar)
Managing Director       Chairman-CSR Committee 
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1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of 
projects or programmes proposed to be undertaken and a 
reference to the web-link to the CSR Policy and projects or 
programs

 The CSR Policy is adopted by the Board of Directors in their 
meeting held on 26th August, 2014. 

 The brief details of the policy are as follows:

 SRS is a relationship-driven entity which deeply values the 
direct and indirect role played by varied elements of the 
society in its success. As a conscientious corporate citizen that 
works with a human touch, it believes in going beyond 
business to create goodness all around. This sentiment is well 
captured in our vision for CSR: “Enhance the quality of life of 
people by providing them with key skills, aid and support to 
make a marked change in their living conditions, putting in 
place a sustainable advantage to enable them live an 
empowered life. As a result, help in creating a lasting human, 
social, economic and cultural capital for the society.”

CSR POLICY

The CSR Policy of SRS Limited is:

- Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting 
preventive health care and sanitation and making available 
safe drinking water;

- Promoting education, including special education and 
employment enhancing vocational skills especially among 
children, women, elderly and the differently abled and 
livelihood enhancement projects;

- Promoting gender equality, empowering women, setting up 
homes and hostels for women and orphans; setting up old age 
homes, day care centres and such other facilities for senior 
citizens and measures for reducing inequalities faced by 
socially and economically backward groups;

- Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, 
protection of flora and fauna, animal welfare, agroforestry, 
conservation of natural resources and maintaining quality of 
soil, air and water;

- Protection of national heritage, art and culture including 
restoration of buildings and sites of historical importance and 
works of art; setting up public libraries, promotion and 
development of traditional arts and handicrafts;

- Measures for the benefit of armed forces veterans, war 
widows and their dependents;

- Training to promote rural sports, nationally recognized sports, 
Paralympic sports and Olympic sports;

- Contribution to the Prime Minister’s National Relief Fund or 
any other fund set up by the Central Government for 
socio-economic development and relief and welfare of the 
Scheduled Castes, the Scheduled Tribes, other backward 
classes, minorities and women;

- Contributions or funds provided to technology incubators 
located within academic institutions which are approved by 
the Central Government;

- Rural development projects; and 

- Slum area development.

Apart from this, the CSR Policy shall retain a dynamic outlook and 
shall take a call on the sectors, activities and areas for focus with a 
view to maximize the productivity from such efforts. SRS will also 
have the option to partner with complimentary governmental 
bodies, NGOs, industry bodies, proven social welfare experts etc. so 
as to create a more synergistic CSR plan.

2. Composition of CSR committee as on 31st March, 2016

3. Average Net Pro�t of the Company for last three �nancial year
Average Net Profits - Rs.47, 55,64,724/- 

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in 
item 3 above)
CSR Expenditure – Rs.95, 11,294/-

5. Details of CSR spent during the �nancial year:
a) Total amount spent for the financial year: Rs.95, 25,000/- 
b) Amount unspent if any: Nil
 a)  Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

S.
No.

CSR Project
or activity
identi�ed

Sector in
which the
project is
covered

Projects or
programmes

1) Local area o
 other

2) Specify the
State and

district
where projects

or programs was
undertaken

Amount
outlay (budget)

project or
programs wise

(in Rs.)

Cumulative
expenditure

upto the
reporting

period (in Rs.) 

Amount spent:
Direct or
through

implementing
agency

Amount spent
on the projects

or programs

Sub Heads:
1) Direct

Expenditure on
projects or

programmess

2) Overheads
(in Rs.) 

1. Amount spent under Gender equality Local Area 95,25,000/- 31,36,500/- 31,36,500/- Through the
 Scheme ‘Beti Bachao  and education     Implementing
 Beti Padhao’  for for girl     Agency- SRS Social 
 education of girl child       Welfare Association 

2. Fixed Deposit for the Gender equality Local Area  40,000/- 31,76,500/- Through
 Girl Child born      Implementing
       Agency- SRS Social 
       Welfare Association

3. Health Check-up  Camp Health Care Local Area  90,000/- 32,66,500/- Through
       Implementing
       Agency- SRS Social
       Welfare Association

4. Donation given to  Protection of Local Area  51,000/- 33,17,500/- Through
 Iskcon Temple of Art & Culture     Implementing
       Agency- SRS Social
       Welfare Association

5. Amount spent for books, Education for Local Area  13,73,974/- 46,91,474/- Through
 bags, uniform, Girl     Implementing
 construction of toilets,      Agency- SRS Social
 life enrichment      Welfare Association
 workshop, self defense      
 course etc. for the girl
 children of Govt. Senior
 Secondary School,
 Village Ferozpur Kalan,
 Ballabgarh, Faridabad 

6. Free Health Check-up Health Care Local Area  1,03,125/- 47,94,599/- Through
 camp for students of      Implementing
 Shirdi Sai Baba School,      Agency- SRS Social
 Greater Faridabad      Welfare Association

7. Amount spent under Preventive Local Area  10,19,175/- 58,13,774/- Through
 ‘Swachchh Faridabad- Health Care     Implementing
 Smart Faridabad’      Agency- SRS Social
       Welfare Association

8. Donation given to Aggarwal Education Local Area  32,96,000/- 91,09,774/- Through
  Vidhya Parcharni Sabha       Implementing
       Agency- SRS Social
       Welfare Association

9. Office & Admn. Expenses - Local Area  4,15,226/- 95,25,000/- Through
       Implementing
       Agency- SRS Social
       Welfare Association

The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of the CSR policy is in compliance with the CSR objectives and
policy of the Company.

(Sunil Jindal)        (Lalit Kumar)
Managing Director       Chairman-CSR Committee 

 

(Lalit Kumar)
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1.  COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance in the Company is set of rules, policies, 

mechanisms and processes by which the decisions, plans and 

actions of its people are managed, ensuring adherence to its 

proclaimed values of honesty, integrity, accountability and 

ethics to ensure transparency and fairness in the Company’s 

relationship with all stakeholders.

 The Company’s corporate governance structure provides the 

guidelines as to how the Company can be directed or 

controlled such that it can fulfill its goals and objectives in a 

manner that adds to the value of the Company and is also 

beneficial for all stakeholders in the long term. Stakeholders 

in this case would include everyone ranging from the Board of 

Directors, Management, Shareholders, Auditors to Customers, 

Employees and Society. 

 SRS’ Value-driven business philosophy with a focus on 

profitability, customer satisfaction, smooth operations, 

transparent financial management and corporate social 

responsibility ensure that SRS Limited always adheres to the 

highest levels of corporate governance.

2.  BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of the Company is an appropriate mix of Executive, 

Non-Executive and Independent Directors comprising of 12 

Directors as on 31st March, 2016 - 4 Executive Directors, 2 

Non-Executive Directors and 6 Independent Directors 

including 2 women directors. 

 On 13th July, 2016, CA Sh. Vaibhav Gupta has been appointed 

as an additional Independent Director due to resignation of 

Mrs. Sangeeta Adlakha on 22nd June, 2016.

 The Board of the Company has varied expertise in the field of 

strategic management, diversified operations, human 

resource development, legal & finance among others and put 

their best efforts in the efficient and prudent corporate 

management by providing swift and appropriate resolutions 

of various business related issues. They work diligently to 

promote the objects of the Company efficiently following the 

highest standards of corporate governance ensuring 

transparency, integrity, fairness and ethics.

 Except Managing Director and Independent Directors, all 

other directors are liable to retire by rotation as per the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

 None of the Independent Director is serving as a Whole-Time 

Director in any listed Company and does not hold the position 

of Independent Director in more than seven listed companies 

and their tenure is in accordance with the Companies Act, 

2013 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

[SEBI(LODR)].

 During the year under review, Eighteen (18) meetings of the 

Board of Directors were held and the gap between two 

meetings has been less than One Hundred and Twenty days.

GOVERNANCE REPORT
CORPORATE
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Dr. Anil Jindal 00005585 Chairman 15 Yes 4 - 1 1
   (Executive)
   (Promoter)

Sh. Sunil Jindal 00013791 Managing Director 18 Yes 2 - - -
   (Promoter)

Sh. Raju Bansal  00007344 Whole-Time Director 18 Yes - - - -
   (Promoter) 

Sh. Vinod Kumar 00013729 Whole-Time Director 18 Yes - 1 - -
   (Promoter Group) 

Sh. Naresh Kumar 00122331 Non-Executive NIL N. A. - - - -
Goyal**  Director
   (Promoter Group) 

Sh. Jitender Kumar 00088125 Non-Executive 17 Yes 3 2 - -
Garg  Director
   (Promoter Group) 

Sh. Ankit Garg@ 02945744 Non-Executive 12 Yes - - - -
   Director 

Sh. Praveen Kumar 00005617 Non-Executive 3 N.A. 2 1 - -
Kapoor##  Director 
 

Sh. Praveen Gupta 02954957 Non-Executive & 16 Yes 1 - 1 -
   Independent Director 

Sh. Shiv Mohan Gupta 00251104 Non-Executive & 18 Yes 1 1 - 1
   Independent Director 

Sh. Nishant Goel$ 02944135 Non-Executive & 8 Yes - - - -
   Independent Director 

Sh. Jogindar Lal
Chhabra 02956330 Non-Executive & 16 Yes 2 - 2 -
   Independent Director 

Sh. Lalit  Kumar 02956291 Non-Executive & 16 Yes 2 - - -
   Independent Director 

Mrs. Anjali Trehan 06895851 Non-Executive & 12 Yes - - - -
   Independent Director 

Ms. Divya Gupta# 06910893 Non-Executive & 1 N. A. - - - -
   Independent Director 

Ms. Sangeeta$$  00463171 Non-Executive & 7 N.A. - - - -
Adlakha  Independent Director 

Name of  Director DIN Category

No. of
Board

Meetings
Attended

during
the year

Attendance
at last

AGM held
on 3rd

September,
2015

No. of Positions held in Other Companies as
on 31st March, 2016

Board

Public Private Member Chairman

Committee*

The details regarding their attendance at the Board Meetings held during the financial year 2015-16, at the last AGM and number of 

Directorships/Committee Chairmanships/ Memberships held by them in other Companies are as follows: 
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The details of the Board meetings attended by Directors are as follows: - 

07.04.2015 Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes N.A.
25.04.2015 Yes Yes Yes Yes N.A. Yes Yes N.A.
11.05.2015 Yes Yes Yes Yes N.A. Yes Yes N.A.
22.05.2015 Yes Yes Yes Yes N.A. Yes Yes N.A.
30.05.2015 Yes Yes Yes Yes N.A. Yes No N.A.
16.06.2015 Yes Yes Yes Yes N.A. Yes No N.A.
29.06.2015 No Yes Yes Yes N.A. Yes Yes N.A.
10.07.2015 No Yes Yes Yes N.A. Yes Yes N.A.
24.07.2015 Yes Yes Yes Yes N.A. Yes Yes N.A.
06.08.2015 Yes Yes Yes Yes N.A. Yes Yes N.A.
10.09.2015 Yes Yes Yes Yes N.A. Yes Yes N.A.
10.10.2015 No Yes Yes Yes N.A. No Yes N.A.
01.12.2015 Yes Yes Yes Yes N.A. Yes Yes N.A.
15.12.2015 Yes Yes Yes Yes N.A. Yes No N.A.
29.12.2015 Yes Yes Yes Yes N.A. Yes Yes N.A.
19.01.2016 Yes Yes Yes Yes N.A. Yes N.A. Yes
10.02.2016 Yes Yes Yes Yes N.A. Yes N.A. Yes
30.03.2016 Yes Yes Yes Yes N.A. Yes N.A. Yes

Dates of
Meeting Dr. Anil Jindal Sh. Sunil Jindal Sh. Raju Bansal Sh. Vinod Kumar Sh. Naresh

Kumar Goyal**
Sh. Jitender
Kumar Garg

Sh. Ankit Garg
@

Sh. Praveen
Kumar Kapoor##

07.04.2015 Yes Yes No Yes Yes No Yes N.A.
25.04.2015 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No N.A. N.A.
11.05.2015 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes N.A. N.A.
22.05.2015 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes N.A. N.A.
30.05.2015 Yes Yes No Yes Yes No N.A. N.A.
16.06.2015 Yes No Yes No Yes No N.A. N.A.
29.06.2015 Yes No Yes No Yes Yes N.A. N.A.
10.07.2015 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes N.A. N.A.
24.07.2015 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes N.A. N.A.
06.08.2015 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes N.A. N.A.
10.09.2015 Yes Yes Yes N.A. Yes No N.A. Yes
10.10.2015 Yes Yes Yes N.A. No Yes N.A. Yes
01.12.2015 Yes Yes Yes N.A. Yes Yes N.A. Yes
15.12.2015 Yes Yes Yes N.A. No No N.A. No
29.12.2015 Yes Yes Yes N.A. Yes Yes N.A. Yes
19.01.2016 Yes Yes Yes N.A. Yes Yes N.A. Yes
10.02.2016 Yes Yes Yes N.A. Yes Yes N.A. Yes
30.03.2016 Yes Yes Yes N.A. Yes Yes N.A. Yes

Dates of
Meeting Sh. Shiv Mohan

Gupta
Sh. Praveen

Gupta
Sh. Jogindar
Lal Chhabra

Sh. Nishant
Goel$

Sh. Lalit
Kumar

Mrs. Anjali
aTrehan

Mrs. Divya
Gupta#

Mrs. Sangeeta
Adlakha$$

#   Resigned on 25th April, 2015 due to other pre-occupations.
** Sh. Naresh Kumar Goyal is also the Managing Director of SRS Worldwide (FZC), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company located at SAIF Zone, 

Sharjah. Dr. Anil Jindal, Sh. Jitender Kumar Garg and Sh. Ankit Garg also hold the position of Director in FZC.
 Sh. Naresh Kumar Goyal was appointed as Whole-Time Director on 10th October, 2014. He was re-designated as Non-Executive Director on 31st 

January, 2015 as he was being made the Managing Director of SRS Worldwide (FZC). He later resigned from the directorship on 25th April, 2015
$  Resigned from the directorship of the Company on 10th September, 2015.
$$ Appointed on 10th September, 2015 as Independent Director of the Company and resigned on 22nd June, 2016.
@     Resigned on 19th January, 2016 due to other pre-occupations.
##    Appointed as additional Director w. e. f. 19th January, 2016.
*     For the purpose of Committees of Board of Directors, Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee in other Public Limited companies 

and subsidiaries of Public Limited companies are considered only.
 Sh. Jitender Kumar Garg and Sh. Ankit Garg are also Directors in SRS Mines & Minerals (FZC) located at SAIF Zone, Sharjah.
 None of the Directors is disqualified in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013
 None of the Directors are related inter-se except Dr. Anil Jindal and Sh. Sunil Jindal, being brothers and Sh. Ankit Garg is son of Sh. Jitender 

Kumar Garg.
 None of the Directors hold the office of Director or Chairman/Member of a Committee in more than the permissible number of Companies under 

the Companies Act, 2013.
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 Board meetings are held in adherence to Secretarial Standard 
on meeting of the Board of Directors (SS–1) and as per the 
procedures explained in Guidance Notes issued in respect of 
the provisions contained in SS-1. 

 Dates for the Board Meetings held during the year are decided 
well in advance and communicated to the Directors. Board 
Meetings are generally held at the Registered Office of the 
Company. The Notice & Agenda along with the explanatory 
notes are sent to the Directors through e-mail, generally 7 
days before the date of the meeting for their perusal and 
suggestions for adding any other item etc. However, in case of 
urgency, the meetings are held at shorter notice after taking 
approval from one of the Independent Directors.

 The Board on quarterly basis reviews compliance reports of all 
the laws applicable to the Company and steps are taken by the 
Company to rectify instances of non-compliance, if any.

 Procedure at Committee Meetings
The guidelines in compliance with Secretarial Standard -1 and 
Guidance Note issued for SS-1 relating to the Board Meetings 
are applicable to Committee Meetings also as far as 
practicable.

 Each Committee has the authority to engage outside experts, 
advisors and counsels to the extent it considers appropriate to 
assist in its function.

 Minutes of proceedings of Committee Meetings are circulated 
to the members of the Committee and placed before the 
Board for their noting. 

 Meeting of Independent Directors 
In compliance with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 
–‘Code for Independent Directors’ and Listing Regulations, a 
separate meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 
30th March, 2016 to review: - 

 i. The performance of Executive & Non-Executive Directors, 
individually and the Board of Directors as a whole;

 ii. The performance of the Chairperson of the Company;
 iii. the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information 

between the management of the Company and the 
Board of Directors that is necessary for the Board of 
Directors to effectively and reasonably perform their 
duties.

 All the Independent Directors were present in the meeting.

 Formal letter of appointment to independent directors
The Company issues a formal letter of appointment to 
independent directors in the manner as provided in the 
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The terms and 
conditions of appointment of independent directors are 
placed on the Company’s website www.srsparivar.com.

 Familiarization Programme
Orientation program is being organized whenever any 
Independent Director joins the Board. To familiarize the 
independent directors about the strategy, operations, 
functions, latest technologies and work culture, detailed 
presentations are given by the Company’s functional heads. 
Details of the same are disclosed on the Company’s website 
www.srsparivar.com.

 Number of Shares held by Non-Executive & Independent 
Directors as on 31st March, 2016 are as follows: -

3.  AUDIT COMMITTEE
During the year under review, the Audit Committee was 

reconstituted on 25th April, 2015 and further on 10th 

September, 2015, due to changes in composition of Board. As 

on 31st March, 2016, the Audit Committee comprised of: - 

CA Mrs. Sangeeta Adlakha (Chairperson)
Sh. Shiv Mohan Gupta

  Sh. Jogindar Lal Chhabra

  During the financial year 2015-16, Six (6) Audit Committee 
Meetings were held and the gap between the two meetings 
did not exceed one hundred twenty days. 

  Details of meetings attended: - 

21.05.2015 Yes - Yes Yes

10.07.2015 Yes - Yes Yes

24.07.2015 Yes - Yes Yes

10.10.2015 Yes Yes Yes -

29.12.2015 Yes Yes Yes -

10.02.2016 Yes Yes Yes -

Dates of Meeting Sh. Shiv Mohan Gupta
(Chairman/ Member)*

CA Mrs. Sangeeta Adlakha
(Chairperson)*

Sh. Jogindar Lal Chhabra
(Member)

Sh. Nishant Goel
(Member)***

*  Stepped down as member on 10th September, 2015.
**  Appointed as Chairperson on 10th September, 2015
*** Resigned on 10th September, 2015
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Name   %No. of Shares

 Sh. Jitender Kumar Garg 90,000 0.03
 Sh. Shiv Mohan Gupta 27,250 0.01
 Sh. Shiv Mohan Gupta (As Karta of HUF) 17,210 0.01



Besides the members of the Audit Committee - Deputy Company 
Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Internal Auditors, Statutory 
Auditors, heads of accounts & finance etc. are also invited for 
providing inputs to the Committee.

Dr. (Ms.) Navneet Kwatra, C.O.O. & Company Secretary acts as 
Secretary of the Committee.

The role & powers of the Audit Committee pursuant to the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are as follows: - 

Role of the Audit Committee
1. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and 

the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the 
financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

2.  Recommending the appointment, re-appointment, 
replacement, removal, remuneration and terms of 
appointment of statutory auditors, fixation of audit fees and 
approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other 
services rendered by them.

3. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence & 
performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

4. Reviewing with the management the annual financial 
statements and auditor’s report thereon before submission to 
the Board for approval, focusing primarily on the following: 

 • Matters required to be included in the Director’s 
Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s 
report in terms of clause (c) of sub section 3 of section 
134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

  Any changes in the accounting policies and practices 
and reasons for the same.

  Major accounting entries involving estimates based on 
the exercise of judgment by the management.

  Qualifications in the draft audit report.

 • Significant adjustments made in the financial 
statements arising out of audit findings.

 • The going concern assumption.

 • Compliance with accounting standards.

 • Compliance with listing agreement and provisions of all 
applicable laws relating to financial statements.

 • Adequacy & effectiveness of internal financial control 
systems.

 • Any related party transactions i.e. transactions of the 
Company of material nature with promoters/ 
management/KMP or their relatives, holding/ 
subsidiaries/associates/Joint Venture Company etc. that 
may have potential conflict with the interest of the 

  Company at  large.

5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial 
statements before submission to the board for approval.

6. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of 
the company with related parties;

7. Examination of the periodic financial statements and the 
auditor’s report thereon

8. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

9. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever 
it is necessary;

10. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management 
systems;

11. Monitoring & reviewing, with the management, the statement 
of uses/application of funds raised through an issue (public 
issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of 
funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer 
 document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by 
the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds 
of a public or  rights issue, and making appropriate 
recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter.

12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory 
and internal auditors, and adequacy of the internal control 
systems.

13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, 
including the structure of the internal audit department, 
staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, 
reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit.

14. Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and 
follow up there on.

15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the 
internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud 
or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a 
material nature and reporting the matter to the board.

16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit 
commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as 
post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the 
payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders 
(in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

18. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower & Vigil 
mechanism adopted by the Company. 

19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance 
Director or any other person heading the finance function or 
discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, 
experience & background, etc. of the candidate.

20. Reviewing the Company’s financial and risk management 
policies.

Powers of Audit Committee
The audit committee shall have powers, which should include the 
following:

1.  To investigate any activity within its terms of reference.

2.  To seek information from any employee.

3.  To obtain outside legal or other professional advice.

4. To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it 
considers necessary.
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 Review of information by Audit Committee
The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information:

 1. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

 2. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee),  submitted by management;

 3. Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

 4. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

 5. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of Chief Internal Auditor.

 Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy
The Company promotes ethical behavior in all its business activities and has put in place a mechanism for reporting illegal or unethical 
behavior. Therefore, in compliance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015   the Board of Directors - has adopted 
the Whistle Blower Policy that provides a formal mechanism for the Directors, Employees & Stakeholders of the Company whereby 
concerns can be raised about event of misconduct, unacceptable practices and/or serious irregularities within the Company.

 The Whistle Blower can directly approach the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company and make protective disclosures about 
the unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's Code of Conduct in exceptional circumstances. 

4. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

 As on 31st March, 2016, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprises of following Independent Directors: 
Sh. Lalit Kumar (Chairman)
Sh. Jogindar Lal Chhabra
Sh. Praveen Gupta

 During the financial year 2015-16, Four (4) Nomination & Remuneration Committee Meetings were held on 21st May, 2015; 10th 
September, 2015; 19th January, 2016 and 29th March, 2016.

 Dr. (Ms.) Navneet Kwatra, C.O.O. & Company Secretary acts as Secretary of the Committee.

 Attendance at the meetings was as follows: -

 

 The role of Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as follows: 

 1. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director and recommend to the 
Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees.

 2. To formulate the criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;

 3. Devise a policy of Board diversity;

 4. To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors, and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with 
the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal, and carry out evaluation of every Director’s 
performance;

 5. To  approve  in  the  event  of  loss  or  inadequate  profits  in  any year the minimum remuneration  payable to the Managing 
Director/Whole Time Directors within limits  and  subject  to the parameters as prescribed in Schedule V of the Companies Act, 
2013.

 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee ensures that: 

 1. The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate the Directors of the quality 
required to run the Company successfully; 

 2. Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and 

 3. Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a balance between fixed and incentive 
pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals.

 The Company has a Remuneration Policy for Directors, KMPs and other employees.

Name   Designation No. of meetings attendedCategory of Director

Sh. Lalit Kumar Chairman Independent Director 4

Sh. Jogindar Lal Chhabra Member Independent Director 4

Sh. Praveen Gupta Member Independent Director 4
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# Resigned on 25th April, 2015 due to other occupations.
$  Resigned from the directorship of the Company on 10th  September, 2015.
$$ Appointed on 10th  September, 2015 as Independent Director of the Company.
@   Resigned on 19th  January, 2016 due to other pre-occupations.
##   Appointed as additional Director w. e. f. 19th  January, 2016.

No compensation/remuneration is payable to the directors on severance of their directorship with the Company.

During the financial year, there was no pecuniary relationship or transaction between the Company and its Non-Executive Directors.

Remuneration policy for Directors, KMP & other employees
This policy sets out the guiding principles for the Nomination & Remuneration Committee for recommending to the Board the remuneration of 
the Directors, KMPs and other employees of the Company. The remuneration policy is in consonance with the existing industry practice.  

The Remuneration Policy of the Company 

A. For Executive Directors 
 For Managing and Whole-time Directors- the total remuneration consists of Salary, Perquisites & Retirement Benefits, based on the 
recommendation of the Committee and requisite approvals, including approvals from the Board, Shareholders and the Central 
Government, if necessary. No sitting fee is payable to Executive Directors.

 The Details of remuneration paid to Executive Directors for F.Y.2015-2016 is as follows: -

B.  For Non-Executive/Independent Directors 
 Non-Executive Directors do not draw any remuneration from the Company except the sitting fees as permitted under the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

 The Company pays Rs.6000/- to Non-Executive and Independent Directors as sitting fees for attending each meeting of the Board of 
Directors of the Company and Rs.2500/- for attending each committee meeting through Cheque.

 The Details of remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors for F.Y.2015-2016 is as follows: -        

₹ in Lacs

Name of Director
Sitting Fees

for attending
Board Meetings

Total Sitting Fees
Sitting Fees for

attending Committee
Meetings

Sh. Jitender Kumar Garg 1,02,000 50,000 1,52,000

Sh. Ankit Garg@ 72,000 - 72,000

Sh. Praveen Kumar Kapoor## 18,000 - 18,000

Sh. Naresh Kumar Goyal# - - -

Sh. Shiv Mohan Gupta 1,14,000 15,000 1,29,000

Sh. Praveen Gupta 1,02,000 10,000 1,12,000

Sh. Nishant Goel$ 48,000 7,500 55,500

Sh. Jogindar Lal Chhabra 1,02,000 25,000 1,27,000

Sh. Lalit Kumar 1,02,000 15,000 1,17,000

Mrs. Anjali Trehan 78,000 - 78,000

Mrs. Divya Gupta# 6,000 - 6,000

CA Mrs. Sangeeta Adlakha$$ 48,000 7,500 55,500

Total 7,92,000 1,30,000 9,22,000

in ₹ 

Dr. Anil Jindal Chairman (Executive) 89.63  - 89.63

Sh. Sunil Jindal Managing Director 48.00 - 48.00

Sh. Raju Bansal Whole-Time Director 29.86 - 29.86

Sh. Vinod Kumar Whole-Time Director 29.86 - 29.86

Name of Director Designation Salary Other Emoluments Total Remuneration
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 C.  For Other Employees
Employees are assigned grades according to their qualification and work experience, competencies as well as their roles & 
responsibilities in the Organization and remuneration is determined within the appropriate grade and is based on various factors 
such as job profile, skill sets, seniority, experience and providing remuneration levels for equivalent jobs etc.

  Performance evaluation
In compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the then Listing Agreement, the Performance 
Evaluation Policy of the Company was adopted on 30th  September, 2014 to establish the procedure for conducting periodical 
evaluation of directors' performance and independence of each and every director of the Company.

  Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own 
performance, and that of its Committees, individual directors and KMPs. The performance was evaluated based on the parameters 
such as Compliance with Articles of Association, Companies Act & other applicable laws, Compliance with ethical standards and 
code of conduct, Strategic Planning, Internal Control Process, implementation of corporate governance practices, fulfillment of their 
responsibilities  etc. A structured questionnaire was prepared covering the above areas of competencies. All the responses were 
evaluated by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee as well as the Board of Directors/Chairman and the results reflected high 
satisfactory performance.

5. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
 As on 31st March, 2016, Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprises of the following Directors: - 

 Sh. Jitender Kumar Garg (Chairman)
 Sh. Raju Bansal
 Sh. Vinod Kumar 

 Dr. (Ms.) Navneet Kwatra, COO & Company Secretary acts as Secretary of the Committee.

 Ms. Mamta Rastogi, Deputy Company Secretary has been designated as Compliance Officer.

 During the financial year ending on 31st March, 2016, Twenty One (21) Stakeholders Relationship Committee meetings were held.

 A detail of meetings along with the attendance at the meetings is as follows: -

Dates of the meetings Sh. Vinod KumarSh. Jitender Kumar Garg
– Chairman

Sh. Raju Bansal
- Member

07.04.2015 Yes Yes Yes

16.06.2015 Yes Yes Yes

02.07.2015 Yes Yes Yes

06.07.2015 Yes Yes Yes

10.07.2015 Yes Yes Yes

17.07.2015 Yes Yes Yes

23.07.2015 Yes Yes Yes

28.07.2015 Yes Yes Yes

11.08.2015 Yes Yes Yes

19.08.2015 Yes Yes Yes

27.08.2015 Yes Yes Yes

26.09.2015 Yes Yes Yes

09.11.2015 Yes Yes Yes

16.11.2015 Yes Yes Yes

30.11.2015 No Yes Yes

30.12.2015 Yes Yes Yes

11.01.2016 Yes Yes Yes

19.01.2016 Yes Yes Yes

30.01.2016 Yes Yes Yes

23.02.2016 Yes Yes Yes

08.03.2016 Yes Yes Yes
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 The role of the Committee is as follows: - 
 a. To consider and approve requests for transfers, transmissions, dematerialization/ rematerialization and issue of fresh share 

certificates on replacement/sub-division/ consolidation, issue of duplicate share certificates on loss whether by theft, 
misplacement or otherwise;

 b.  To review the status of dematerialization of Company’s shares and matters incidental thereto;
 c.  To review and monitor the approval to the transfers and transmission made by any Director under executive authority delegated 

to him from time to time;
 d.    To monitor the matters of litigation related to shareholders/deposit holders and take decisions relating thereto;
 e.   To consider, review and monitor the matters related to the shareholders/deposit holders  grievances, and to look into the 

redressing of shareholders/deposit holders and investor complaints like transfer of shares, non-receipt of balance sheet, 
non-receipt of declared dividend, non-receipt of interest & principal amount etc.;

 f.  To consider and finalize the report on Corporate Governance to be annexed with the Annual Report of the company;
 g. To deal with any other matters related and/or incidental to the shareholders/deposit holders.

 During the financial year 2015-16, the status of shareholders/investors complaints are as follows-

6. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE
 As on 31st March, 2016, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises of the following members: - 
 Sh. Lalit Kumar - Chairman
 Dr. Anil Jindal - Member
 Sh. Raju Bansal - Member

 The CSR Policy of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors in its meeting held on 26th August, 2014 and the same has been 
uploaded on the website of the Company-www.srsparivar.com.

 The role of the Committee is: - 
a) to recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred in CSR Policy of the Company, and

 b) to monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from time to time and recommend to the Board and 
changes in the same in compliance with Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 During the year under review, 4 (Four) Committee meetings were held on 21st May, 2015; 6th August, 2015; 9th November, 2015 and 19th 
January, 2016.

 Details of meetings attended: - 

7.        RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
 As on 31st  March, 2016, Risk Management Committee comprises of the following members: - 

 Dr. Anil Jindal   - Chairman
 Sh. Sunil Jindal  - Member
 Sh. Raju Bansal  - Member
 Sh. Bhagwan Dass  - Member

 Dr. (Ms.) Navneet Kwatra COO & Company Secretary acts as Secretary of the Committee.

 During the year under review, One (1) Committee meeting was held on 29th March, 2016 and was attended by all the members.

Dates of the meetings Sh. Raju Bansal
(Member)

Sh. Lalit Kumar
(Chairman)

Dr. Anil Jindal
(Member)

21.05.2015  No Yes Yes 

06.08.2015 Yes Yes Yes

09.11.2015 Yes Yes  Yes

19.01.2016 No Yes Yes

1. 1st April, 2015 to 30th June, 2015 Nil Nil Nil Nil

2. 1st July, 2015 to 30th September, 2015 Nil Nil Nil Nil

3. 1st October, 2015 to 31st December, 2015 Nil 1 1 Nil

4. 1st January, 2016 to 31st March, 2016 Nil Nil Nil Nil

S.No. Period Opening Received during Resolved  Closing 
  quarter during quarter
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Year TimeVenue  Day/Date

2014-15 “SRS Banquet” Near SRS Multiplex,  Thursday/03.09.2015 12.30 P.M.
 City Centre, Sector – 12, Faridabad - 121007

2013-14 “SRS Banquet” Near SRS Multiplex,
 City Centre, Sector – 12, Faridabad - 121007 Monday/28.07.2014 11.30 A.M.

2012-13 “SRS Banquet” Near SRS Multiplex,
 City Centre, Sector – 12, Faridabad - 121007  Wednesday/14.08.2013 11.30 A.M.

8.        CREDIT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
 As on 31st March, 2016, the Credit Management Committee comprises of the following members: 
 Dr. Anil Jindal   - Chairman
 Sh. Sunil Jindal  - Member
 Sh. Bhagwan Dass  - Member

During the year under review, Four (4) Committee meeting were held on 7th April, 2015; 10th July, 2015; 10th October, 2015 and
 19th January, 2016

Details of meetings attended: - 

9. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

 A.  Annual General Meetings
  During the preceding three years, the Company’s three Annual General Meetings were held as under :-

 

 All resolutions moved at the Annual General Meeting for the financial year 2012-13 were passed unanimously by show of hands.

 In the previous AGMs for the financial year 2013-14 & 2014-15, all resolutions were passed with requisite majority by mode of e-voting 
and ballot paper.

 Two special resolutions were passed in the Annual General Meeting for financial year 2013-14 held on 28th July 2014 as detailed below: 
 1.  Borrowing in excess of the limits specified under Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013
 2. Invitation & acceptance of Public Deposits under Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013

 No special resolution was passed at the Annual General Meetings held for financial years 2012-13 & 2014-15.

 B.  Extra Ordinary General Meetings 
  No Extra Ordinary General Meeting was held during the last three financial years.

 C. Ordinary  Resolutions passed through Postal Ballot 
During the year, in compliance with the provisions of Section 110 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 22 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Postal Ballot Notice dated 11th May, 2015 was sent to all the Shareholders as 
on the cut-off date i.e. 8th May, 2015.

  The notice was sent through electronic mode to all the Members whose email addresses were registered with 
Company/Depository Participant(s) and physical copies to all the members by Registered Post for conducting the Postal Ballot 
for the following matters: - 
1.     Increase in Authorized Share Capital
2.     Issue of Bonus Shares.

  In compliance with Section 110 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules 2014 the 
Company has offered e-voting facility to all the Shareholders of the Company through e-voting services provided by Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) facilitating Shareholders to cast their votes electronically. 

  The Company has completed the dispatch of the Postal Ballot Notice dated 11th May, 2015 in respect to the Special Resolutions 
proposed to be passed by Postal Ballot, along with the Postal Ballot Form and pre-paid Business Reply Envelope to its members 
on 13th May, 2015.

  The voting commenced on Thursday, 14th May, 2015 (1000 hours) and ended at 1700 hours, on Friday, 12th June, 2015. 

  The Board had appointed Mrs. Savita Trehan, Company Secretary in Practice as Scrutinizer to conduct the postal ballot process in 
a fair and transparent manner.  The Scrutinizer had submitted her report to the Chairman on 13th June, 2015. 

  On the basis of the Scrutinizer’s Report, the result of Postal Ballot was announced by the Chairman on 13th June, 2015.  

Dates of the meetings Sh. Bhagwan DassDr. Anil Jindal Sh. Sunil Jindal

07.04.2015 Yes Yes Yes

10.07.2015 Yes Yes Yes

10.10.2015 Yes Yes Yes

19.01.2016 Yes Yes Yes
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Details of voting patterns for Item No.1 of the Increase in Authorized Share Capital:

Details of voting patterns for Item No.2 of the Notice – Issue of Bonus Shares

S. No. No. of SharesParticulars No. of Shareholders

1. Total Number of Shareholders as
 on 8th May, 2015 5963 13,92,91,013
 (being the cut-off date for 
 dispatch of Postal Ballot Notice)

2. Total Shareholders to whom
 Postal Ballot sent 5963 13,92,91,013

3. Total Postal Ballots received 6 100 106 207 109913431 109913638 -

 Less: Invalid Postal Ballots  1 0 1 0 0 0 -

 Net Valid Postal Ballot Forms 5 100 105 207 109913431 109913638 100

a. Postal Ballots with assent for
 the resolution 5 100 105 207 109913431 109913638 00

b. Postal Ballots with dissent for  0 0 0 0 0 0 0
 the resolution

 Total 5 100 105 207 109913431 109913638 100

Physical e-voting Total Physical e-voting  

No. of Postal Ballots  No. of Shares  Total  % 

S. No. No. of SharesParticulars No. of Shareholders

1. Total Number of Shareholders as  5963 13,92,91,013
 on 8th May, 2015
 (being the cut-off date for
 dispatch of Postal Ballot Notice)  

2. Total Shareholders to whom
 Postal Ballot sent 5963 13,92,91,013

3. Total Postal Ballots received 6 100 106 207 109913431 109913638 -

 Less: Invalid Postal Ballots  1 0 1 0 0 0 -

 Net Valid Postal Ballot 5 100 105 207 109913431 109913638 100
 Forms

a. Postal Ballots with assent for 5 100 105 207 109913431 109913638 100
 the resolution 

b. Postal Ballots with dissent  0 0 0 0 0 0 0
 for the resolution

 Total 5 100 105 207 109913431 109913638 100

Physical e-voting Total Physical e-voting  

No. of Postal Ballots  No. of Shares  Total  % 
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 None of the resolution is proposed is to be conducted through Postal Ballot in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

11. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
 The primary source of information regarding the operations of the Company is its website-www.srsparivar.com and specifically for SRS
 Cinemas is www.srscinemas.net.

 The quarterly/half yearly and annual financial results are generally published in The Financial Express, in English and Jansatta, in Hindi.

 The Company also issues press releases at the time of opening of any outlet and/or happening of any event in the Company.

12. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

 a) 16th Annual General Meeting
  Day    Friday
  Date    30th September, , 2016
  Time    3:00 P.M.
  Venue                                       “SRS Banquet” Near SRS Multiplex, City Centre, Sector – 12,
      Faridabad, NCR Delhi - 121007

 b) Financial Year
  1st April to 31st March

 c) Financial Calendar
  1st Quarter Results   10th July, 2015
  2nd Quarter Results   10th October, 2015
  3rd Quarter Results   10th February, 2016
  4th Quarter & Annual Results  8th June, 2016

 d) ISIN for NSDL & CDSL
   INE219H01039

 e) Book Closure
  26th September, 2016 to 30th September, 2016 (both days inclusive)

 f) Unclaimed Refund, Interest & Dividend as on 31st March, 2016
  Amount unclaimed in Refund Account   - Rs.1,49,900/-
  Amount unclaimed in Interest on Refund Account  - Rs.29,277/-
  Amount unclaimed in Fixed Deposit Repayment Account - Rs.11,55,000/-
  Amount unclaimed in Fixed Deposit Interest Account  - Rs.4,74,170/-
  Amount unclaimed in Dividend Account (F.Y. 2011-12)  - Rs.73,378/-
  Amount unclaimed in Dividend Account (F.Y.2012-13)   - Rs.64, 801/-  

 g) Listing on Stock Exchanges
  BSE Limited 
  14th Floor, P J Jeejeebhoy Towers,  Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai – 400 001

  National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)
  Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai – 400051

 h) Listing fees to Stock Exchanges
  The Company has paid the Annual Listing Fees to the above Stock Exchanges for the financial year 2016-17.

 i) Stock Code
  BSE - 533569
  NSE - SRSLTD
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Month High (`) No. of SharesLow (`)

April, 2015 25.60 20.55 12,75,400

May, 2015 25.50 20.00 19,44,641

June, 2015 27.95 12.55 22,99,142

July, 2015 17.98 12.90 38,63,393

August, 2015 16.10 12.61 26,45,062

September, 2015 14.10 12.60 21,02,625

October, 2015 22.80 13.40 34,55,498

November, 2015 26.15 18.75 34,69,675

December, 2015 27.00 20.15 87,91,896

January, 2016 22.60 14.60 77,31,564

February, 2016 17.65 11.50 84,70,317

March, 2016 13.90 11.75 21,14,237

Month High (`) No. of SharesLow (`)

April, 2015 25.35 20.50 25,28,443

May, 2015 25.40 20.05 33,82,656

June, 2015 28.00 12.65 40,20,881

July, 2015 18.50 12.85 64,30,138

August, 2015 16.00 12.25 43,20,857

September, 2015 14.35 11.45 33,48,779

October, 2015 22.95 13.30 96,07,884

November, 2015 26.00 18.50 1,11,21,755

December, 2015 27.05 20.10 3,10,07,918

January, 2016 22.55 14.55 1,92,06,323

February, 2016 17.50 11.70 1,10,65,620

March, 2016 13.85 11.75 65,43,144

j) Share Price Data

 BSE Ltd.

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)

k) Registrar and Transfer Agents
 Beetal Financial & Computer Services Pvt. Ltd.
 Beetal House, 3rd Floor,  99,
 Madangir,  Behind Local Shopping Centre, 
 New Delhi – 110062
 Ph. # 011-29961281-283
 Fax # 011-29961284

l) Share Transfer System
 Stakeholders Relationship Committee has been constituted, in terms of the Companies Act, 2013, to approve all the 
transfers,transmission, remat of shares etc. and all shares transfer/transmission/transposition/dematerialization is handled by our 
Registrar and Transfer Agents, M/s. Beetal Financial & Computer Services Pvt. Ltd. All the work of transfer/ transmission etc. is done within 
the minimum stipulated time.
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m) Distribution of shareholding

n) Dematerialization of Shares
 As on 31st March, 2016 – 27, 85, 42,818 shares equivalent to 99.986% were held in demat form.

o) There has been no outstanding GDRs/ADRs/warrants or any convertible instruments.

p) Custodial Fees to Depositories
 The Company has paid the annual custodial fees for the financial year 2015-16 to Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and 
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL).

q) Secretarial Audit
As stipulated by SEBI, a Company Secretary in Practice conducts the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the purpose of reconciliation 
of total admitted capital with the depositories i.e. NSDL and CDSL, and the total issued and listed capital of the Company.

r) Request to Investors
 i) Investors holding shares in electronic form are requested to deal only with their respective depository participant for change of
  address, nomination facility, bank account number etc.

 ii) All requests and other communications/correspondence should be sent at the Company’s Registered Office at: - 

  Ms. Mamta Rastogi
  Deputy Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
  SRS Limited
  SRS Tower, 305 & 307, 3rd Floor, Near Metro Station Mewla Maharajpur,
  G. T. Road, Faridabad, NCR Delhi – 121003
  Ph. # 0129-4323119
  Fax # 0129-4323105
  Email: mamtarastogi@srsparivar.com

Shareholding No. of % No. of Amount  % 
of Nominal Value (Rs.) Shareholders (`) to Total Shares In Rs. to Total (`)

Up    to 5000 18248 95.26 12363760 123637600 4.4400

5001 to 10000 500 2.61 3740688  37406880 1.3400

10001 to 20000  182 0.95 2604080  26040800 0.9300

20001 to 30000    65 0.34 1548814    15488140 0.5600

30001 to 40000    33 0.17 1171313 11713130 0.4200

40001 to 50000 26 0.14 1174150 11741500 0.4200

50001 to 100000 32 0.17 2302977    23029770 0.8300

100001 and above 69 0.36 253676244    2536762440 91.0600

TOTAL 9155 100.00      27, 85, 82, 026 2, 78, 58, 20,260 100.0000

Category No. of  No. of Shares % to Total
 Shareholders

Promoter & Promoter Group 15 20,62,72,260 74.04
Total (Promoters) 15 20,62,72,260 74.04
Public  
Financial Portfolio Investors 1 13,700 0.01
Financial Institutions/Banks 10 1,70,81,616 6.13
Insurance Company 1 15,38,400 0.55
Bodies Corporate 394 3,09,95,946 11.13
NRIs 178 7,21,060 0.26
Individuals & Others 18556 2,19,59,044 7.88
Total (Public) 19140 7,23,09,766 25.96

TOTAL 19155 27,85,82,026 100.00

Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March 2016
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13. DISCLOSURES
 a) There have been no materially significant related party 

transactions, pecuniary transactions or relationship 
between the Company and its Directors or their relatives 
for the year ended 31st March, 2016 that may have a 
potential conflict with the interest of the Company at 
large. Disclosures to this effect have also been received 
from the Directors of the Company. The Register of 
Contracts containing transactions, in which Directors are 
interested, is placed before the Board regularly.

  Related Parties and transactions with them as required 
under Accounting Standard (AS-18) are furnished in 
Note No.41 of the Notes on Accounts attached with the 
Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 
2016.

  The policy of Company on dealing with Related Party 
Transactions is available on the website of the company 
viz. www.srsparivar.com.

 b) There has been no instance of non-compliance with any 
legal requirement nor have there been any strictures 
imposed by any Stock Exchange, SEBI or any Statutory 
Authority on any matters related to the capital market 
during the last three years.

 c) The Company has formulated the Whistle Blower Policy 
to provide employees & stakeholders including 
individual employees and their representative bodies, a 
framework and to establish a formal mechanism or 
process whereby concerns can be raised about event of 
misconduct, unacceptable practices and/or serious 
irregularities within the Company.

  The policy was adopted by the Board in its meeting held 
on 26th August, 2014 and no personnel have been 
denied access to the Audit Committee or the Board 
under the policy.d)  The Company has complied with 

  all the mandatory requirements specified in Regulation 
17 to 27 of SEBI (Listing Obligation And Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

 e)   The compliance with non-mandatory requirements of 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 are given below at Point 
No.15.

 f) The Policy to determine material subsidiary, the Archival 
Policy for any Material Event or Information, the Policy 
for Determination of Materiality of any 
event/information and the Policy for Preservation of 
Documents have been approved by the Board and are 
disclosed at the Company’s website 
www.srsparivar.com.

 g) For the year under review, all Directors & Senior 

Management Personnel of the Company have 
confirmed their adherence to the provisions of the Code 
of Conduct applicable to them.

 h) The Company follows the mandatory Accounting 
Standards prescribed by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India and, to the best of its knowledge; 
there are no deviations in the accounting treatments 
which require specific disclosure.

14. CODE OF CONDUCTS
 a. Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading & 

Corporate Disclosure Practice
Pursuant to the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015 the Board of Directors in its meeting 
held on 11th May, 2015 approved the Code of Conduct 
for Prevention of Insider Trading & Corporate Disclosure 
Practices effective from 15th May, 2015 to regulate, 
monitor and report trading in the securities of the 
Company by insiders or the persons in possession of 
unpublished price sensitive information pertaining to 
the Company. The Policy and the procedures are 
periodically communicated to the all concerned who are 
considered as insiders. Further, they have been well 
intimated in advance about the closure of trading 
window, whenever required.

 b. Code of Business Conduct & Ethics
The Code is applicable to all the Directors and Senior 
Management Personnel of the Company. 

  The Company has obtained declarations from all its 
Directors and Senior Management Personnel affirming 
their compliance with the applicable code of conduct 
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2016. The 
declaration to this effect signed by the Chairman 
(Executive) and Managing Director of the Company 
forms part of this report as Annexure - A.

15. ADOPTION OF NON MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS OF REGULATION 27
 The Company has adopted the following discretionary 

requirements of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015: - 

 Audit Quali�cation
During the year under review, there are two  audit 
qualifications on the Company’s financial statements. The 
details are mentioned in the Directors’ Report.

 Separate posts of Chairman and Managing Director
The Company has separate posts of the Chairman and 
Managing Director.

 Reporting of Internal Auditor
The Internal Auditors are permitted to directly report to the 
Audit Committee. 

For and on behalf of the Board

Encl.: 
Annexures to Report on Corporate Governance for the �nancial year ended 31st March, 2016
Declaration of Compliance with the Code of Conduct-Annexure-A  
CEO/CFO Certification under Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015-Annexure-B
Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary on Corporate Governance -Annexure-C

(Sunil Jindal) (Raju Bansal)
Managing Director Whole-Time Director
DIN: 00013791 DIN: 00007344

Place: Faridabad
Date: 24th August, 2016
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Annexure-A

Declaration A�rming Compliance
of provisions of the Code of Conduct

This is to certify that pursuant to Para D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligation And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 we a�rm that the 
Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel have complied with the Code of Conduct of the Company for the �nancial year ended 31st March, 
2016.

Place: Faridabad
Date: 24th August, 2016  (Anil Jindal) (Sunil Jindal)
 Chairman Managing Director
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Annexure-B

Certi�cations by Chairman, MD & CFO of the Company

We, Anil Jindal, Chairman; Sunil Jindal, Managing Director and Bhagwan Dass, CFO, of ‘SRS Limited’, to the best of our Knowledge and 
belief, certify that:

1.  We have reviewed the financial statements and Cash Flow Statement along with all the Notes for the year and to the best of the our 
knowledge and belief:
(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be  
 misleading;
(ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting  
 standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year are fraudulent, illegal or 
violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

3. We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and have evaluated the effectiveness 
of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and have disclosed to the Auditors and Audit 
Committee, wherever applicable:

 a) Deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, which come to our notice and steps have beentaken/
 proposed to be taken to rectify these deficiencies;

 b) Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

 c) Significant changes in accounting policy during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial  
 statements.

 d) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an
 employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Place: Faridabad
Date: 08th June, 2016 (Anil Jindal) (Sunil Jindal) (Bhagwan Dass)
 Chairman Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
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Annexure - C

Certi�cate from Practicing Company Secretary regarding Compliance
of Conditions of Corporate Governance

To 
The Members 
SRS Limited

I have examined the Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by ‘SRS Limited’ (the Company) for the year ended 31st March, 2016 
as stipulated in Regulation 17 to Regulation 27 SEBI (Listing Obligation And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s management. My examination has been 
limited to review of the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of 
Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said clause. 

In my opinion and to best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, I certify that the Company has complied with 
the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations as mentioned above.

Place: Faridabad        (Savita Trehan) 
Date: 24th August, 2016                                                                                          Company Secretary

 C.P. No. 2569

(Savita Trehan) 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial 
statements of SRS Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information, in which are incorporated the Returns for the year 
ended on that date audited by the branch auditor of the Company’s 
branch at UAE. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial 
Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters 
stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with 
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements 
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read 
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give 
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone 
financial statements based on our audit. 

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the 
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required 
to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act 
and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those 
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 

about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial 
control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by 
the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and audit 
evidence obtained by other auditor in terms of their reports 
referred to in sub- paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph 
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
qualified audit opinion on these standalone financial statements.

Basis for Quali�ed Opinion
1. Trade Receivables at UAE Branch includes an amount of Rs. 

34272 lacs on account of sale to parties, during the year in 
UAE (including an amount of Rs.14756 Lacs on account of sale 
to parties from inventories sent through NSEZ unit of the 
company located in India to UAE Branch through Branch 
Transfer), which are unsecured/ not backed up by any 
security.

 We are unable to form an opinion on the recoverability of the
same & consequent impact on the profit of the company for 
the year ended 31st March’2016.

2. Deposit Repayment Reserve Account for the Fixed deposits at 
the close of the year, required under Section 73(2)(c) of the 
Companies Act, 2013  equal to 15% of the deposits maturing 
in the year & year following were found short by Rs.1360 Lacs.

 We are unable to comment on the financial implications in 
respect of the same.

Quali�ed Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us, except for the possible effects of the 
matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion Paragraph, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information 
required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and 
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 
31, 2016, and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that 
date.

To,
The Members,
SRS Limited
Faridabad (Haryana)
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Other Matters
(a) We did not audit the financial statements of foreign branch 

(registered under SAIF Zone Authority, Sharjah, UAE) of the 
company included in the standalone financial statements of 
the Company whose financial statements reflect total assets 
of Rs.34291 Lacs as at 31st March, 2016 and total revenues of 
Rs. 51257 Lacs for the year ended on that date, as considered 
in the standalone financial statements. The financial 
statements of this branch have been audited by the branch 
auditor (M/s. GSM Auditors, UAE) appointed by Company’s 
Board of Directors, whose report has been furnished to us, 
and our opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts and 
disclosures included in respect of this branch, is based on the 
report of such branch auditor.

b) In terms of the Joint Responsibility Statement (as per 
Standards on Auditing-299) forming part of the Engagement 
Letter:

(i) audit of Gold & Jewellery Segment (except specified in (a) 
above) and other segments whose financial statements 
reflect total assets of Rs. 117101 Lacs as at 31st March, 2016 
and total revenues of Rs.287733 Lacs  for the year ended on 
that date has been carried out by M/s. Rakesh Raj & 
Associates; &

(ii)  audit of remaining segments, other than those specified in 
(a) & (b) (i) above viz. Retail, Cinemas and part of other 
segments (whose segment assets & segment revenues does 
not exceed 10 percent of the total segment assets & total 
segment revenue respectively), whose financial statements 
reflect total assets of Rs.33266 Lacs as at 31st March, 2016 and 
total revenues of Rs. 34383 Lacs for the year ended on that 
date has been carried out by M/s. S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co. 
Refer note no.40 of the standalone financial statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
(i) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 

(‘the order”) issued by the Central government of India in the 
terms of Section 143 (11) of the Companies Act 2013 and 
based on the comments in the auditor’s report of the UAE 
Branch, we give in the Annexure 1 a statement on the matters 
specified in Paragraph 3 & 4 of the order, to the extent 
applicable.

(ii) As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

 (a) We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

 (b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by 
law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books and proper 
returns adequate for the purposes of audit have been 
received from the UAE branch not visited by us;

 (c) The reports on the accounts of the branch offices of the 
Company audited under Section 143 (8) of the Act by 
branch auditor in respect of UAE Branch have been sent 
to us and have been properly dealt with by us in 

preparing this report;

 (d) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and 
the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account and with the 
returns received from the UAE Branch not visited by us;

 (e) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

 (f ) The matter described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion 
paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse 
effect on the functioning of the Company;

 (g) On the basis of the written representations received 
from the directors as on 31st March, 2016 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on 31st March, 2016 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the 
Act;

 (h) With respect to the adequacy of the Internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate report in “Annexure 2” ;and

 (i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the 
Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us:

 i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending 
litigations on its financial position in its financial 
statements-Refer Note no. 22 of the Financial 
Statements.

 ii. The Company did not have any material foreseeable 
losses on its long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts;

 iii. There were no amounts which were required to  be 
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund. 

For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co. For Rakesh Raj & Associates
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 000756N                                                  Firm Reg. No. 005145N

Yogesh K. Gupta
Partner   
M. No. 093214    

Ruchi Jain
Partner

M. No.  099920

Place: Faridabad
Date: 8th June’2016   

Place: Faridabad
Date: 8th June’2016
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(As referred in paragraph (1) ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements ‘of our report to the members of SRS Limited on 
the accounts for the year ended March 31, 2016)

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing 
full particulars including quantitative details and 
situation of fixed assets.

 (b) As explained to us, the company has a regular program 
of physical verification of its fixed assets by which fixed 
assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of 
three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having 
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its 
assets. In accordance with the program, fixed assets 
were verified during the year and no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

 (c) According to the information and explanations given to 
us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 
the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties 
held are in the name of the company. 

(ii) The inventory has been physically verified by the 
management at reasonable intervals during the year. As far 
as we could ascertain and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were 
noticed between the physical stock and the book records.

(iii) The Company has granted unsecured loan to one company 
covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’).

 (a) In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and 
conditions on which the loans had been granted were 
not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the 
Company.

 (b) The principal and interest amount is repayable as per 
stipulations.

 (c) Since the principal & interest amount is repayable as per 
stipulations, provisions of clause (3)(iii)(c)  of the order are 
not applicable to the company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the 
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to 
the loans and investments made. 

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and 

explanations given to us, except for the provisions of section 

73(2)(c), the Company has complied with the directives 

issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of 

Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the 

Companies Act and the rules framed there under with regard 

to deposits accepted from the public. We have been informed 

that no order has been passed by Company Law Board or 

National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or 

any Court or any other Tribunal in this regard. Deposit 

Repayment Reserve Account for the Fixed deposits at the 

close of the year, required under Section 73(2)(c) of the 

Companies Act, 2013  equal to 15% of the deposits maturing 

in the year & year following were found short by Rs.1360 Lacs.

(vi) According to information and explanations given to us, the 

Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost 

records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, provisions of Clause 3 (vi) of 

the order are not applicable to the company.

(vii) (a) The Company, has been generally regular in 

depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed 

statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ 

State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty 

of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and 

any other material statutory dues applicable to it, 

though there has been a slight delay in a few cases.

  According to information and explanations given to us, 

no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident 

Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, 

Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added 

Tax and Cess were in arrears as at March 31, 2016 for a 

period of more than six months from the date they 

became payable.

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to 

us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, 

Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise & Value Added Tax which 

have not been deposited on account of any dispute 

except as given below:

Name of the
Statute

Nature of
dues

Amount
(` in lacs)

Period to which
the amount relates

Forum where the
dispute is pending

S.No.

1 Income Tax Act 1961 Income Tax 15.70 AY 2009-10  Commissioner of Income Tax- Appeal
2 Income Tax Act 1961 Income Tax 516.33* AY 2012-13 Commissioner of Income Tax- Appeal
3 Income Tax Act 1961 Income Tax 614.63 AY 2013-14 Commissioner of Income Tax- Appeal

* net of amount of Rs.120 Lacs paid under protest  
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For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co.      For Rakesh Raj & Associates
Chartered Accountants                          Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 000756N                                                        Firm Reg. No. 005145N

Yogesh K. Gupta                                                        Ruchi Jain
Partner                                                              Partner
M. No. 093214                                        M. No.  099920 

Place: Faridabad      Place: Faridabad
Date: 8th June’2016                                                                     Date: 8th June’2016

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information & 

explanations given to us, the company has not defaulted in 

repayment of loan or borrowings to any banks and financial 

institutions as at balance sheet date, except in the below 

mentioned cases where the default has been made good till 

the balance sheet date :-

 The Company does not have any debentures, loans or 
borrowings from the government.

(ix) The company has not raised money by way of initial public 
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) 
during the year. The term loans have been applied for the 
purposes for which they were raised.

(x) Based upon the audit procedure performed for the purpose 
of reporting the true and fair view and on the basis of the 
information and explanations given by the management, we 
report that no fraud on or by the company has been noticed 
or reported during the course of our audit.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us 
and based on our examination of the records of the Company, 
the Company has paid/provided for managerial 

remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals 
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with 
Schedule V to the Companies Act.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi 
company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not 
applicable.

(xiii) As per the information and explanations given to us and 
based on our examination of the records of the Company, all 
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 
Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 wherever 
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the 
Financial Statements etc. as required by the applicable 
accounting standards. 

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us 
and based on our examination of the records of the Company, 
the Company has not made any preferential allotment or 
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 
debentures during the year.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us 
and based on our examination of the records of the Company, 
the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions 
with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi) The company is not required to be registered under Section 
45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Period of
default

State Bank 250 Nil 1-4 days
of India     

Yogesh K. Gupta                                                        Ruchi Jain
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We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of SRS Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2016 in 
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements 
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's 
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, 
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal 
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion 
on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a 
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial 
control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance 
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of 
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

Quali�ed opinion
According to the information and explanations given to us and 
based on our audit, the following material weakness has been 
identified as at March 31, 2016:

a) The Company’s UAE Branch did not have an appropriate 
internal control system for customer acceptance, credit 
evaluation and establishing customer credit limits for sales, 
which could potentially result in the Company recognizing 
revenue without establishing reasonable certainty of ultimate 
collection.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of 

ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SRS LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial reporting, 
such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the company's annual or interim financial 
statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the material 
weakness described above on the achievement of the objectives of 
the control criteria, the Company has maintained, in all material 
respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as of March 31, 2016, based on 
“the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 

the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India”.

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported 
above in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests 
applied in our audit of the March 31, 2016 financial statements of 
the Company, and the possible impact due to aforesaid material 
weakness, has been appropriately reflected in our qualified 
opinion on the standalone financial statements of the Company in 
respect of the same. 
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We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of SRS Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2016 in 
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements 
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's 
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, 
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal 
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion 
on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a 
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial 
control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance 
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of 
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

Quali�ed opinion
According to the information and explanations given to us and 
based on our audit, the following material weakness has been 
identified as at March 31, 2016:

a) The Company’s UAE Branch did not have an appropriate 
internal control system for customer acceptance, credit 
evaluation and establishing customer credit limits for sales, 
which could potentially result in the Company recognizing 
revenue without establishing reasonable certainty of ultimate 
collection.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of 

For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co.                                For Rakesh Raj & Associates
Chartered Accountants  Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 000756N                                           Firm Reg. No. 005145N

Yogesh K. Gupta                                                       Ruchi Jain
Partner  Partner
M. No. 093214  M. No.  099920

Place: Faridabad  Place: Faridabad
Date: 8th June’2016                                                               Date: 8th June’2016

deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial reporting, 
such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the company's annual or interim financial 
statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the material 
weakness described above on the achievement of the objectives of 
the control criteria, the Company has maintained, in all material 
respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as of March 31, 2016, based on 
“the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 

the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India”.

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported 
above in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests 
applied in our audit of the March 31, 2016 financial statements of 
the Company, and the possible impact due to aforesaid material 
weakness, has been appropriately reflected in our qualified 
opinion on the standalone financial statements of the Company in 
respect of the same. 
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2016 ₹ in Lacs

 Particulars Note  As at As at
   No. 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
 (1) Shareholders' Funds
  Share Capital 2 27,858.20 13,929.10
  Reserves and Surplus 3 36,579.55 48,910.88

    64,437.75 62,839.98
 (2) Non-Current Liabilities
  Long-Term Borrowings 4 2,041.15 2,497.37
  Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 5 1,557.38 1,594.04
  Other Long-term Liabilities 6  8.03 28.73
  Long-Term Provisions 7  227.20 186.72

     3,833.76 4,306.86
 (3) Current Liabilities
  Short-Term Borrowings 8  67,867.33 57,354.08
  Trade Payables 9  45,321.46 34,327.87
  Other Current Liabilities 10  3,036.32 2,254.85
  Short-Term Provisions 11  161.22 541.35

     116,386.33 94,478.15
  Total   184,657.84 161,624.99

II. ASSETS
 (1) Non-Current Assets    
  Fixed Assets 12 
  -  Tangible Assets 12.1  21,971.67 23,248.53
  -  Intangible Assets 12.2  72.37 115.11
  -  Capital Work in Progress 12.3  105.24 25.42

     22,149.28 23,389.06
  Non-Current Investments 13  1,926.96 92.96
  Long-Term Loans & Advances 14  1,336.51 1,297.92
  Other  Non-Current Assets 15  153.96 43.91

    25,566.71 24,823.85
 (2) Current Assets    
  Current Investments 16  5.00 180.00

  Inventories 17  55,077.88 35,784.80

  Trade Receivables 18  80,786.61 88,570.25

  Cash & Bank Balances 19  6,384.52 9,662.24
  Short-Term Loans & Advances 20  16,723.16 2,448.77
  Other Current Assets 21  113.96 155.08

     159,091.13 136,801.14

  Total  184,657.84 161,624.99

Significant Accounting Policies 1

Accompanying Notes from 1 to 46 are integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached.

For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co.   For Rakesh Raj & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
(Chartered Accountants)                        (Chartered Accountants) 
Firm Regn. No. 000756N                           Firm Regn. No. 005145N   
   (Sunil Jindal) (Raju Bansal)
   Managing  Director Whole-Time Director
   DIN-00013791 DIN-00007344

(Yogesh K. Gupta)         (Ruchi Jain)         (Navneet Kwatra)            (Bhagwan Dass)
Partner              Partner      COO & Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
M. No. 093214    M. No. 099920   M. No. 16672            

Place: Faridabad 
Date:  08th June 2016    

Firm Regn. No. 000756N                           Firm Regn. No. 005145N   Firm Regn. No. 000756N                           Firm Regn. No. 005145N   

SRS Limited | Annual Report 2015-16

86



Statement of Pro�t and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2016 

 Particulars Note  For the year  For the year 
    ended 31-Mar-16 ended 31-Mar-15

 Income
 Revenue from Operations 24  373,282.51 382,483.79
 Other Income 25  90.55 586.00

 Total Revenue   373,373.06 383,069.79

 Expenses
 Cost of materials consumed 26  81,909.73 130,307.77
 Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 27  276,191.92 231,900.66
 Change in Inventories of 28  (14,245.86) (8,364.80)
 finished goods & stock-in-trade 
 Employee benefits expense 29  3,699.64  3,379.75
 Finance Costs 30  8,089.25  7,062.97
 Depreciation and amortisation expense 31  1,890.30  2,088.43
 Other Expenses 32  13,919.08  11,794.91

 Total   371,454.06  378,169.69

 Pro�t before Tax   1,919.00  4,900.10
 Less: Tax Expense
 - Current Tax   410.70  1,037.02
 - Deferred Tax   (36.66) (27.50)
 - MAT Credit    (71.41) (12.85)
 - Earlier year (s) Tax   18.60  22.04

 Total Tax Expenses   321.23  1,018.71

 Pro�t for the year   1,597.77  3,881.39

 Earning per share :
 (Refer Note No 33)
 Face Value per Equity Share (in ₹)  10.00  10.00
 Basic & Diluted (in ₹)   0.57  1.39

 Significant Accounting Policies 1

Accompanying Notes from 1 to 46 are integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co.   For Rakesh Raj & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
(Chartered Accountants)                        (Chartered Accountants) 
Firm Regn. No. 000756N                           Firm Regn. No. 005145N
   
   (Sunil Jindal) (Raju Bansal)
   Managing  Director Whole-Time Director
   DIN-00013791 DIN-00007344

(Yogesh K. Gupta)         (Ruchi Jain)         (Navneet Kwatra)            (Bhagwan Dass)
Partner              Partner      COO & Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
M. No. 093214    M. No. 099920   M. No. 16672            

Place: Faridabad 
Date:  08th June 2016    

₹ in Lacs
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2016

 Particulars  For the year ended For the year ended
    31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

A Cash Flow from Operating Activities
 Net Pro�t before Tax (as per Statement of Pro�t & Loss)  1,919.00  4,900.10 
 Adjustment for:
 Depreciation / Amortisation  1,890.30  2,088.43 
 Amount w/off (net)   575.55  (27.21)
  Interest Expenses (Net of Interest Received on Fixed Deposits)   8,089.25  7,062.97
 Loss/(Profit) on Capital Assets   26.02  0.17
 Profit on sale of Investments  (41.28) -   
 Effect of exchange rate change  622.52  (564.90)
 Fixed Assets & CWIP written off  76.99  6.06 

 Operating pro�t before working capital changes   13,158.35 13,465.62 
 Adjustment for:
 Increase / (decrease) in Other Long-Term Liabilities   (20.70) (6.77)
 Increase / (decrease) in Long-Term Provisions    40.48  39.30
 Increase / (decrease) in Trade Payable   10,567.70  (9,636.19)
 Increase / (decrease) in Other Current Liabilities    643.11  (122.81)
 Increase / (decrease) in Short-Term Provisions   2.01  4.44 
 (Increase) / decrease in Long-Term Loans & Advances   113.02  (111.43)
 (Increase) / decrease in Other  Non-Current Assets    (110.05) 26.59 
 (Increase) / decrease in Trade Receivable    7,011.46  (1,841.02)
 (Increase) / decrease in Short-Term Loans & Advances   (13,874.31) 318.63 
 (Increase) / decrease in Other Current Assets   16.46  613.95 
 (Increase) / decrease in Inventories   (19,293.08) (9,026.62) 

 Cash Generated from Operations   (1,745.55)  (6,276.31) 
 Direct Taxes Paid   (888.95) (1,054.32)

 Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A)   (2,634.50) (7,330.63)
B Cash Flow from Investing Activities
 Purchases of Fixed Assets [including Advances for projects   (806.42) (835.43)
 Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets & CWIP    10.56   -   
 Investment in Mutual Funds   -    1.93
 Investment in Subsidiary    (1,834.00) (25.00)
 Proceeds from Sale of Investment in Mutual Funds    216.28  (92.96)
 Loans Given to others   (328.67) -   

 Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (B)    (2,742.25) (951.46)
C Cash Flow from Financing Activities
 Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings   1,027.61  1,621.26 
 Repayments of Long Term Borrowings   (428.88) (986.59)
 Net Proceed from Short Term Borrowing    15,880.32  13,014.16 
 Repayments of Short Term Borrowings   (6,430.09) (2,730.58)
 Dividend Paid   -    (0.05)
 Interest Paid (Net of Interest Received on Fixed Deposits)    (7,949.93) (6,717.55)

 Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (C)    2,099.03  4,200.65 

 Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)   (3,277.72)  (4,081.44)
 Cash and Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the year    9,662.24  13,743.68 
 Cash and Cash Equivalent at the end of the year    6,384.52  9,662.24 

 Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents    (3,277.72) (4,081.44)

For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co.   For Rakesh Raj & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
(Chartered Accountants)                        (Chartered Accountants) 
Firm Regn. No. 000756N                           Firm Regn. No. 005145N   
   (Sunil Jindal) (Raju Bansal)
   Managing  Director Whole-Time Director
   DIN-00013791 DIN-00007344

(Yogesh K. Gupta)         (Ruchi Jain)         (Navneet Kwatra)            (Bhagwan Dass)
Partner              Partner      COO & Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
M. No. 093214    M. No. 099920   M. No. 16672            
Place: Faridabad 
Date:  08th June 2016    

Firm Regn. No. 000756N                           Firm Regn. No. 005145N   Firm Regn. No. 000756N                           Firm Regn. No. 005145N   

   DIN-00013791 DIN-00007344

As per our report of even date attached. 

₹ in Lacs
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1 Signi�cant Accounting Policies

1.1 Basis of Preparation
 The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India (Indian 
GAAP) under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. These Financial Statements have been prepared to comply with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read 
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The accounting policy have been consistently applied by the company, except 
as otherwise stated.

 All Assets and Liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the normal operating cycle and other criteria set out 
in the Schedule III to the Companies’ Act, 2013. Based on the nature of goods sold/ services provided and time between the sale of 
goods/rendering of services and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 
12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

1.2 Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements is in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles, which requires 
estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reportable amount of assets and liabilities on the date of financial statements 
and the reportable amount of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual results and 
estimates are recognized in the year in which the results are known / materialized.

1.3 Revenue Recognition

i Revenue from sale is recognized when the significant risk and rewards in respect of ownership of the goods are transferred to 
customer.

ii Revenue from theatre business is recognized on the basis of tickets sold for the period under accounting.

iii Entertainment tax collection in respect of its multiplex set up in Uttar Pradesh (U.P.) has been recognised as revenue on the sale of 
tickets, considering the exemption from payment of entertainment tax upto a specified period in terms of the scheme of UP state 
government. Since the collection is dependent on sale of tickets being uncertain and collection of aforesaid tax is normal trading 
transaction, it has not been recognised as grant in terms of Accounting Standard-12 “Accounting for Government Grants”.

iv Revenue from Lease Rent, Common Area Maintenance (CAM) Charges and Interest is recognized on a time proportion basis.

v Advertisement revenue is recognized as and when advertisement is displayed.

vi Sale of land, plots and other properties is recognised in the financial year in which the transfer is made by agreement to sell / 
registration of sale deed or otherwise in favor of parties.

vii Claims lodged with the insurance companies are accounted on accrual basis to the extent these are measurable and ultimate 
collection is reasonably certain.

1.4 Tangible Assets
Fixed Assets are stated at Cost less Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment Losses, if any. Cost comprises the cost of acquisition 
/ purchase price inclusive of duties, taxes, incidental expenses, erection / commissioning expenses, interest etc. up to the date the 
asset is ready for its intended use. Credit of duty, if availed, is adjusted in the acquisition cost of the respective fixed assets.

1.5 Intangible Assets
 Intangible assets are recognized as per the criteria specified in Accounting Standard (AS)-26 “Intangible Assets” and recorded at the 
consideration paid for acquisition.
Software which is not an integral part of the related hardware is capitalized as an intangible asset.

1.6 Capital Works-in-Progress
 Capital Works-in-Progress is carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and interest on borrowings to the 
extent attributed to them.

1.7 Depreciation on Fixed Assets and Amortization
 The company has provided depreciation as per straight line method over their useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II 
of the Companies Act, 2013.
 Depreciation on Plant & machinery and Office equipment costing upto ₹ 5,000/- is provided @100% over a period of one (1) year.
Intangible Assets are amortized over the useful life of the assets or ten (10) years, whichever is earlier.
 Depreciation on leasehold improvements is charged over the period of lease.

Signi�cant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2016
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1.8 Borrowing Cost
 Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost of 
Assets. Qualifying Asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use. All other borrowing 
costs are treated as period cost and charged to the statement of profit and loss in the year in which it was incurred.

1.9 Impairment of Assets
 An asset is impaired if there is sufficient indication that the carrying cost would exceed the recoverable amount of cash generating 
asset. In that event an impairment loss so computed would be recognized in the accounts in the relevant year.

1.10 Investments
 Current investments are stated at lower of cost and fair market value. Long-term investments are valued at their acquisition cost. 
The provision for any diminution in the value of long- term investments is made only if such a decline is other than temporary.

1.11 Inventories
 Raw materials are valued at lower of Cost and Net Realizable Value.
 Finished goods are valued at lower of Cost (raw material and appropriate proportion of overheads) and Net Realizable Value.
Goods held for Resale are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.
 Costs of inventories are determined on First in First out (‘FIFO’) basis in the ordinary course of business.
 Net Realizable Value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

1.12 Foreign Exchange Transaction
 Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transactions.

 Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year end are restated at year end rates. In case of items which are covered 
by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the year end rate and rate on the date of the contract is recognized as 
exchange difference and the premium paid on forward contracts is recognized over the life of the contract. Any profit or loss arising 
on cancellation or renewal of forward exchange contracts are recognized as income or as expenses for the year.

 Non-monetary items are carried at cost.

 Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is recognized and is reflected 
separately in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

 "In respect of foreign branch, the company has adopted integral foreign operation approach as per revised AS 11 and accordingly 
revenue items have been converted at date of transaction date. Fixed assets have been converted at the rates prevailing on dates of 
purchase. All other monetary Assets and Liabilities are converted at the year-end exchange rate. Exchange gain or loss arising out of 
above is charged to Statement of Profit & Loss."

1.13 Taxations
Current Tax:
Provision for Taxation is ascertained on the basis of assessable profit computed in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act, 
1961.

 Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) Credit:
Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognized, as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company 
will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an 
asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in guidance note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Profit and Loss Account and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement under Loans & 
Advances. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit 
Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will pay normal Income Tax during the 
specified period. 

 Deferred Tax:
 Deferred Tax is recognized, subject to the consideration of prudence, as the tax effect of timing difference between the taxable 
income & accounting income computed for the current accounting year and reversal of earlier years’ timing difference.

 Deferred Tax Assets are recognized and carried forward to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty, except arising from 
unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses, which are recognized to the extent that there is virtual certainty, that sufficient 
future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.
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1.14 Employee bene�ts
Short Term Employee Bene�ts:

 All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employee benefits 
 and the undiscounted amount of such employee benefits are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the 
employee renders the related services. These benefits include salaries, wages, bonus, performance incentives etc.

 De�ned Bene�t Plan
 Gratuity and long–term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation carried out at the close of each period. 
The actuarial valuation is done by an Independent Actuary as per projected unit credit method.

 De�ned Contribution Plan
The Company’s contribution to Employees Provident Fund and Family Pension Fund are deposited with the Regional Provident 
Fund Commissioner and is charged to Statement of Profit & Loss during the period on due basis.

1.15 Segment reporting

 Identi�cation of segments
 The Company’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of products manufactured 
and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products. The analysis of 
geographical segments is based on the areas in which major operating divisions of the Company operate.

 Allocation of common costs
 Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment on reasonable basis.

 Unallocated items
Include general corporate income and expense items which are not allocable to any business segment.

 Segment policies
 The company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting 
the financial statements of the company as a whole.

1.16 Leases
 Assets taken on lease under which, all risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as 
operating lease. Operating lease payments are recognized as expenses in the statement of  profit and loss  on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term.

1.17 Cash Flow Statement
 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby a profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash 
nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, financing and 
investing activities of the Company are segregated.

1.18  Earning Per Share
 Earning Per Share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the Net Profit or Loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the 
Weighted Average Number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

 For the purpose of calculating Diluted Earning Per share, the Net Profit or Loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders is 
divided by the Weighted Average Number of shares outstanding during the period after adjusting for the effects of all dilutive 
potential equity shares.

1.19 Miscellaneous Expenditure
 Share issue expenses are adjusted from Securities Premium Account at the time of issue of respective Shares.

 1.20  Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
 Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present obligation as a result 
of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Liabilities which are material, and whose future outcome 
cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty, are treated as contingent, and disclosed by way of notes to the accounts. 
Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Annual Report 2015-16 | SRS Limited

91



2.1 The rights, preference and restrictions attached to each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the 
repayment of capital are as under :

 Equity Shares
The equity shares have a par value of ₹ 10 per share. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and 
pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting.

 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the 
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares 
held by the shareholders.

 During the quarter ended June 30, 2015,the Company has issued 13,92,91,013 number of Bonus Shares to the existing equity 
shareholders in the ratio of 1:1 on 29th June, 2015. Accordingly, the Authorized Share Capital of the Company has been increased 
from Rs.15,000 Lacs to Rs.28,000 Lacs.

2.2 The following holds more than 5% in equity shares of the company

Notes to the Financial Statements as at 31st March 2016 

Name of Shareholder

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

% of HoldingNo. of Shares held % of HoldingNo. of Shares held

BTL HOLDING COMPANY LTD (Formerly 
Known as BTL Investments & Securities 
Ltd)(SRS Holdings India Ltd. merged 
with BTL Investments & Securities 
Limited w.e.f. 18.07.2013)

153,471,810  55.09 76,735,905  55.09

2 Share Capital

Particulars

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Amount
(₹ In lacs)Number Amount

(₹ In lacs)Number

Authorised

Equity Share of Rs. 10/- each

Total

Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up
Equity Share of Rs. 10/- each
Opening
Additions
Deductions
Closing

Total

 280,000,000 

280,000,000 

 
139,291,013 

 139,291,013
-   

278,582,026

278,582,026

 28,000.00 

 28,000.00

13,929.10
13,929.10

-
27,858.20

27,858.20

 150,000,000

150,000,000

139,291,013
-
-

139,291,013

139,291,013

15,000.00 

 15,000.00

13,929.10
-
-

13,929.10

13,929.10
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₹ in Lacs

7 Long-Term Provisions

Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Provision for Employee Bene�ts *
- Gratuity 166.64   132.75 
- Leave Encashment 60.56   53.97 

Total   227.20   186.72 

₹ in Lacs

* Also refer note no. 39.

3 Reserves and Surplus

Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

(A) Securities Premium Account
 Opening Balance  26,607.13   26,607.13
 Add: Addition during the year   -     -  
 Less: Amount utilised for issuance of bonus shares  13,929.10   -   

 Closing Balance  12,678.03   26,607.13

(B)  General Reserve
 Opening Balance  192.96   192.96 
 Add: Transfer during the year  -     - 

 Closing Balance  192.96   192.96

(C)  Surplus in Statement of Pro�t & Loss
 Opening Balance   22,110.79   18,575.61 
 Add : Net Profit for the current year  1,597.77   3,881.39

 Amount available for Appropriation  23,708.56   22,457.00 

 (-) Depreciation for assets having Nil remaining life as on 01.04.2014*  -     346.21

 Closing Balance  23,708.56   22,110.79

 Total  36,579.55   48,910.88 

₹ in Lacs

* Refer note no. 31.

5 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

Particulars As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Fixed Assets   1,677.74   1,682.62 

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities (A)   1,677.74   1,682.62

Deferred Tax Assets
Provision for Retirement Benefits   84.91   68.95 
Others    35.45   19.63 

Total Deferred Tax Assets (B)   120.36   88.58

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) (A-B)   1,557.38   1,594.04 

₹ in Lacs6 Other Long-Term Liabilities

Particulars As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Security Deposits Received  8.03   28.73 

 Total  8.03   28.73 
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Notes to the Financial Statements as at 31st March 2016

Particulars  

  

As At
31-Mar-15

As At
31-Mar-16

₹ in Lacs
4 Long-Term Borrowings

Secured
 Term Loan
 - From Bank 268.87  501.27

   268.87  501.27

Unsecured
 - Deferred Credit Payment  - 2.32
 - Public Deposits 1,772.28  1,993.78
   1,772.28  1,996.10

Total    2,041.15  2,497.37

Particulars  

  

As at
31st Mar

2016

As at
31st Mar

2015

Terms of
Repayment

Particulars of security / guarantees /
/ default

₹ in Lacs4.1 The requisite particulars in respect of secured borrowings  are as under:

State Bank of India - 
Corporate Loan

Balance Outstanding  474.99 775.00
Current Maturity  299.99   300.00
Non-Current Maturity  175.00   475.00

Vehicle Loan from Banks
Balance Outstanding 141.18  65.37 
Current Maturity 47.31  39.10
Non-Current Maturity 93.87  26.27

Summary  
Balance Outstanding 616.16  840.37
Current Maturity 347.29  339.10 
Non-Current Maturity 268.87  501.27 

Term Loan From Other Parties
Vehicle Loan
Balance Outstanding  -    4.76
Current Maturity  -    4.76
Non-Current Maturity  -    -

40 equal monthly 

installments of ₹ 

25.00 Lacs 

commencing from 

July 31, 2014.

Total 16 (PY 14) 
number of vehicle 
loan repayable within 
36 - 48 equal monthly 
installments.

Total Nil ( PY 1) 
number of vehicle 
loan repayable within 
36 equal monthly 
installments.

"Secured against first pari pasu charge on all the fixed assets 

of the Company, including Equitable Mortgage of land and 

building at site no 4, City Center, Sector-12 Faridabad with 

plot area measuring 2,136.86 sq. mtr. and Multiplex-cum 

Shopping Mall constructed thereon in the name of the 

Company and further secured by first pari pasu charge on 

((a) 8 acres of land at Prithla in the name of SPS Buildcon Ltd. 

(merged with SRS Retreat Services Ltd.)  (b) 6.84 acres of 

land at Prithla in the name of SRS Retreat Services Ltd. (c) 

Extension of charge on current assets. The Facility is further 

secured by personal guarantee of Directors and corporate 

guarantee of SRS Retreat Services Ltd, BTL Holding Company 

Limited {(formerly known as BTL Investments & Securities 

Limited)(SRS Holdings India Ltd merged with BTL 

Investments & Securities Limited w.e.f 18.07.2013)}, SRS 

Knowledge & Technologies Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly known as SRS 

Professional Services Ltd.), and Latest IT Solutions Ltd. 

(Formerly known as SRS IT Solutions Ltd.

Applicable rate of interest is base rate + 3.25 % subject to 

change from time to time."  

Secured against hypothecation of specified vehicles of the 

Company.

Applicable rate of interest is 10.10 % to 14 % .  

 

  

  

  

Secured against hypothecation of specified vehicles of the 

Company.

Applicable rate of interest is 10.60 % .
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Particulars  

  Public Deposits *
Balance Outstanding 9,492.70 8,274.17  Repayable in  2015-16, 2016-17,
Current Maturity  7,720.42 6,280.40  2017-18 and 2018-19. 
Non-Current Maturity  1,772.28 1,993.77

Others
Balance Outstanding  - 13.82  Repayable within 48
Current Maturity  - 11.50   monthly installments.
Non-Current Maturity  - 2.32

Summary
Balance Outstanding  9,492.70  8,287.99
Current Maturity  7,720.42 6,291.90
Non-Current Maturity  1,772.28 1,996.09

₹ in Lacs
4.2 The requisite particulars in respect of unsecured borrowings are as under:

As at 31st Mar
2016

As at 31st  Mar
2015 Terms of Repayment 

* Includes Rs. 2756.26 lacs (PY Rs. 859.77 lacs) received from Shareholders of the Company.    

4.3 Thus the aggregate amount of loan guaranteed by directors is ₹  474.99 lacs (PY ₹ 775.00 lacs) 

       
8 Short-Term Borrowings ₹ in Lacs

Particulars

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

UnsecuredSecured UnsecuredSecured

Loan Repayable on Demand from Bank     

 - Cash Credit * 47,969.42   -     40,598.68   - 
 - Demand Loan * # 10,000.00   -     10,475.00   - 
 - Gold Loan @ 1,952.49   -     -     -     
  59,921.91   -     51,073.68   - 

Loans from Corporate ** 225.00   -   -   -   

  225.00   -     -     -

Fixed Deposit Scheme 
 - Public Deposit -     7,720.42   -     6,280.40
 - Inter Corporate Deposit -     -     -     -   
  -     7,720.42   -     6,280.40

Total   60,146.91   7,720.42   51,073.68   6,280.40 

* On consortium with State Bank of India, State Bank of Patiala, State Bank of Bikaner & Jaipur, Bank of India, Oriental Bank of Commerce, 
Union Bank of India, State Bank of Travancore and Syndicate Bank is Secured against hypothecation of stocks & book debts and equitable 
mortgage of specific properties and Personal guarantee of Directors and Corporate guarantee of SRS Retreat Services Ltd., BTL Holding 
Company Limited {(formerly known as BTL Investments and Securities Limited)(SRS Holdings India Ltd merged with BTL Holding Company 
Limited w.e.f 18.07.2013)}, SRS Knowledge & Technologies Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly known as SRS Professional Services Ltd.), and Latest IT 
Solutions Ltd. (Formerly known as SRS IT Solutions Pvt. Ltd.)
# Includes demand loan of Rs. Nil (PY Rs. 475.00 lacs) from Oriental Bank of Commerce secured against fixed deposit.
@ Gold Loan (Metal) from Bank is secured against Letter of Credit and FDR.
** Secured against pledge of 42.95 lacs equity shares of the company by holding company "BTL Holding Company Limited".

8.1 Thus the aggregate amount of loan guaranteed by directors is ₹ 57969.42 lacs (PY ₹ 51073.68 lacs) 
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₹ in Lacs

9 Trade Payables

Particulars

Dues of MSMEs * - -
Dues of other than MSMEs 45,321.46  34,327.87 

Total  45,321.46  34,327.87 

* The above information as required to be disclosed under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been 
determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. Further no interest has 
been paid during the year and payable as on 31st March 2016 as well as 31st March 2015 to such parties.

10.1 Current Maturity of Long Term Debts (Refer note no. 4.1 & 4.2) 

  
Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-15

Secured
 Term Loan
 - From Bank 347.29  339.10 
 - From Other Parties -    4.76   
  347.29  343.86 

Unsecured
 Deferred Credit `Payment -    11.50

  -    11.50

Total  347.29  355.36

₹ in Lacs

31-Mar-16

11 Short-Term Provisions

Particulars  

  

As at

Provision for Employee Bene�ts *
 - Gratuity 14.00  12.32 
 - Leave Encashment 4.14  3.81 

Others :
 - Provision for Income Tax (net of advance tax) 143.08  525.22

Total  161.22  541.35

₹ in Lacs

* Also refer note no. 39.

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

* Investor Education and Protection Fund will be credited as and when due.  

10 Other Current Liabilities

Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-15

Current Maturities of Long Term Debts (Refer note no. 10.1) 347.29   355.36 
Interest Accrued but not due 495.23   338.08 
Share Application Money received for Allotment of Securities due for refund 1.79   3.74
and interest accrued thereon* 
Unclaimed Dividend * 1.38   1.38
Creditors for Capital Expenditures 28.17   38.89 
Non Trade Payables (Refer note no. 41) 1,220.10   997.79 
Other Payable
 - Advances Received from Customers 84.35   25.30 
 - Security Deposits Received 27.60   6.76 
 - Retention Money 59.78   92.23 
 - Employees 389.02   310.50 
 - Statutory Dues 381.61   84.82

Total  3,036.32   2,254.85

31-Mar-16
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₹ in Lacs

Land  2,461.26   -     -     2,461.26   -     -     -     -     2,461.26   2,461.26 

Buildings  7,069.45   27.57   -     7,097.02   655.43   113.65   -     769.08   6,327.94   6,414.02 

Leasehold Improvements  10,995.12   30.46   65.01   10,960.57   3,268.80   610.78   19.99   3,859.59   7,100.98   7,726.32

Temporary Structure  2.79   -     -     2.79   2.79   -     -     2.79   -     -  

Plant & Machinery  6,322.29   261.91   55.72   6,528.48   2,243.02   529.90   16.11   2,756.81   3,771.67   4,079.27 

Office Equipment  1,295.47   64.95   6.14   1,354.28   940.00   101.52   5.55   1,035.97   318.31   355.47 

Furniture & Fittings  2,838.92   117.29   24.90   2,931.31   1,049.31   337.74   6.47   1,380.58   1,550.73   1,789.61 

Computers  549.22   67.09   3.01   613.30   418.50   74.83   2.90   490.43   122.87   130.72 

Vehicles  491.48   101.47   22.06   570.89   199.62   65.62   12.26   252.98   317.91   291.86 

TOTAL  32,026.00   670.74   176.84   32,519.90   8,777.47   1,834.04   63.28   10,548.23   21,971.67   23,248.53

Previous Year  30,901.70   1,142.57   18.27   32,026.00   6,223.32   2,564.26   10.11   8,777.47   23,248.53 

Description
 As At

01.04.15  Additions
 Sale /

Adjustment 
 As At

31.03.16 
 As At

31.03.16 
 As At

31.03.16 
 As At

31.03.15
 Upto

01.04.15
 for the
 year *

 on Sale /
Adjustment 

 Gross Carrying Value  Depreciation  Net Carrying Value

12  Fixed Assets 

12.1  Tangible Assets 

₹ in Lacs

Computer Software 340.58   13.53   -     354.11   225.47   56.27   -     281.74   72.37   115.11
(Bought Out)

TOTAL  340.58   13.53   -     354.11   225.47   56.27   -     281.74   72.37   115.11 

Previous Year  295.71   44.87   -     340.58   176.82   48.65   -     225.47   115.11 

Description
 As At

01.04.15  Additions
 Sale /

Adjustment 
 As At

31.03.16 
 As At

31.03.16 
 As At

31.03.16 
 As At

31.03.15
 Upto

01.04.15
 for the
 year *

 on Sale /
Adjustment 

 Gross Carrying Value  Depreciation  Net Carrying Value

12.2 Intangible Assets

* Refer note no. 31 
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12.3 Capital Work in Progress

Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Opening Balance 25.42  345.54 
Add : Addition During the Year 467.71  365.89 

(Includes preoperative expenses (Refer note no. 12.4)
Less : Transferred to Fixed Assets  387.89   686.01

Closing Balance  105.24   25.42 

₹ in Lacs

12.4 CWIP includes Preoperative Expenses which are as follows :  

Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Capital Advances 64.06   32.45
Security Deposits 1,140.34   1,252.95 
Income Tax Recoverable (Refer note no. 22) 120.00   - 
Prepaid Expenses 12.11   12.52 

Total  1,336.51   1,297.92 

₹ in Lacs14 Long-Term Loans & Advances (Unsecured, considered good)

Particulars  

  

Fot the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Legal and Professional  -     5.68 
Electricity and Water Expenses  0.74   0.07 
Lease Rent including CAM  -     6.60 
Miscellaneous Expenses  0.48   - 
Total for the Year  1.22   12.35 
Add: Brought forward from Previous Year  2.77   18.60 
Grand Total  3.99   30.95 
Less: Allocated to Fixed Assets  0.74   24.80 
Less: sold / written off  -     3.38 
Balance Carried Forward  3.25   2.77 

₹ in Lacs

* 132 number of shares held by Dr. Anil Jindal, Mr. Naresh Kumar Goyal, Mr. Ankit Garg and Mr. Ankit Goel as nominee shareholders where the 
beneficiary owner is the company.

Particulars  

  

31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

No. of Shares /
Units

Amount No. of Shares /
Units

Amount

Investments in Subsidiary
SRS Worldwide (FZC) * 550 92.96 550 92.96
SRS Entertainment India Limited (Formerly
known as SRS Entertainment Limited) 18,340,000 1,834.00 -  - 

Total   18,340,550 1,926.96 550.00 92.96

Aggregate Value of Unquoted Investments  1,926.96  92.96

₹ in Lacs13 Non-Current Investments
As at
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16 Current Investments

Particulars Face Value

Amount Amount
No. of

Shares / Units

31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

No. of
Shares / Units

As At

Investment in Mutual Funds
(Quoted, valued at lower of cost and fair value)

 UNION KBC Capital Protection
 Oriented Fund -  Regular Growth 10  50,000  5.00  1,799,990 180.00
 (Kept as margin money against LC)

Total   50,000 5.00 1,799,990  180.00

Aggregate Book Value of Quoted Investments   5.00   180.00
Aggregate Market Value of Quoted Investments   5.78    229.31 

₹ in Lacs

Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

(As Verified, Valued and Certified by the Management)
 Raw Material * 9,664.70  4,617.49 
 Finished Goods# 6,116.02  11,057.52 
 Stock in Trade@ 39,297.16  20,109.79

Total  55,077.88  35,784.80

* Raw Material of ₹ 5776.17  lacs (PY ₹ 2,571.09 lacs) as on 31st March 2016 is lying with third parties.    
# Finished Goods of ₹  101.49 lacs (PY ₹ 22.89 lacs) as on 31stMarch 2016 is lying with third parties.    
@ Stock in Trade of ₹ 21274.32 lacs (PY ₹ 67.79 lacs) as on 31st March 2016 is lying with third parties.
'@ Stock in Trade includes Goods in Transit of ₹ 1.11 lacs (PY Rs 3.51 lacs).

₹ in Lacs17 Inventories

Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from
the date they are due for payment :
 -  Secured, Considered Good 0.28  0.14
 -  Unsecured, Considered Good 90.64  646.95

Other Trade Receivables

   -  Secured, Considered Good 5.10  8.20
 -  Unsecured, Considered Good 80,690.59  87,914.96

Total  80,786.61  88,570.25 

₹ in Lacs18 Trade Receivables

Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Other Bank Balances-Restricted Cash
 -Fixed Deposits pledged with bank for bank guarantees 153.96   43.91
 given to authorities (Refer note no. 19.1) 

Total  153.96   43.91 

₹ in Lacs
15 Other  Non-Current Assets
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Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

(A) Cash & Cash Equivalents
 Cash in Hand 1,223.98   1,279.31
 Balances with banks
 - in Current Accounts  984.01   1,363.33
 - in Deposit Accounts (See note 19.1) 1,758.77   3,142.69
 - in EEFC Account 0.01  0.01

(B) Other Bank Balances
 - in Deposit Accounts (See note 19.1) 2,414.58   3,871.78
 - in Earmarked Accounts
  Share Application Money received for Allotment of 1.79   3.74
  Securities due for refund 
  Unclaimed Dividend Account 1.38   1.38

Total   6,384.52   9,662.24

₹ in Lacs19 Cash & Bank Balances

Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

(A)  Loans & Advances to Related parties (Refer note no. 41)
 Loan to Subsidiary * 328.67   -   
 Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for which value to be received 2.30   9.99
 Advances to Suppliers 6.74   -

(B) Others Loans & Advances
 Advances to Suppliers 14,494.04   782.75 
 Advances to Employees 14.35   13.24 
 Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for which value to be received 100.65   76.28 
 Security Deposits 208.48   95.56 
 Prepaid Expenses 241.75   316.68
 MAT Credit Entitlement 670.16   598.75 
 Cenvat & VAT Recoverable 656.02   555.52

Total   16,723.16   2,448.77 

₹ in Lacs20 Short-Term Loans & Advances (Unsecured, considered good)   

FDR Balances with Bank

Particulars

Deposit Account with Bank
- Upto 3  months maturity from date of acquisition  1,758.77   1,758.77   -     3,142.69   3,142.69   -   
-Upto 12 months maturity from date of acquisition   2,392.41   2,392.41   -     2,933.20   2,933.20   - 
-Maturity more than 12 months but within 22.17   22.17   -     938.58   938.58   -   
one year from the reporting date  
Shown as Current Assets  4,173.35   4,173.35   -     7,014.47   7,014.47   - 
-Maturity more than 12 months but after  153.96   153.96   -     43.91   43.91   - 
one year from the reporting date 
Shown as Non-Current Assets  153.96   153.96   -     43.91   43.91   -   

Total  4,327.31   4,327.31   -     7,058.38   7,058.38   - 

₹ in Lacs19.1

Kept as margin 
Money against 

guarantees / 
LC / Pledged 

with Sales Tax 
Authorities

Kept as margin 
Money against 

guarantees / 
LC / Pledged 

with Sales Tax 
Authorities

Free from 
any lien

Free from 
any lienTotalTotal

31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

As at

* Loan given to SRS Entertainment India Ltd. (Formerly known as SRS Entertainment Ltd.) of  `328.67 lacs (PY Nil) as working capital support and carries intrest rate of 
16.5% p.a.
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Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Interest Accrued but not Due  89.98   114.64
Other Receivables (Refer note no. 41)  23.98   40.44

Total     113.96   155.08

₹ in Lacs
21 Other Current Assets

Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Contingent Liabilities
- Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of Legal Matters* 1,271.11  1,674.85
-  Pending Export Obligations (duty forgone) 0.17   0.09 

Commitments
- Capital Commitments:
 Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on   336.06   254.08 
 capital account and not provided for 

₹ in Lacs22 Contingent Liabilities & Commitments 

* An amount of Rs.120 Lacs deposited by the Company under protest has been shown as Income Tax Recoverable under Long Term Loans & 
Advances (Refer Note No.14), & has not been adjusted above.

23 Derivatives Instruments And Hedged/ Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure

23.1 All derivative contracts entered into by the Company are for hedging purposes.

23.2 Forward Contract outstanding as at Balance Sheet date

Currency
As at

31-Mar-15
Buy / Sell Purpose

31-Mar-16

USD 5   22  Sell Hedging

₹ in Lacs

23.3 Particulars for Hedged Foreign Currency Exposure 

Particulars Currency ₹ in Lacs ₹ in Lacs
 Foreign

Currency in
Lacs 

 Foreign
Currency in

Lacs 

31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

As At

Foreign Currency Receivables USD  5   331.66   22   1,377.00 

₹ in Lacs

23.4 Foreign Currency Exposure that are not hedged by derivative transactions or otherwise

Particulars Currency ₹ in Lacs ₹ in Lacs
 Foreign

Currency in
Lacs 

 Foreign
Currency in

Lacs 

31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

As At

₹ in Lacs

Foreign Currency Receivables USD  203.20   13,478.64   346.80   21,706.23

Foreign Currency Receivables AED  1,137.57   20,794.12   0.14   2.30

Foreign Currency Payables USD  -     -     26.40   1,652.56

Foreign Currency Payables AED  1,094.38   19,717.26   0.40   6.86
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Notes to the Financial Statements as at 31st March 2016

Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

 Sale of Goods
 -  Gold & Jewellery  338,983.77  350,777.12
 -  Food & Beverages  3,906.28  3,274.73
 -  Retail  22,048.91  20,951.92
 - Income from sale of tickets of films *  7,325.83  6,651.40
 {(net of entertainment and show tax of ₹ 2585.05 Lacs (PYr ₹ 1720.71 Lacs)} 

   372,264.79  381,655.17

 Sale of Services
 - Lease Rent Income  177.90  170.93
 - Common Area Maintenance Charges  26.82  26.77
 - Advertisement Income  591.19  440.80
 - Income From Film Distribution  131.98  112.33
 - Commission Income  33.52  37.12
 - Trademark / Franchise Fee  21.75  16.68
 - Management Fees  34.56  23.99
   1,017.72  828.62

Total    373,282.51   382,483.79

₹ in Lacs24 Revenue from Operations

* Income from sale of tickets of films includes Entertainment Tax of ₹ 173.88 lacs (PY ₹ 702.80  lacs) for which the company is exempted for 
deposition in terms of the scheme of U.P. State Government.

Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

 Interest Income  17.51  - 
 Net Gain on Sale of Current Investment  41.28  -  
 Other Non-Operating Income  
 Profit on Future/Forward-Commodity & Currency (Refer note no. 32)  5.54  -  
 Bad Debts & balance w/off (net) (Refer note no. 32)  -    27.21
  Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (net) (Refer note no. 32)  -    505.36
 Sale of Scrap  17.44  36.12 
 Insurance Claim Received  -    4.88 
 Miscellaneous Income  8.78  12.43

Total   90.55  586.00

₹ in Lacs25 Other Income

Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Gold Bar   80,844.50  129,346.04
Semi Precious Stone 20.41  13.75
Food & Beverages 1,044.82  947.98 

Total   81,909.73  130,307.77

₹ in Lacs26 Cost of materials consumed
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Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Gold & Jewellery 257,022.51 213,654.49
Food & Beverages 247.70  303.03
Retail   18,921.72  17,943.14

Total    276,191.93   231,900.66

₹ in Lacs
27 Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Closing Stock 
Finished Goods  6,116.02  11,057.53
Stock in Trade  39,297.16  20,109.79 

Opening Stock
Finished Goods  11,057.53  9,259.44 
Stock in Trade  20,109.79  13,543.08

Decrease / (Increase) in Inventories (14,245.86) (8,364.80)

₹ in Lacs28 Change in Inventories of �nished goods & stock-in-trade

Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Finished Goods
 Gold & Jewellery 6,116.02  11,057.53
   6,116.02  11,057.53

Stock in Trade 
 Gold & Jewellery 36,412.66  17,391.82
 Retail 2,884.50  2,717.97 

    39,297.16   20,109.79

Total    45,413.18   31,167.32

₹ in Lacs28.1 Details of Closing Stock

Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Salaries, Wages and Bonus  3,208.76  2,947.67
Contribution to Provident Fund & Other Fund  289.77  257.96
Staff Welfare Expenses  150.52  121.92
Provision for Employees Benefits (Refer note no. 39)  50.59  52.20 

Total    3,699.64  3,379.75 

₹ in Lacs29 Employee bene�ts expense
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Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

 Interest on:
 -  Term Loans  88.08 127.33
 - Cash Credit/Overdraft  6,034.50 5,946.67
 - Gold Loans  61.22  34.74
 - Fixed Deposits  1,200.58  534.89
 - Unsecured Loans and Others   10.33  52.25

Bank Charges and Other Financial Expenses   1,072.26  1,095.00

    8,466.97  7,790.88
Less : Interest Income on FDR kept as margin money / guarantee out of Cash Credit accounts   377.72  727.91

Total     8,089.25  7,062.97

₹ in Lacs
30 Finance Costs

Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Depreciation  1,834.04 2,564.26
Amortisation  56.27 48.65
Less : Transferred to retained earnings * - 524.48

Total    1,890.31  2,088.43

₹ in Lacs31 Depreciation and amortisation expense

* Depreciation of Rs.Nil {(PY Rs. 346.21 lacs) (net of deferred tax Rs. 178.27 lacs)} has been transferred to retained earnings in accordance with 
provisions of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.
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Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

 Payment to Auditors
 - As Auditors  21.24  20.22
 - For Certification  5.14  5.06 
 - For Taxation Matters  -    3.93
  - For Reimbursement of Expenses  0.63  0.63

Total #   27.01  29.84

₹ in Lacs

Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Jobwork Charges  217.09  239.00
Security & House Keeping  1,493.04  1,312.10
Packaging Expenses  113.81  99.63 
Distributor Share & Commission Charges  3,166.65  2,531.00
Fuel Charges   64.01  68.51
Bad Debts & balance w/off (net) (Refer note no. 25)  575.55  - 
Consumable Expenses  20.47  18.69
Freight & Cartage  38.40  27.69
Other Operational Expenses  81.83  23.05
Lease Rent Paid  3,902.41  3,693.81 
Electricity & Water Expenses  1,309.64  1,149.14
Insurance Expenses  84.83  90.35
Repair and Maintenance:
 - Plant & Machinery  206.39  233.98 
 - Building  26.61  77.06
 - Others  158.24  166.55 
Rates & Taxes   950.45  278.64
Payment to Auditors (Refer note no. 32.1)  27.01  29.84
Legal & Professional Expenses  101.57  130.43
Directors' Sitting Fee  9.22  9.25
Miscellaneous Expenses  241.49  252.48
Fixed Assets & CWIP written off  76.99  6.06 
Loss on Capital Assets  26.02  0.17
Donation   3.25  3.11 
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Refer note no. 32.2)  95.25  108.97 
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (Refer note no. 25)  22.33  -  
Hedging Expenses  0.82  3.46
Loss on Future/Forward-Commodity & Currency (Refer note no. 25)  -    22.88
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses  167.27  137.35 
Selling & Distribution Expenses  173.28  209.35
Commission & Service Charges  190.13  154.13
Advertisement  321.71  700.05 
Prior Period Expenses  15.59  18.18
Service Tax Paid on Recipient Basis  37.73  -  

Total    13,919.08  11,794.91

₹ in Lacs32 Other Expenses

32.1 Payment to Auditors

# Figures are inclusive of service tax.
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Particulars  

  

In Cash TotalYet To be paid in Cash

(i)   Construction / acquisition of any asset   -     -     -   
(ii)  On purpose other than above (i) above *  9,525,000   -     9,525,000

* Expense incurred through SRS Social Welfare Association registered under section 80 G of Income Tax Act.  

32.2 Detail of CSR Expenditure (for the year ended 31st March 2016)

 As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its 
average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas for 
CSR activities are eradication of hunger and malnutrition, promoting education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and 
rehabilitation, environment sustainability, disaster relief and rural development projects. A CSR committee has been formed by the 
company as per the Act.

 (a)  Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year  :    Rs. 95,11,294 /-
(b) Amount spent during the year on

Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

a) Numerator:
 Net Profit after taxation as per Statement of Profit & Loss 1,597.77  3,881.39 
b) Denominator * :
 No. of Shares at the beginning of the year 278,582,026  278,582,026 
 Total Equity Share outstanding at the end of the year 278,582,026  278,582,026
 Weighted average no. of equity shares for the year 278,582,026  278,582,026
 Weighted average no. of diluted equity shares for the year 278,582,026  278,582,026 

c)  Face Value per share (in ₹) 10 10

d) Earning per Share (EPS):
 - Basic (in ₹)  0.57   1.39 
 - Diluted (in ₹)  0.57   1.39 

₹ in Lacs33 “Earning per Share” computed in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS)-20 “Earning Per Share”:

* After considering bonus issue. 

During the year bonus shares in the ratio of 1:1 were allotted on 29th June 2015. Corresponding previous year figures have been restated for 
the purpose of computation of Earning Per Share.     

Particulars  

  

31-Mar-15

For the year ended

₹ in Lacs

₹ in Lacs

31-Mar-16

₹ in Lacs % %

34 Value of Imported and Indigenous Material Consumed

Imported 21,952.18  26.80  52,088.40  39.97 
Indigenous 59,957.54  73.20  78,219.37  60.03 

Total 81,909.72  100.00  130,307.77  100.00 
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Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Materials  21,953.03  50,857.08

Total   21,953.03  50,857.08 

₹ in Lacs35 Value of Import on CIF Basis (On accrual basis)

Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

FOB Sale   51,337.52  56,644.63 

Total   51,337.52  56,644.63

₹ in Lacs36 Earning in Foreign Exchange from (on accrual basis):      

Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Advertisement -     0.05
Bank charges and other financial expenses 5.91   5.74
Insurance Expenses 0.51   0.04
Lease Rent Paid 2.57   0.41
Legal & Professional Expenses 0.15   0.87
Miscellaneous Expenses 0.05   0.14
Other Operational Expense 39.13   - 
Rates & Taxes  19.87   0.29
Security & House Keeping 0.21   0.03
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses -     4.04

Total   68.40   11.61

₹ in Lacs
37 Expenditure in Foreign Currency ( On accrual basis):

38 The amount of Exchange Di�erence (Net):    

 The Foreign Exchange Income / (Loss) of ₹ (22.33 lacs) {PY ₹ 505.36 lacs} resulting from settlement and realignment of foreign 
exchange transaction has been adjusted in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

39 Employee Bene�ts

 a) De�ned Contribution Plans :-
  The Company has recognised ₹ 289.77 lacs (PY ₹ 257.96 lacs) as expense in Statement of Profit & Loss.
b) De�ned Bene�t Plans :-
  The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a
  gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The scheme is funded.  
  The Company has also provided for Leave Encashment which is unfunded.

 The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss, the funded 
status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the respective plans (as per Actuarial Valuation as on 30th September 2015).
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Changes in the present value of De�ned Bene�t Obligation are as follows:

Particulars  

  

As atAs at

GratuityEarned Leave

31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the 57.78   38.85   172.24   149.67
beginning of the year 

Interest Cost 4.77   3.01   14.67   11.60

Past Service Cost  -     -     -     -  

Current Service Cost  21.75   20.46   42.48   38.26 

Benefits Paid (4.54)  (4.31)  (7.24)  (9.48)

Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation (15.05)  (0.22)  (15.90)  (17.80)

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation  at the end of the year  64.70   57.78   206.26   172.24 

Particulars  

  

As at

Gratuity

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Fair value of the plan assets at the beginning of the year 27.17   29.41

Expected return on Plan Assets 2.38   2.65

Contribution by employer 3.55   4.14

Benefits Paid  (7.24)  (9.48)

Actuarial (gain) / loss on Plan Assets (0.25)  0.45

Fair value of the plan assets at the end of the year 25.62   27.17

₹ in LacsChanges in the fair value of Plan Assets are as follows:

₹ in Lacs

Net Asset / (Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet as on 31st March 2016:

Particulars  

  

As atAs at

GratuityEarned Leave

31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the year 64.70  57.78  206.26  172.24

Fair Value of Plan Assets -    -    25.62  27.18

Net Asset / (Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet (64.70) (57.78) (180.64) (145.07)

₹ in Lacs

Particulars  

  

As atAs at

GratuityEarned Leave

31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Discount Rate (based on the market yields available on 7.75% 7.75% 7.75% 7.75%
Government bonds at the accounting date with term that
matches that of the liabilities)

Salary increase (taking into account inflation, seniority, 5.25% 5.25% 5.25% 5.25%
promotion and other relevant factor)

Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets  0.00% 0.00% 8.35% 9.00%

Average Outstanding Service of Employees upto retirement (years) 30.64 30.37 30.64 30.37

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity and leave liability for the Company's plans are shown below:
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Net Employees Bene�t Expense recognized in the Statement of Pro�t & Loss for the year ended 31st March 2016: 

Particulars  

  

As atAs at

GratuityEarned Leave

31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Current Service Cost 21.75 20.46 42.48 38.26

Past Service Cost - - - -

Interest Cost 4.77 3.01 14.67 11.60

Expected return on plan assets - - (2.38) (2.65)

Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the year (15.05) (0.22) (15.65) (18.25)

Expenses recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss 11.46 23.24 39.13 28.95

Bifurcation of Obligation at the end 31st March 2016 :

Particulars  

  

As at

Earned Leave

31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Current Liability (Short Term)  4.14 3.81 14.05 12.32
Non Current Liability (Long Term) 60.56 53.97 166.64 132.75

Total 64.70 57.78 180.64 145.07

As at

Gratuity

40 Segment Reporting   

 The Company has identified three reportable segments viz. Cinemas, Retail and Gold & Jewellery. Segments have been identified 
and reported taking into account nature of products and services, the differing risks and returns and the internal business reporting 
systems. The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policy of the Company with 
following additional policies for segment reporting.

 a) Revenue and expenses have been identified to a segment on the basis of relationship to operating activities of the segment.  
  Revenue and expenses which relate to enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to a segment on reasonable basis have  
  been disclosed as “Unallocable”.

 b) Segment assets and segment liabilities represent assets and liabilities in respective segments. Investments, tax related
  assets and other assets and liabilities that cannot be allocated to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as 
  “Unallocable”.

₹ in Lacs

₹ in Lacs
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40.1 Primary Segment Information :

Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

1 Segment Revenue
 "Net Sales/Income
 (There is no inter-segment revenue)"  
 -    Within India 322,025.64  325,839.16 
 -   Outside India * 51,256.87  56,644.63 

 Total Revenue 373,282.51  382,483.79 

₹ in Lacs
40.2 Secondary Segment Information :    
 Secondary segment for the company constitutes domestic market and international market.

* These figures have been audited by M/s Rakesh Raj & Associates except an amount of Rs. 51,256.87 lacs (Segment revenue), Rs. 750.62 Lacs 
(Segment results), Rs. 34,290.79 Lacs (Segment Assets) and Rs. 19,717.89 Lacs (Segment Liabilities) for UAE Branch for the year ended / as at 
31st March 2016 which has been audited by branch auditor.      

# These figures have been audited by M/s S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co.      

@ These figures have been jointly audited by M/s S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co. and M/s Rakesh Raj & Associates.

₹ in Lacs

1. Segment Revenue

 Net Sales/Income For the year  31-Mar-16 10,773.81  22,264.50   338,984.57   1,259.63  373,282.51 
 (There is no inter- ended 31-Mar-15 9,372.61  21,117.01   350,777.12   1,217.05  382,483.79 
 segment revenue) 

2. Segment Result
 Before interest, For the year  31-Mar-16 2,145.75  (585.47) 14,025.71   (2,235.96) 13,350.03
 other income, ended 31-Mar-15 1,646.76  181.08  13,551.57   (1,907.69) 13,471.72
 depreciation, non-cash
 expenses and taxes 

 Add: Other Income For the year  31-Mar-16 7.21  22.30  5.54   55.50  90.55
  ended 31-Mar-15 12.66  38.78  (59.39)  1.84  (6.11)

 Less: Depreciation For the year  31-Mar-16 893.77  263.37  112.57   620.59  1,890.30 
  ended 31-Mar-15 973.72  243.78  112.63   758.30  2,088.43 

 Less: Non-cash Items For the year  31-Mar-16 (7.17) 111.02  1,406.96   31.22  1,542.03
  ended 31-Mar-15 2.39  (7.16) (567.92)  (13.20) (585.89)

 Profit / (-) Loss before For the year  31-Mar-16 1,266.36  (937.56) 12,511.72   (2,832.27) 10,008.25
 interest and taxes ended 31-Mar-15 683.31  (16.76) 13,947.47   (2,650.95) 11,963.07 

 Finance Cost For the year  31-Mar-16      8,089.25  8,089.25 
 (Net of interest income) ended 31-Mar-15     7,062.97  7,062.97 

 Pro�t before taxes For the year 31-Mar-16      1,919.00 
  ended 31-Mar-15     4,900.10

 Taxes For the year 31-Mar-16     321.23  321.23
  ended 31-Mar-15     1,018.71  1,018.71

 Net Pro�t For the year 31-Mar-16      1,597.77 
  ended 31-Mar-15     3,881.39 

3. Other Informations:
 Segment Assets As at 31-Mar-16 9,002.60  5,504.27  148,770.89   21,380.08  184,657.84  
   31-Mar-15 9,575.07  5,160.12  124,416.13   22,473.67  161,624.99 

 Segment Liabilities As at 31-Mar-16 889.18  2,058.65  72,927.14   44,345.12  120,220.09
   31-Mar-15 672.02  1,281.06  58,083.43   38,748.50  98,785.01 

Particulars Period Cinemas $ Retail # Gold &
Jewellery *

Corporate &
Others

(Unallocable)
 @

Total 
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Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

2 Segment Assets
 -  Within India 150,271.79  138,463.34 
 -   Outside India * 34,386.05  23,161.65

 Total Assets 184,657.84  161,624.99 

3 Segment Liability
 -   Within India 100,502.20  98,778.15 
 - Outside India * 19,717.89  6.86 

 Total Liability 120,220.09  98,785.01 

₹ in Lacs

* Includes an amount of Rs. 51256.87 lacs (Segment Revenue), Rs. 34,290.79 lacs (Segment Assets) and Rs. 19,717.89 lacs (Segment liabilities) 
for UAE Branch for the year ended / as at 31st March 2016 which has been audited by branch auditor.

41 Related Party Disclosure   
 As per Accounting Standard (AS)-18 “Related Party Disclosures”, the Company’s related parties and transactions are disclosed below: 

a. List of related parties & relationships, where control exists:
 Holding Company
BTL Holding Company Limited 
(Formerly known as BTL Investments & Securities Ltd.) (SRS Holdings India Ltd. merged with BTL Investments & Securities Limited 
w.e.f. 18.07.2013)

 Subsidiary Company
SRS Worldwide (FZC) (From 12.11.2014)
SRS Bright Retail Ltd. (Formerly known as SRS E-Retail Ltd.) (From 03.12.2014 to 06.02.2015)
SRS Entertainement India Ltd.(Formley known as SRS Entertainment Ltd.) (From 03.12.2014 to 06.02.2015 and w.e.f 02.01.2016)

 Fellow Subsidiary Company
SRS Real Infrastructure Ltd. (From 18.07.2013)
 SRS Healthcare & Research Centre Limited

 Step Down Subsidiary Company      
 SRS Real Estate Ltd. (From 18.07.2013)
SRS Retreat Services Ltd. (From 18.07.2013)    

b. Related parties & relationships with whom transactions have taken place during the year: 
 i Key Management Personnel (KMP)
  Dr. Anil Jindal  - Chairman
  Mr. Sunil Jindal  - Managing Director
  Mr. Raju Bansal - Whole Time Director
  Mr. Vinod Kumar  - Whole Time Director
  Mr. Naresh Goyal  - Whole Time Director (From 1.10.2014 to 31.01.2015)
  Mr. Bhagwan Das Gupta  - Chief Financial Officer
  Dr. (Ms.) Navneet Kwatra   - COO & Company Secretary

 ii Enterprises owned or signi�cantly in�uenced by KMP and/or their Relatives
  SRS Finance Ltd.
  BTL Holding Company Limited
  (Formerly known as BTL Investments & Securities Ltd.) (SRS Holdings India Ltd. merged with BTL Investments & Securities  
  Limited w.e.f. 18.07.2013)
  SRS Real Infrastructure Ltd.
  SRS Real Estate Ltd.
  SRS Global Securities Ltd.
  SRS Shining Ornaments Limited (Formerly known as Jai Shiv Jewellers & Manufactures Ltd
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₹ in Lacs
c. Transactions with related Parties:

1 SRS Finance Ltd. Rent Received  Income  12.00  12.00

2 SRS Real Infrastructure Ltd. Reimbursement of Expenses (net) Expense  0.09  4.86
  Purchase of Building Material Expense  0.18  19.42
  (Repair & Maintenance Expenses)
  Sale of Goods Income  -   0.57
  CAM Charges Paid Expense  60.71  59.61
  Electricity Charges Paid Expense  34.67  37.89

3 SRS Worldwide FZC Investment in Subsidiary Assets  -   92.96
  Reimbursement of Expenses Expense  -   2.26 

4 SRS Real Estate Ltd. Reimbursement of Expenses (Net)  Expense  4.91  15.51

5 BTL Holding Company Limited  Reimbursement of expenses  Expense  0.18  13.41
  Rent Received  Income  12.00  12.00

6 SRS Global Securities Ltd. Reimbursement of expenses  Expense  -  0.20

7 SRS Entertainment India Ltd. Advance Given  Assets  187.92  156.00
 (Formerly known as Interest received  Income  10.94  1.46 
 SRS Entertainment Limited) Purchase of Goods  Expense  0.17  -
  Investment in Subsidiary made
  and disposed off during the year Assets  -  5.00
  Purchase of shares  Assets  497.50  -
  Reimbursement of expenses  Expense  0.09  1.35
  Sale of Fixed Assets  Assets  0.07  -

8 SRS Bright Retail Ltd. Advance Given and Received Back  Assets  -   56.19
 (Formerly known as SRS E-Retail Ltd.) Interest Received  Income  -   0.92
  Investment in Equity Share made
  and disposed off during the year  Assets  -  5.00
  Reimbursement of Expenses  Expense  -  8.15
  Rent Received  Income  -  0.47
  Sale of Fixed Assets  Assets  -  10.38
  Sale of goods  Income  -  19.59

9 SRS Retreat Services Ltd. Reimbursement of expenses  Expense  0.55  0.84

10 SRS Shining Ornaments Limited
 (Formerly known as Jai Shiv Jewellers Job Work Charges  Expense  47.74  11.80
 & Manufactures Ltd)

11 Dr. Anil Jindal Director’s Remuneration Expense  89.63  179.58

12 Mr. Sunil Jindal Director’s Remuneration  Expense  48.00  42.00

13 Mr. Raju Bansal Director’s Remuneration  Expense  29.86  27.16

14 Mr. Vinod Kumar Gupta Director’s Remuneration  Expense  29.86  29.86

15 Mr. Bhagwan Das Gupta Remuneration Expense  17.09  16.80

16 Dr. (Ms.) Navneet Kwatra Remuneration Expense  17.37  17.07

S.  Name of the Party Nature of Transaction Nature
 For the year ended

No.    31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15
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d. Closing balance with related parties :

1 SRS Finance Ltd.- Holding Co. Non Trade Receivable Assets  1.05  -

2 SRS Real Infrastructure Ltd. Non Trade Payable Liability  38.19   36.49

3 SRS Worldwide FZC Investments in Subsidiary Assets  92.96   92.96
  Advances recoverable in cash or Assets  2.30   2.30
  in kind or for which value to be
  received

4 SRS Real Estate Ltd. Advances recoverable  Assets  -     7.70

5 BTL Holding Company Limited  Non Trade Payable  Liability  0.18   -

6 SRS Entertainment India Ltd.  (Formerly Investments in Subsidiary Assets  1,834.00   -
 known as SRS Entertainment Ltd.) Loan to Subsidiary Assets  328.67   - 

7 SRS Shining Ornaments Limited Advance to suppliers Assets  6.74   -

8 Dr. Anil Jindal Amount Payable Liability  4.51   0.23

9 Mr. Sunil Jindal Amount Payable  Liability  3.22   2.93

10 Mr. Raju Bansal Amount Payable Liability  1.99   2.01

11 Mr. Vinod Kumar Gupta Amount Payable Liability  1.88   1.87

12 Mr. Bhagwan Das Gupta Amount Payable  Liability  1.06   1.33

13 Dr. (Ms.) Navneet Kwatra Amount Payable Liability  1.25   1.35

S.  Name of the Party Nature of Transaction Nature
 For the year ended

No.    31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

e. O� balance sheet items with related parties :

1 BTL Holding Company Limited Corporate Guarantee Received Off Balance 83,500.00  83,500.00

2 SRS Retreat Services Ltd. Corporate Guarantee Received  Sheet items  83,500.00  83,500.00 

S.  Name of the Party Nature of Transaction Nature
 For the year ended

No.    31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

42 In accordance with Accounting Standard "AS-19 on Leases" the following disclosures in respect of operating leases is made as 
under: 

 A. Assets taken on operating lease:

 a) The Company has taken certain shops/offices/other Fixed Assets on non-cancellable operating lease. Minimum lease 
  payments of ₹ 3638.72 lacs (PY ₹ 3421.69 lacs) are charged to Statement of Profit & Loss.

 b) Total contingent rents (Calculated on Revenue Sharing Basis) recognized as expense in the statement of profit and loss for
  the year is ₹ 263.69 lacs (PY ₹ 272.12 lacs).

 c) Future commitments in respect of minimum lease payments payable in respect of aforesaid lease entered by the Company  
  are as follows:      

Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

a. Not later than one year 3,700.62  3,113.24

b. Later than one year and not later than five years 14,661.40  9,974.84

c. Later than five years 4,073.11  5,374.82

₹ in Lacs

₹ in Lacs
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Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

a. Not later than one year 111.38   109.88 

b. Later than one year and not later than five years 232.97   242.06

c. Later than five years 16.39   50.89

₹ in Lacs

 d) Sub-lease payments received (on accrual basis) of ₹ 132 lacs (PY ₹ 137.62 lacs) are recognized in the Statement of Profit &
  Loss.      
e) The total of future minimum sub-lease payments expected to be received under non-cancellable sub-leases at the Balance
  Sheet date are ₹ 261.58 lacs (PY ₹ 315.34 lacs).

 B. Assets given on operating lease:

 a) Future minimum lease payments receivable by the Company in respect of non-cancellable operating lease for shops / kiosks
  entered by the Company are as follows:

 b) Total contingent rents (Calculated on Revenue Sharing Basis) recognized as income in the statement of profit and loss for the
  year is ₹ 36.06 lacs (PY ₹ 22.06 lacs).     

43 In the opinion of the management, the value on realization of current assets, loans & advances in the ordinary course of business 
would not be less than the amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet and provisions for all known liabilities have been 
made.

44 Figures of previous year have been regrouped and/ or rearranged wherever necessary to make them comparable with those of the 
current quarter.

45 All amounts in the financial statements are rounded off to the nearest Rupee in lacs, except as otherwise stated.

46 Note 1 to 45 are annexed to and form an integral part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2016 and Statement of Profit & Loss for 
the year ended as on that date.

For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co.   For Rakesh Raj & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
(Chartered Accountants)                        (Chartered Accountants) 
Firm Regn. No. 000756N                           Firm Regn. No. 005145N
   
   (Sunil Jindal) (Raju Bansal)
   Managing  Director Whole-Time Director
   DIN-00013791 DIN-00007344

(Yogesh K. Gupta)         (Ruchi Jain)         (Navneet Kwatra)            (Bhagwan Dass)
Partner              Partner      COO & Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
M. No. 093214    M. No. 099920   M. No. 16672            

Place: Faridabad 
Date:  08th June 2016    
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements of SRS Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the 
Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and 
its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) which comprise 
the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016, the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated 
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
(hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”). 

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
preparation of these consolidated financial statements in terms of 
the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred 
to as “the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated 
financial position, consolidated financial performance and 
consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read 
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The 
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the 
Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give 
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the 
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by 
the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated 
financial statements based on our audit. 

While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the 
provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and 
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under 
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those 
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether the consolidated financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the amounts and the disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding 
Company’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements 
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the 
Holding Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit 
evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports 
referred to in sub- paragraph (a) & (b) of the Other Matters 
paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our qualified audit opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements.

Basis for Quali�ed Opinion
1. Trade Receivables at UAE Branch of the holding company 

includes an amount of Rs. 34272 lacs on account of sale to 
parties, during the year in UAE (including an amount of 
Rs.14756 Lacs on account of sale to parties from inventories 
sent through NSEZ unit of the company located in India to 
UAE Branch through Branch Transfer), which are unsecured/ 
not backed up by any security.

 We are unable to form an opinion on the recoverability of the 
same & consequent impact on the profit of the company for 
the year ended 31st March’2016.

2. Deposit Repayment Reserve Account for the Fixed deposits at 
the close of the year, required under Section 73(2)(c) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 equal to 15% of the deposits maturing 
in  the year & year following were found short by Rs.1360 Lacs.

 We are unable to comment on the financial implications in 
respect of the same.

Quali�ed Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 

the explanations given to us, except of the possible effects of 

matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the 

aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information 

To,
The Members,
SRS Limited
Faridabad (Haryana)
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required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and 

fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 

accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as 

at March 31, 2016, and their consolidated profit and their 

consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the consolidated financial statements of one 

Foreign subsidiary, namely SRS Worldwide FZC, whose 

consolidated financial statements reflect total assets of 

Rs.4226 Lacs as at 31st March, 2016, total revenues of Rs. 38501 

Lacs for the year ended on that date and we did not audit the 

standalone financial statements of one Indian subsidiary, 

namely SRS Entertainment Limited, whose standalone 

financial statements reflect total assets of Rs.2222 Lacs as at 

31st March, 2016, total revenues of Rs. 878 Lacs (including 

pre-acquisition revenues of Rs.698 Lacs) for the year ended 

on that,  as considered in the consolidated financial 

statements.  These respective financial statements have been 

audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished 

to us by the Management and our opinion on the 

consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the 

amounts and disclosures included in respect of these 

subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other 

auditors.

(b) We did not audit the financial statements of foreign branch 

(registered under SAIF Zone Authority, Sharjah, UAE) of the 

company included in the standalone financial statements of 

the Company whose financial statements reflect total assets 

of Rs.34291 Lacs as at 31st March, 2016 and total revenues of 

Rs. 51257 Lacs for the year ended on that date, as considered 

in the standalone financial statements. The financial 

statements of this branch have been audited by the branch 

auditor (M/s. GSM Auditors, UAE) appointed by Company’s 

Board of Directors, whose report has been furnished to us, and 

our opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts and 

disclosures included in respect of this branch, is based on the 

report of such branch auditor.

(c) In terms of the Joint Responsibility Statement (as per 

Standards on Auditing-299) forming part of the 

Engagement Letter:

 (i) audit of Gold & Jewellery Segment (except specified in 

(b) above) and other segments whose financial 

statements reflect total assets of Rs. 117101 Lacs as at 

31st March, 2016 and total revenues of Rs.287733 Lacs  

for the year ended on that date has been carried out by 

M/s. Rakesh Raj & Associates; &

 (ii)  audit of remaining segments, other than those specified 

in (b) & (c) (i) above viz. Retail, Cinemas and part of other 

segments (whose segment assets & segment revenues 

does not exceed 10 percent of the total segment assets 

& total segment revenue respectively), whose financial 

statements reflect total assets of Rs.33266 Lacs as at 31st 

March, 2016 and total revenues of Rs. 34383 Lacs for the 

year ended on that date has been carried out by M/s. S.S. 

Kothari Mehta & Co.

 Refer note no. 40 of the consolidated financial   

 statements.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our 

report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not 

modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our 

reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(i) As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

 (a) We  have  sought  and  obtained  all  the  information  

and  explanations  which  to  the  best  of  our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit 

of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

 (b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by 

law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated 

financial statements have been kept so far as it appears 

from our examination of those books and the reports of 

the other auditors;

 (c) The   Consolidated  Balance  Sheet,  the   Consolidated  

Statement  of  Profit  and  Loss,  and  the Consolidated 

Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 

agreement with the relevant books  of  account  

maintained  for  the  purpose  of  preparation  of  the  

consolidated  financial statements;

 (d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial 

statements comply with the Accounting Standards 

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

 (e) The matter described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion 

paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse 

effect on the functioning of the Group;

 (f ) On the basis of the written representations received 

from the directors of the Holding Company as on 31st 

March, 2016 taken on record by the Board of Directors of 

the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory 

auditors of its subsidiary company incorporated in India, 

none of the directors of the Group companies 

incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31st March, 

2016 from being appointed as a director in terms of 

Section 164 (2) of the Act;

 (g) With respect to the adequacy of the Internal financial 

controls over financial reporting of the Group and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 

separate report in “Annexure 1”; and

 (h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the 

Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 

opinion and to the best of our information and 
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according to the explanations given to us:

 i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated financial position of the  

 Group- Refer Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

 ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on its long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

 iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding  
 Company and subsidiary company incorporated in India.

For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co.      For Rakesh Raj & Associates
Chartered Accountants                          Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 000756N                                                        Firm Reg. No. 005145N

Yogesh K. Gupta                                                        Ruchi Jain
Partner                                                              Partner
M. No. 093214                                        M. No.  099920 

Place: Faridabad      Place: Faridabad
Date: 8th June’2016                                                                     Date: 8th June’2016

Yogesh K. Gupta                                                        Ruchi Jain
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In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements of the Group as of and for the year ended March 31, 
2016, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of SRS Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding 
Company”) and its subsidiary company incorporated in India, as of 
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company and its 
subsidiary company incorporated in India, are responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on  
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 
the Holding Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in 
India considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI).These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding 
Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India, 
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our 
audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the 
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. 

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including 

the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit 
evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports 
referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on 
the Group’s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a 
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial 
control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance 
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of 
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

Quali�ed Opinion
According to the information and explanations given to us and 
based on our audit of the Holding Company, the following material 
weakness has been identified as at March 31, 2016:

a) The Company’s UAE Branch did not have an appropriate 
internal control system for customer acceptance, credit 
evaluation and establishing customer credit limits for sales, 
which could potentially result in the Company recognizing 
revenue without establishing reasonable certainty of ultimate 
collection.

ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SRS LIMITED

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial reporting, 
such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the company's annual or interim financial 
statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the material 
weaknesses described above on the achievement of the objectives 
of the control criteria, the Holding Company & its subsidiary 
company incorporated in India have maintained , in all material 
respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as of March 31, 2016, based on 
“the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India”.

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported 
above in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests 
applied in our audit of the March 31, 2016 consolidated financial 
statements of the Group, and the possible impact due to aforesaid 
material weakness, has been appropriately reflected in our 
qualified opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the 
Group in respect of the same.

Other Matters 
Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the 
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to one 
subsidiary company, which is incorporated in India, is based on the 
corresponding reports of the auditors of such company.
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In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements of the Group as of and for the year ended March 31, 
2016, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of SRS Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding 
Company”) and its subsidiary company incorporated in India, as of 
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company and its 
subsidiary company incorporated in India, are responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on  
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 
the Holding Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in 
India considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI).These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding 
Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India, 
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our 
audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the 
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. 

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including 

the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit 
evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports 
referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on 
the Group’s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a 
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial 
control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance 
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of 
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

Quali�ed Opinion
According to the information and explanations given to us and 
based on our audit of the Holding Company, the following material 
weakness has been identified as at March 31, 2016:

a) The Company’s UAE Branch did not have an appropriate 
internal control system for customer acceptance, credit 
evaluation and establishing customer credit limits for sales, 
which could potentially result in the Company recognizing 
revenue without establishing reasonable certainty of ultimate 
collection.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial reporting, 
such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the company's annual or interim financial 
statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the material 
weaknesses described above on the achievement of the objectives 
of the control criteria, the Holding Company & its subsidiary 
company incorporated in India have maintained , in all material 
respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as of March 31, 2016, based on 
“the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India”.

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported 
above in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests 
applied in our audit of the March 31, 2016 consolidated financial 
statements of the Group, and the possible impact due to aforesaid 
material weakness, has been appropriately reflected in our 
qualified opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the 
Group in respect of the same.

Other Matters 
Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the 
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to one 
subsidiary company, which is incorporated in India, is based on the 
corresponding reports of the auditors of such company.

For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co.                               For Rakesh Raj & Associates
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 000756N                                          Firm Reg. No. 005145N

Yogesh K. Gupta                                                      Ruchi Jain
Partner Partner
M. No. 093214 M. No.  099920

Place: Faridabad Place: Faridabad
Date: 8th June’2016                                                              Date: 8th June’2016
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2016
₹ in Lacs

Accompanying Notes from 1 to 48 are integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co.   For Rakesh Raj & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
(Chartered Accountants)                        (Chartered Accountants) 
Firm Regn. No. 000756N                           Firm Regn. No. 005145N
   (Sunil Jindal) (Raju Bansal)
   Managing  Director Whole-Time Director
   DIN-00013791 DIN-00007344

(Yogesh K. Gupta)         (Ruchi Jain)         (Navneet Kwatra)            (Bhagwan Dass)
Partner              Partner      COO & Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
M. No. 093214    M. No. 099920   M. No. 16672            

Place: Faridabad 
Date:  08th June 2016    

 Particulars Note As at As at
   No. 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
 (1) Shareholders' Funds
  Share Capital 3 27,858.20  13,929.10
  Reserves and Surplus 4 39,221.89  49,164.24

    67,080.09  63,093.34
  Minority Interest  2.89  - 

 (2) Non-Current Liabilities
  Long-Term Borrowings 5 3,425.43 2,497.37
  Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 6 1,474.53 1,594.04
  Other Long-term Liabilities 7 8.03 28.73
  Long-Term Provisions 8 230.77 186.72

    5,138.76  4,306.86
 (3) Current Liabilities
  Short-Term Borrowings 9 67,870.98  57,354.08
  Trade Payables 10 45,357.78   34,555.91
  Other Current Liabilities 11 3,275.31  2,261.97
  Short-Term Provisions 12 161.25  541.35

    116,665.32   94,713.31
  Total  188,887.06 162,113.51

II. ASSETS
 (1) Non-Current Assets
  Fixed Assets 13
  -  Tangible Assets 13.1  22,506.43  23,251.25
  -  Intangible Assets 13.2  83.66  115.11
  -  Capital Work in Progress 13.3  887.12  25.42

    23,477.21  23,391.78
  -  Goodwill on consolidation  126.85  -
  Long-Term Loans & Advances 14  2,124.47  1,297.92
  Other  Non-Current Assets 15  159.96  43.91

    25,888.49   24,733.61
 (2) Current Assets
  Current Investments 16  5.00  180.00 
  Inventories 17  58,096.92  35,912.40
  Trade Receivables 18  81,707.07  88,956.50
  Cash & Bank Balances 19  6,646.59  9,665.79
  Short-Term Loans & Advances 20  16,428.69  2,510.13
  Other Current Assets 21  114.30  155.08

    162,998.57  137,379.90
  Total   188,887.06  162,113.51

Significant Accounting Policies 1
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Consolidated Statement of Pro�t and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2016

Accompanying Notes from 1 to 48 are integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co.   For Rakesh Raj & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
(Chartered Accountants)                        (Chartered Accountants) 
Firm Regn. No. 000756N                           Firm Regn. No. 005145N
   (Sunil Jindal) (Raju Bansal)
   Managing  Director Whole-Time Director
   DIN-00013791 DIN-00007344

(Yogesh K. Gupta)         (Ruchi Jain)         (Navneet Kwatra)            (Bhagwan Dass)
Partner              Partner      COO & Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
M. No. 093214    M. No. 099920   M. No. 16672            

Place: Faridabad 
Date:  08th June 2016    

₹ in Lacs

 Particulars Note  For the year  For the year 
    ended 31-Mar-16 ended 31-Mar-15

 Income

 Revenue from Operations 24  411,961.84  389,117.26
 Other Income 25  80.64  586.00 

 Total Revenue   412,042.48  389,703.26

 Expenses  
 Cost of materials consumed 26  81,924.26  130,307.77
 Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 27  311,976.02  238,379.15
 Change in Inventories of 28  (14,117.08) (8,492.39)
 finished goods & stock-in-trade 
 Employee benefits expense 29  3,788.22   3,380.07

 Finance Costs 30  8,094.28   7,063.43
 Depreciation and amortisation expense 31  1,916.31   2,088.58
 Other Expenses 32  14,195.45  11,825.81

 Total   407,777.46  384,552.42

 Pro�t before Tax   4,265.02  5,150.84
 Less: Tax Expense
 - Current Tax   410.70  1,037.02
 - Deferred Tax   (64.30)  (27.50)
 - MAT Credit   (71.41) (12.85)
 - Earlier year (s) Tax   18.60  22.04

 Total Tax Expenses   293.59  1,018.71

 Pro�t after Tax   3,971.43   4,132.13
 Minority Interest   (2.15)  - 
 Pro�t after Tax & Monority Interest   3,973.58   4,132.13

 Earning per share : (Refer Note No 33)
 Face Value per Equity Share (in ₹)   10.00  10.00
 - Basic & Diluted (in ₹)   1.43  1.48

Significant Accounting Policies 1
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2016   
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 Particulars  For the year ended For the year ended
    31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

A Cash Flow from Operating Activities
 Net Pro�t before Tax (as per Statement of Pro�t & Loss) 4,265.02  5,150.84
 Adjustment for:
 Depreciation / Amortisation  1,916.31  2,088.58
 Amount w/off (net)   575.55  (27.21)
 Interest Expenses (Net of Interest Received on Fixed Deposits)    8,094.28  7,063.43 
 Loss/(Profit) on Capital Assets   26.02   0.17 
 Profit on sale of Investments  (41.28) -   
 Effect of exchange rate change  622.52  (564.90)
 Fixed Assets & CWIP written off  76.99  6.06 
 Foreign Currency Translation Reserve  13.17  2.62 

 Operating pro�t before working capital changes    15,548.58   13,719.59 
 Adjustment for:
 Increase / (decrease) in Other Long-Term Liabilities   (20.70) (6.77)
 Increase / (decrease) in Long-Term Provisions     44.05   39.30 
 Increase / (decrease) in Trade Payable    10,375.98   (9,408.14)
 Increase / (decrease) in Other Current Liabilities    6 796.81   (115.70)
 Increase / (decrease) in Short-Term Provisions   2.11  4.44 
 (Increase) / decrease in Long-Term Loans & Advances   (348.32)  (111.43)
 (Increase) / decrease in Other  Non-Current Assets    (116.05)  26.59 
 (Increase) / decrease in Trade Receivable   6,477.26   (2,227.27)
 (Increase) / decrease in Short-Term Loans & Advances   (13,847.06)  257.27
 (Increase) / decrease in Other Current Assets    16.46  613.95
 (Increase) / decrease in Inventories   (22,184.52)  (9,154.22)

 Cash Generated from Operations   (3,255.40) (6,362.39) 
 Direct Taxes Paid    (889.02) (1,054.32)

 Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A)    (4,144.42)  (7,416.71)
B Cash Flow from Investing Activities
 Purchases of Fixed Assets [including Advances for projects    (2,447.02)  (838.30)
 Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets & CWIP   40.71   1.93
 Investment in Mutual Funds    -     (25.00)
 Adjustment for acquisition of Subsidiary   (180.00)  -
 Proceeds from Sale of Investment in Mutual Funds     216.28  -
 Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (B)    (2,370.03)  (861.37)
C Cash Flow from Financing Activities
 Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings   2,435.80   1,621.26
 Repayments of Long Term Borrowings   (439.13)  (986.59)
 Net Proceed from Short Term Borrowing    15,880.32   13,014.16
 Repayments of Short Term Borrowings   (6,426.44)  (2,730.58)
 Dividend Paid   -    (0.05)
 Interest Paid (Net of Interest Received on Fixed Deposits)     (7,955.30) (6,718.01)

 Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (C)    3,495.25   4,200.19

 Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)    (3,019.20)  (4,077.89)
 Cash and Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the year    9,665.79   13,743.68 
 Cash and Cash Equivalent at the end of the year     6,646.59   9,665.79 

 Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents     (3,019.20)  (4,077.89)

For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co.   For Rakesh Raj & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
(Chartered Accountants)                        (Chartered Accountants) 
Firm Regn. No. 000756N                           Firm Regn. No. 005145N   
   (Sunil Jindal) (Raju Bansal)
   Managing  Director Whole-Time Director
   DIN-00013791 DIN-00007344

(Yogesh K. Gupta)         (Ruchi Jain)         (Navneet Kwatra)            (Bhagwan Dass)
Partner              Partner      COO & Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
M. No. 093214    M. No. 099920   M. No. 16672            
Place: Faridabad 
Date:  08th June 2016    

Firm Regn. No. 000756N                           Firm Regn. No. 005145N   Firm Regn. No. 000756N                           Firm Regn. No. 005145N   

   DIN-00013791 DIN-00007344

As per our report of even date attached. 

₹ in Lacs



1 Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Preparation:

1.1 Principles of Consolidation
The Consolidated Financial Statements consist of SRS Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiary companies (collectively referred 
to as "the Group"). The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the following basis:

a) The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies have been combined on a line-by-line basis by adding 
together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group balances and 
intra-group transactions resulting in unrealised profits or losses as per Accounting Standard 21 – "Consolidated Financial 
Statements" specified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

b) In case of foreign subsidiaries, been non-integral operations, revenue items are consolidated at the average rate prevailing during 
the year. All assets & liabilities are converted at the rates prevailing at the end of the year. Any exchange difference arising on 
consolidation is recognised as "Foreign Currency Translation Reserve"

c) The difference between the cost of investment in the subsidiaries, and the Group's share of net assets at the time of acquisition of 
shares in the subsidiaries is recognised in the Consolidated Financial Statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve as the case may be.

d) "Minority Interest in the net assets of Consolidated subsidiaries is identified and presented in the Consolidated Balance Sheet 
separately from liabilities and equity of the Company's shareholders.

 Minority interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries consists of:
a)    The amount of equity attributable to minority at the date on which investment in a subsidiary is made; and
b)    The minority share of movements in equity since the date the parent subsidiary relationship came into existence.

e) Minority's share of net profit for the year of consolidated subsidiaries is identified and adjusted against the Profit After Tax of the Group.

f ) The financial statements of the subsidiaries used in the consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date as that of the 
Company i.e. 31st March, 2016.

g) Goodwill arising on consolidation is not amortised but tested for impairment.

h) The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise of the financial statements of SRS Limited (Parent Company) and the following as 
on 31st March, 2016;

 *These shares have been acquired by SRS Worldwide (FZC)

1.2 Basis of Preparation
The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material  respects  with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and  the notified provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 . The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,  as a going 
concern, on an accrual basis except in case of assets for which provision for impairment is made and revaluation is carried out. The 
accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and its subsidiary, except as otherwise stated.
All Assets and Liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the normal operating cycle and other criteria set out 
in the Schedule III to the Companies’ Act, 2013. Based on the nature of goods sold/ services provided and time between the sale of 
goods/rendering of services and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, operating cycle has been ascertain as 12 months for 
the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

2 Signi�cant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of Accounting
 The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in

Signi�cant Accounting Policcies and Notes to Accounts (For the year ended 31st March, 2016)

Name
 Proportion of Financial Country of 

 ownership interest Statements as on Incorporation

SRS WORLDWIDE (FZC) 100.00% 31st March, 2016 UAE

SRS ENTERTAINMENT INDIA LTD
(formerly known as SRS Entertainment Ltd) 100.00% 31st  March, 2016 INDIA

INFINITY CAPITAL REALTORS LLC -FZC* 55.00% 31st  March, 2016 UAE
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 India (Indian GAAP) under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. These Financial Statements have been prepared to comply 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the 
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

2.2 Use of Estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements is in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles, which 
requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reportable amount of assets and liabilities on the date of financial 
statements and the reportable amount of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual results 
and estimates are recognized in the year in which the results are known / materialized.

2.3 Revenue Recognition

i Revenue from sale is recognized when the significant risk and rewards in respect of ownership of the goods are transferred to
 customer.

ii Revenue from theatre business is recognized on the basis of tickets sold for the period under accounting.

iii Entertainment tax collection in respect of its multiplex set up in Uttar Pradesh (U.P.) & Bihar has been recognised as revenue on the 
sale of tickets, considering the exemption from payment of entertainment tax upto a specified period in terms of the scheme of UP 
& Bihar state governments. Since the collection is dependent on sale of tickets being uncertain and collection of aforesaid tax is 
normal trading transaction, it has not been recognised as grant in terms of Accounting Standard-12 “Accounting for Government 
Grants”.

iv Revenue from Lease Rent, Common Area Maintenance (CAM) Charges and Interest is recognized on a time proportion basis.

v Advertisement revenue is recognized as and when advertisement is displayed.

vi Sale of land, plots and other properties is recognised in the financial year in which the transfer is made by agreement to sell / 
registration of sale deed or otherwise in favor of parties.

vii Claims lodged with the insurance companies are accounted on accrual basis to the extent these are measurable and ultimate 
collection is reasonably certain.

2.4 Tangible Assets
 Fixed Assets are stated at Cost less Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment Losses, if any. Cost comprises the cost of acquisition 
/purchase price inclusive of duties, taxes, incidental expenses, erection/commissioning expenses, interest etc. up to the date the 
asset is ready for its intended use. Credit of duty, if availed, is adjusted in the acquisition cost of the respective fixed assets.

2.5 Intangible Assets
 Intangible assets are recognized as per the criteria specified in Accounting Standard (AS)-26 “Intangible Assets” and recorded at the 
consideration paid for acquisition.
Software which is not an integral part of the related hardware is capitalized as an intangible asset.

2.6 Capital Works-in-Progress
Capital Works-in-Progress is carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and interest on borrowings to the 
extent attributed to them.

2.7 Depreciation on Fixed Assets and Amortization
Depreciation has been provided as per straight line method over their useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the
Companies Act, 2013.

 Depreciation on Plant & machinery and Office equipment costing upto ₹ 5,000/- is provided @100% over a period of one (1) year.

 Intangible Assets are amortized over the useful life of the assets or ten (10) years, whichever is earlier.

 Depreciation for assets purchased/ sold during the period is proportionately charged.

 Depreciation on leasehold improvements is charged over the period of lease.

 In respect of foreign subsidiary, Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on the straight-line method based on the useful lives 
of the assets as estimated by the management. Individual low cost asset (acquired for less than AED 400 ) are entirely depreciated 
in the year of acquisition.
The management’s estimate of useful lives of the fixed assets is as follows:
Furniture & Fixtures- 5 years 
Office Equipment- 5 years
Motor vehicle - 5 years
In view of the management, the rate is indicative of the estimated economic useful life of the fixed asset.  The depreciation rate 
adopted by the Subsidiary Company is higher than the minimum rates prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 
2013.
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2.8 Borrowing Cost
Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost of 
Assets. Qualifying Asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use. All other borrowing 
costs are treated as period cost and charged to the profit and loss account in the year in which it was incurred.

2.9 Impairment of Assets
An asset is impaired if there is sufficient indication that the carrying cost would exceed the recoverable amount of cash generating 
asset. In that event an impairment loss so computed would be recognized in the accounts in the relevant year.

 2.10 Investments
Current investments are stated at lower of cost and fair market value. Long-term investments are valued at their acquisition cost. The 
provision for any diminution in the value of long- term investments is made only if such a decline is other than temporary.

 2.11 Inventories
Raw materials are valued at lower of Cost and Net Realizable Value.
Finished goods are valued at lower of Cost (raw material and appropriate proportion of overheads) and Net Realizable Value.
Goods held for Resale are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.
Costs of inventories are determined on First in First out (‘FIFO’) basis in the ordinary course of business.
Net Realizable Value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

 2.12  Foreign Exchange Transaction
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transactions.

 Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year end are restated at year end rates. In case of items which are covered 
by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the year end rate and rate on the date of the contract is recognized as 
exchange difference and the premium paid on forward contracts is recognized over the life of the contract. Any profit or loss arising 
on cancellation or renewal of forward exchange contracts are recognized as income or as expenses for the year.

 Non-monetary items are carried at cost. 

 Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is recognized and is reflected 
separately in the Profit & Loss Account.

 2.13  Taxations
Current Tax:
Provision for Taxation is ascertained on the basis of assessable profit computed in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961.

 Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) Credit:
Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognized, as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company 
will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an 
asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in guidance note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Profit and Loss Account and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement under Loans & 
Advances. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit 
Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will pay normal Income Tax during the 
specified period. 

 Deferred Tax:
 Deferred Tax is recognized, subject to the consideration of prudence, as the tax effect of timing difference between the taxable 
income & accounting income computed for the current accounting year and reversal of earlier years’ timing difference. 

 Deferred Tax Assets are recognized and carried forward to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty, except arising from 
unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses, which are recognized to the extent that there is virtual certainty, that sufficient 
future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

 2.14   Employee bene�ts
 Short Term Employee Bene�ts:
 All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employee benefits 
and the undiscounted amount of such employee benefits are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the 
employee renders the related services. These benefits include salaries, wages, bonus, performance incentives etc.

 De�ned Bene�t Plan
 Gratuity and long–term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation carried out at the close of each year.
 The actuarial valuation is done by an Independent Actuary as per projected unit credit method.
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 De�ned Contribution Plan
The Company’s contribution to Employees Provident Fund and Family Pension Fund are deposited with the Regional Provident 
Fund Commissioner and is charged to Profit & Loss Account every year on due basis.   

 2.15  Segment reporting
 Identi�cation of segments
The Company’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of products manufactured and 
services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products. The analysis of 
geographical segments is based on the areas in which major operating divisions of the Company operate.

 Allocation of common costs
Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment on reasonable basis.

 Unallocated items
Include general corporate income and expense items which are not allocable to any business segment.

 Segment policies
 The company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting 
the consolidated financial statements of the company as a whole.

 2.16  Leases
Assets taken on lease under which, all risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as 
operating lease. Operating lease payments are recognized as expenses in the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

 2.17  Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby a profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash 
nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, financing and 
investing activities of the Company are segregated.

 2.18   Earning Per Share
Earning Per Share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the Net Profit or Loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the 
Weighted Average Number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

 For the purpose of calculating Diluted Earning Per share, the Net Profit or Loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders is 
divided by the Weighted Average Number of shares outstanding during the period after adjusting for the effects of all dilutive 
potential equity shares.

 2.19  Miscellaneous Expenditure
Share issue expenses are adjusted from Securities Premium Account at the time of issue of respective Shares.

 2.20  Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present obligation as a result 
of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Liabilities which are material, and whose future outcome 
cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty, are treated as contingent, and disclosed by way of notes to the accounts. 
Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.
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3.1 The rights, preference and restrictions attached to each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the 
repayment of capital are as under :

 Equity Shares
The equity shares have a par value of ₹ 10 per share. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and 
pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting.

 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the 
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares 
held by the shareholders.

 During the quarter ended June 30, 2015,the Company has issued 13,92,91,013 number of Bonus Shares to the existing equity 
shareholders in the ratio of 1:1 on 29th June, 2015. Accordingly, the Authorized Share Capital of the Company has been increased 
from Rs.15,000 Lacs to Rs.28,000 Lacs.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31st March 2016     

3.2 The following holds more than 5% in equity shares of the company

Name of Shareholder

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

% of HoldingNo. of Shares held % of HoldingNo. of Shares held

BTL HOLDING COMPANY LTD (Formerly 
Known as BTL Investments & Securities 
Ltd)(SRS Holdings India Ltd. merged 
with BTL Investments & Securities 
Limited w.e.f. 18.07.2013)

153,471,810  55.09 76,735,905  55.09

Particulars

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Amount
(₹ In lacs)Number Amount

(₹ In lacs)Number

Authorised

Equity Share of Rs. 10/- each

Total

Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up
Equity Share of Rs. 10/- each
Opening
Additions
Deductions
Closing

Total

 280,000,000 

280,000,000 

 
139,291,013 

 139,291,013
-   

278,582,026

278,582,026

 28,000.00 

 28,000.00

13,929.10
13,929.10

-
27,858.20

27,858.20

 150,000,000

150,000,000

139,291,013
-
-

139,291,013

139,291,013

15,000.00 

 15,000.00

13,929.10
-
-

13,929.10

13,929.10

3 Share Capital
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4 Reserves and Surplus

Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

(A) Securities Premium Account
 Opening Balance 26,607.13   26,607.13
 Add: Addition during the year - -
 Less: Amount utilised for issuance of bonus shares 13,929.10   -

 Closing Balance  12,678.03   26,607.13

(B)  General Reserve
 Opening Balance 192.96   192.96
 Add: Transfer during the year -

 Closing Balance 192.96  192.96

(C)  Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
 Opening Balance 2.62 -
 Add: Transfer during the year 13.17 2.62

 Closing Balance 15.79  2.62

(D)  Surplus in Statement of Pro�t & Loss
 Opening Balance 22,361.53 18,575.61
 Add : Net Profit for the current year 3,973.58  4,132.13

 Amount available for Appropriation 26,335.11  22,707.74

 (-) Depreciation for assets having
 Nil remaining life as on 01.04.2014*  -   346.21

 Closing Balance 26,335.11  22,361.53

 Total 39,221.89  49,164.24

₹ in Lacs

* Refer note no. 31.

Particulars  

  
31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

As at

₹ in Lacs
5 Long-Term Borrowings

Secured
 Term Loan
 - From Bank 299.59  501.27

   299.59  501.27

Unsecured
 - Deferred Credit Payment  - 2.32
 - Public Deposits 1,772.28  1,993.78  
 - Inter Corporate Deposits 1,353.56   -

   3,125.84  1,996.10

Total    3,425.43 2,497.37
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Particulars  

  

As at
31st Mar

2016

As at
31st Mar

2015

Terms of
Repayment

Particulars of security / guarantees /
/ default

₹ in Lacs

5.1 The requisite particulars in respect of secured borrowings  are as under:     

     

State Bank of India - 
Corporate Loan

Balance Outstanding  474.99 775.00
Current Maturity  299.99  300.00
Non-Current Maturity  175.00  475.00

Vehicle Loan from Banks
Balance Outstanding  185.56  65.37
Current Maturity  60.97  39.10
Non-Current Maturity  124.59  26.27

Summary  
Balance Outstanding  660.54  840.37
Current Maturity  360.95  339.10
Non-Current Maturity  299.59  501.27

Term Loan From Other Parties
Vehicle Loan
Balance Outstanding  -  4.76
Current Maturity  -  4.76
Non-Current Maturity  -  - 

"Secured against first pari pasu charge on all 

the fixed assets of the Company, including 

Equitable Mortgage of land and building at site 

no 4, City Center, Sector-12 Faridabad with plot 

area measuring 2,136.86 sq. mtr. and 

Multiplex-cum Shopping Mall constructed 

thereon in the name of the Company and 

further secured by first pari pasu charge on ((a) 

8 acres of land at Prithla in the name of SPS 

Buildcon Ltd. (merged with SRS Retreat 

Services Ltd.)  (b) 6.84 acres of land at Prithla in 

the name of SRS Retreat Services Ltd. (c) 

Extension of charge on current assets. The 

Facility is further secured by personal 

guarantee of Directors and corporate 

guarantee of SRS Retreat Services Ltd, BTL 

Holding Company Limited {(formerly known as 

BTL Investments & Securities Limited)(SRS 

Holdings India Ltd merged with BTL 

Investments & Securities Limited w.e.f 

18.07.2013)}, SRS Knowledge & Technologies 

Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly known as SRS Professional 

Services Ltd.), and Latest IT Solutions Ltd. 

(Formerly known as SRS IT Solutions Ltd.

Applicable rate of interest is base rate + 3.25 % 

subject to change from time to time."  

Secured against hypothecation of specified 

vehicles of the Company.

Applicable rate of interest is 10.10 % to 14 % ." 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

Secured against hypothecation of specified 

vehicles of the Company.

Applicable rate of interest is 10.60 % .

40 equal monthly 

installments of ₹ 

25.00 Lacs 

commencing from 

July 31, 2014. 

 

 

 

Total 17 (PY 14) 
number of vehicle 
loan repayable 
within 36-48 equal 
monthly 

installments.  

 

 

Total Current Year 
Nil (Previous Year 1) 
number of vehicle 
loan repayable 
within 36 equal 
monthly 
installments.
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5.2 The requisite particulars in respect of unsecured borrowings are as under:   

     

Particulars  

  Public Deposits *
Balance Outstanding 9,492.70 8,274.17 Repayable in  2015-16, 2016-17,
Current Maturity  7,720.42 6,280.40 2017-18 and 2018-19. 
Non-Current Maturity  1,772.28 1,993.77

Others
Balance Outstanding  1,353.56 13.82  Repayable within 48
Current Maturity  - 11.50  monthly installments.
Non-Current Maturity  1,353.56 2.32

Summary
Balance Outstanding  9,492.70 8,287.99
Current Maturity  7,720.42 6,291.90
Non-Current Maturity  1,772.28 1,996.09

₹ in Lacs

As at 31st Mar
2016

As at 31st Mar
2015 Terms of Repayment 

* Includes Rs. 2756.26 lacs (PY Rs. 859.77 lacs) received from Shareholders of the Company.

5.3  Thus the aggregate amount of loan guaranteed by directors is ₹  474.99 lacs (PY ₹ 775.00 lacs)

₹ in Lacs6 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

Particulars As at
31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Fixed Assets  1,693.15  1,682.62

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities (A)  1,693.15  1,682.62

Deferred Tax Assets  
Provision for Retirement Benefits  84.91  68.95
Business losses  69.09  -
Unabsorbed Depreciation  29.17  -
Others  35.45  19.63

Total Deferred Tax Assets (B)  218.62  88.58

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) (A-B)  1,474.53  1,594.04

8 Long-Term Provisions

Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Provision for Employee Bene�ts *
 - Gratuity  168.81 132.75
 - Leave Encashment  61.96 53.97

Total   230.77  186.72

₹ in Lacs

* Also refer note no. 39.

7 Other Long-Term Liabilities ₹ in Lacs

Particulars
As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Security Deposits Received  8.03  28.73

Total   8.03 28.73
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*  The above information as required to be disclosed under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to 
the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. Further no interest has been paid during 
the year and payable as on 31st March 2016 as well as 31st March 2015 to such parties.

₹ in Lacs10 Trade Payables

Particulars
As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Dues of MSMEs * -  -
Dues of other than MSMEs 45,357.78  34,555.91

Total   45,357.78   34,555.91

* On consortium with State Bank of India, State Bank of Patiala, State Bank of Bikaner & Jaipur, Bank of India, Oriental Bank of Commerce, 
Union Bank of India, State Bank of Travancore and Syndicate Bank is Secured against hypothecation of stocks & book debts and equitable 
mortgage of specific properties and Personal guarantee of Directors and Corporate guarantee of SRS Retreat Services Ltd., BTL Holding 
Company Limited {(formerly known as BTL Investments and Securities Limited)(SRS Holdings India Ltd merged with BTL Holding Company 
Limited w.e.f 18.07.2013)}, SRS Knowledge & Technologies Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly known as SRS Professional Services Ltd.), and Latest IT 
Solutions Ltd. (Formerly known as SRS IT Solutions Pvt. Ltd.)
# Includes demand loan of Rs. Nil (PY Rs. 475.00 lacs) from Oriental Bank of Commerce secured against fixed deposit.
@ Gold Loan (Metal) from Bank is secured against Letter of Credit and FDR.
**Secured against pledge of 42.95 lacs equity shares of the company by holding company "BTL Holding Company Limited".

9.1 Thus the aggregate amount of loan guaranteed by directors is ₹ 57969.42 lacs (PY ₹ 51073.68 lacs) 

9 Short-Term Borrowings ₹ in Lacs

Particulars

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

UnsecuredSecured UnsecuredSecured

Loan Repayable on Demand from Bank
 - Cash Credit * 47,969.42 - 40,598.68 -
 - Demand Loan * # 10,000.00 - 10,475.00 -
 - Gold Loan @  1,952.49  - - -

   59,921.91  - 51,073.68 -
Loans from Corporate ** 225.00  -  - -

   225.00  -  - -
Fixed Deposit Scheme 
 - Public Deposit  -  7,720.42  - 6,280.40
 - Inter Corporate Deposit  -  3.65  - -
  -  7,724.07  -  6,280.40
Total  60,146.91  7,724.07 51,073.68  6,280.40
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* Investor Education and Protection Fund will be credited as and when due.  

11 Other Current Liabilities

Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Current Maturities of Long Term Debts (Refer note no. 11.1) 360.95   355.36
Interest Accrued but not due 495.23   338.08
Share Application Money received for Allotment of Securities due for refund 1.79   3.74
and interest accrued thereon* 
Unclaimed Dividend * 1.38   1.38
Creditors for Capital Expenditures 92.68   38.89
Non Trade Payables (Refer note no. 41) 1,251.92   1,004.91
Other Payable
 - Advances Received from Customers  84.40   25.30 
 - Security Deposits Received  27.80   6.76 
 - Retention Money  112.73   92.23 
 - Employees  424.92   310.50
 - Statutory Dues 421.51   84.82

Total  3,275.31   2,261.97

₹ in Lacs

11.1 Current Maturity of Long Term Debts (Refer note no. 5.1 & 5.2)  

Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Secured
 Term Loan
 - From Bank  360.95   339.10
 - From Other Parties  -     4.76  
   360.95  343.86 
Unsecured
 Deferred Credit Payment  -     11.50
Total   360.95   355.36

₹ in Lacs

* Also refer note no. 39.

12 Short-Term Provisions

Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Provision for Employee Bene�ts *
 - Gratuity 14.05   12.32
 - Leave Encashment 4.19   3.81

Others :
 - Provision for Income Tax (net of advance tax) 143.01   525.22

Total   161.25   541.35

₹ in Lacs
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₹ in Lacs

Land 2,461.26 -  -  -  2,461.26  -     -  -  -  -  2,461.26  2,461.26

Buildings 7,069.45 27.57  -  -  7,097.02  655.43   113.65  -  -  769.08  6,327.94  6,414.02

Leasehold Improvements 10,995.12 190.48  65.01  -  11,120.59  3,268.80   612.97  15.29  -  3,866.48  7,254.11  7,726.32

Temporary Structure 2.79  -  -  -  2.79  2.79   -  -  -  2.79  -  -

Plant & Machinery 6,322.29 474.25  55.72  -  6,740.82  2,243.02   534.17  7.13  -  2,770.06  3,970.76  4,079.27

Office Equipment 1,296.26 118.96  6.14  0.07  1,409.15  940.01   104.29  (0.45)  0.01  1,044.76  364.39  356.25

Furniture & Fittings 2,839.96 176.25  24.90  0.06  2,991.37  1,049.36   339.73  2.51  0.01  1,386.59  1,604.78  1,790.60

Computers 550.27 97.83  3.01  0.15  645.24  418.60   78.18  (2.39)  0.01  499.18  146.06  131.67

Vehicles 491.48 168.97  22.06  2.65  641.04  199.62   76.53  12.26  0.02  263.91  377.13  291.86

TOTAL 32,028.88 1,254.31  176.84  2.93  33,109.28  8,777.63   1,859.52  34.35  0.05  10,602.85  22,506.43 23,251.25

Previous Year 30,901.70 1,145.41  18.27  0.04  32,028.88  6,223.32   2,564.42  10.11  -  8,777.63  23,251.25 

Description
 As At

01.04.15  Additions
 Sale /

Adjustment 

 Foreign
Currency

Translation
Reserve  

 As At
31.03.16 

 As At
31.03.16 

 As At
31.03.16 

 As At
31.03.15

 Upto
01.04.15

 for the
 year *

 on Sale /
Adjustment 

 Foreign
Currency

Translation
Reserve  

 Gross Carrying Value  Depreciation  Net Carrying Value

₹ in Lacs

Computer Software  340.58  26.57  -  -  367.15  225.47  56.79  (1.23)  -  283.49  83.66  115.11
 (Bought Out)

TOTAL  340.58  26.57  -   367.15  225.47  56.79  (1.23)   283.49  83.66  115.11

Previous Year  295.71  44.87  -  -  340.58  176.82  48.65  -   225.47  115.11

Description
 As At

01.04.15  Additions
 Sale /

Adjustment 

 Foreign
Currency

Translation
Reserve  

 As At
31.03.16 

 As At
31.03.16 

 As At
31.03.16 

 As At
31.03.15

 Upto
01.04.15

 for the
 year *

 on Sale /
Adjustment 

 Foreign
Currency

Translation
Reserve  

 Gross Carrying Value  Depreciation  Net Carrying Value

13.2 Intangible Assets

 * Refer note no. 31

13  Fixed Assets
13.1  Tangible Assets 
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13.3 Capital Work in Progress

Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Opening Balance 145.28  345.54
Add : Addition During the Year 1,515.09 365.89
(Includes preoperative expenses (Refer note no. 13.4)
Less : Transferred to Fixed Assets 773.25  686.01

Closing Balance 887.12  25.42

₹ in Lacs

Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Capital Advances  390.68  32.45
Security Deposits 1,601.68  1,252.95
Income Tax Recoverable (Refer note no. 22) 120.00  -
Prepaid Expenses 12.11  12.52

Total  2,124.47  1,297.92

₹ in Lacs

13.4 CWIP includes Preoperative Expenses which are as follows :  

14 Long-Term Loans & Advances (Unsecured, considered good) 

Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Other Bank Balances-Restricted Cash
 - Fixed Deposits pledged with bank for bank guarantees given to authorities
 (Refer note no. 19.1) 159.96 43.91

Total  159.96 43.91

₹ in Lacs15 Other  Non-Current Assets

Particulars  

  

For the  year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Legal and Professional 4.88 5.68
Salary & Related Expenses 5.36 -
Interest   0.57 -
Electricity and Water Expenses 3.85 0.07
Security & House Keeping 11.66 -
Lease Rent including CAM  -  6.60
Travelling and Conveyance 3.64  -
Misclleneous Expenses 2.18  -

Total for the Year 32.14 12.35
Add: Brought forward from Previous Year 2.77 18.60

Grand Total 34.91 30.95
Less: Allocated to Fixed Assets 2.99 24.80
Less: sold / written off -  3.38
Balance Carried Forward 31.92  2.77

₹ in Lacs
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16 Current Investments

Particulars Face Value

Amount Amount
No. of

Shares / Units

31-Mar-16 

As at   

31-Mar-15

No. of
Shares / Units

As At

Investment in Mutual Funds
(Quoted, valued at lower of cost and fair value)

 UNION KBC Capital Protection
 Oriented Fund -  Regular Growth 10  50,000  5.00 1,799,990 180.00
 (Kept as margin money against LC)

Total   50,000 5.00 1,799,990 180.00

Aggregate Book Value of Quoted Investments   5.00  180.00
Aggregate Market Value of Quoted Investments   5.78   229.31

₹ in Lacs

Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

(As Verified, Valued and Certified by the Management)
 Raw Material * 9,675.82  4,617.49
 Finished Goods# 6,116.02  11,057.53
 Stock in Trade@ 42,305.08  20,237.38

Total   58,096.92  35,912.40

* Raw Material of ₹ 5776.17  lacs (PY ₹ 2,571.09 lacs) as on 31st March 2016 is lying with third parties.
# Finished Goods of ₹  101.49 lacs (PY ₹ 22.89 lacs) as on 31st March 2016 is lying with third parties.
'@ Stock in Trade of ₹ 21274.32 lacs (PY ₹ 67.79 lacs) as on 31st March 2016 is lying with third parties.
@ Stock in Trade includes Goods in Transit of ₹ 1.11 lacs (PY `131.10 lacs).

₹ in Lacs17 Inventories

Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from
the date they are due for payment :
 -  Secured, Considered Good 0.28 0.14
 -  Unsecured, Considered Good 90.64 646.95

Other Trade Receivables
   -  Secured, Considered Good 5.10 8.20
 -  Unsecured, Considered Good 81,611.05 88,301.21

Total  81,707.07 88,956.50

₹ in Lacs18 Trade Receivables
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Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

(A) Cash & Cash Equivalents
 Cash in Hand 1,460.61 1,279.36
 Balances with banks
 - in Current Accounts 1,009.45 1,366.83
 - in Deposit Accounts (See note 19.1) 1,758.77  3,142.69
 - in EEFC Account 0.01 0.01

(B) Other Bank Balances
 - in Deposit Accounts (See note 19.1) 2,414.58  3,871.78
 - in Earmarked Accounts
  Share Application Money received for Allotment of 1.79  3.74
  Securities due for refund 
  Unclaimed Dividend Account 1.38  1.38

Total   6,646.59 9,665.79

₹ in Lacs19 Cash & Bank Balances

Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

(a)  Loans & Advances to Related parties
 Advances to Suppliers (Refer note no. 41) 6.74 -

(b)  Others Loans & Advances
 Advances to Suppliers 14,505.18  832.98
 Advances to Employees 15.63  13.24
 Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for which value to be received 103.30  83.97
 Security Deposits 212.45  96.44
 Prepaid Expenses 256.78  329.23
 MAT Credit Entitlement 670.25  598.75
 Cenvat & VAT Recoverable 658.36  555.52

 Total 16,428.69  2,510.13

₹ in Lacs20 Short-Term Loans & Advances (Unsecured, considered good)   

₹ in Lacs

19.1

FDR Balances with Bank

Deposit Account with Bank
- Upto 3  months maturity from date of acquisition 1,758.77 1,758.77 - 3,142.69 3,142.69 -
-Upto 12 months maturity from date of acquisition  2,392.41  2,392.41 -  2,933.20  2,933.20 -
-Maturity more than 12 months but within one  22.17 22.17 - 938.58 938.58 -
year from the reporting date 

Shown as Current Assets 4,173.35 4,173.35  - 7,014.47  7,014.47 -

-Maturity more than 12 months but after 159.96 159.96  - 43.91 43.91 -
one year from the reporting date 

Shown as Non-Current Assets  159.96  159.96  -  43.91  43.91 -

Total 4,333.31  4,333.31  -  7,058.38  7,058.38  -

Kept as margin 
Money against 

guarantees / 
LC / Pledged 

with Sales Tax 
Authorities

Kept as margin 
Money against 

guarantees / 
LC / Pledged 

with Sales Tax 
Authorities

Free from 
any lien

Free from 
any lienTotalTotal

Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

₹ in Lacs
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Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Interest Accrued but not Due 90.32 114.64
Other Receivables  23.98  40.44

Total    114.30 155.08

₹ in Lacs

21 Other Current Assets

Currency
As at

31-Mar-15
Buy / Sell Purpose

31-Mar-16

USD 5   22  Sell Hedging

₹ in Lacs

Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Contingent Liabilities
- Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of Legal Matters 1,271.11 1,674.85
-  Pending Export Obligations (duty forgone) 0.17  0.09
- Guarantees 0.31 0.29

Commitments
- Capital Commitments:
 Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital  962.65  254.08
  account and not provided for

₹ in Lacs22 Contingent Liabilities & Commitments 

* An amount of Rs.120 Lacs deposited by the Company under protest has been shown as Income Tax Recoverable under Long Term Loans & 
Advances (Refer Note No.14) & has not been adjusted above.   

23 Derivatives Instruments And Hedged/ Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure

23.1 All derivative contracts entered into by the Company are for hedging purposes.

23.2 Forward Contract outstanding as at Balance Sheet date

23.3 Particulars for Hedged Foreign Currency Exposure 

Particular Currency ₹ in Lacs ₹ in Lacs
 Foreign

Currency in
Lacs 

 Foreign
Currency in

Lacs 

31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

As At

Foreign Currency Receivables USD  5   331.66   22   1,377.00 

23.4 Foreign Currency Exposure that are not hedged by derivative transactions or otherwise   

Particulars Currency ₹ in Lacs ₹ in Lacs
 Foreign

Currency in
Lacs 

 Foreign
Currency in

Lacs 

31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

As At

₹ in Lacs

Foreign Currency Receivables  USD  203.20  13,478.64  346.80  21,706.23

Foreign Currency Receivables  AED  1,137.57  20,794.12  0.14  2.30

Foreign Currency Payables  USD  -  -  26.40  1,652.56

Foreign Currency Payables  AED  1,094.38  19,717.26  0.40  6.86
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Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

 Sale of Goods
 -  Gold & Jewellery  338,983.77  350,777.12
 -  Food & Beverages  3,943.68  3,274.73
 -  Retail  22,048.91  20,951.93
 - Wholesale  38,500.80  6,633.46
 - Income from sale of tickets of films *  7,455.66  6,651.40
{(net of entertainment and show tax of ₹ 2701.46 Lacs (Previous year ₹ 1720.71 Lacs)}  

   410,932.82  388,288.64

 Sale of Services
 - Lease Rent Income  178.22  170.93
 - Common Area Maintenance Charges  26.82  26.77
 - Advertisement Income  595.06  440.80
 - Income From Film Distribution  131.98  112.33
 - Commission Income  33.52  37.12
 - Trademark / Franchise Fee  21.75  16.68
 - Royalty Fees  7.11  - 
 - Management Fees  34.56  23.99

   1,029.02  828.62

Total   411,961.84  389,117.26

₹ in Lacs
24 Revenue from Operations

* Income from sale of tickets of films includes Entertainment Tax of ₹ 173.88 lacs (PY ₹ 702.80  lacs), ₹ 14.74 lacs and ₹ 9.361 lacs  for which 
the company is exempted for deposition in terms of the scheme of U.P. State Government, Bihar State Government and Punjab State 
Government, respectively.

Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

 Interest Income  6.95  -
 Net Gain on Sale of Current Investment  41.28  -
 Other Non-Operating Income  
 Profit on Future/Forward-Commodity & Currency (Refer note no. 32)  5.54  - 
 Bad Debts & balance w/off (net) (Refer note no. 32)  - 27.21
 Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (net) (Refer note no. 32)  - 505.36
 Sale of Scrap  17.49 36.12
 Insurance Claim Received  -  4.88
 Miscellaneous Income  9.38  12.43

Total   80.64  586.00

₹ in Lacs25 Other Income

Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Gold Bar   80,844.50  129,346.04
Semi Precious Stone 20.41  13.75
Food & Beverages 1,059.35  947.98

Total   81,924.26  130,307.77

₹ in Lacs26 Cost of materials consumed
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Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Gold & Jewellery 257,022.51 213,654.49
Food & Beverages 247.53  303.03
Retail   18,921.72 17,943.14
Wholesale  35,784.26 6,478.49

Total   311,976.02  238,379.15

₹ in Lacs
27 Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Closing Stock* 
Finished Goods  6,116.02  11,057.53
Stock in Trade  39,295.97  20,237.38

Opening Stock
Finished Goods  11,057.53  9,259.44
Stock in Trade  20,237.38  13,543.08

   (14,117.08)  (8,492.39)

₹ in Lacs
28 Change in Inventories of �nished goods & stock-in-trade

Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Finished Goods
Gold & Jewellery 6,116.02  11,057.53

   6,116.02  11,057.53

Stock in Trade 
Gold & Jewellery 36,412.66  17,391.82
Retail   2,884.50  2,845.56

   39,297.16  20,237.38

Total    45,413.18  31,294.91

₹ in Lacs28.1 Details of Closing Stock

Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Salaries, Wages and Bonus  3,285.78  2,947.67
Contribution to Provident Fund & Other Fund  293.37  257.96
Staff Welfare Expenses  154.51  122.24
Provision for Employees Benefits (Refer note no. 39)  54.56  52.20

Total    3,788.22  3,380.07

₹ in Lacs29 Employee bene�ts expense

*The differential amount between Closing Stock (Note-17) and Change in Inventories is on account of foreign exchange fluctuation arising 
on step down subsidiary's inventories.   
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Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

 Interest on:
 -  Term Loans  89.20  127.33
 - Cash Credit/Overdraft  6,034.50  5,946.67
 - Gold Loans  61.22  34.74
 - Fixed Deposits  1,200.58  534.89
 - Unsecured Loans and Others  11.19  52.25

Bank Charges and Other Financial Expenses  1,075.31  1,095.46

    8,472.00  7,791.34
Less : Interest Income on FDR kept as margin money/guarantee out of Cash Credit accounts  377.72  727.91

Total    8,094.28  7,063.43

₹ in Lacs
30 Finance Costs

Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Depreciation  1,859.52 2,564.41
Amortisation  56.79 48.65
Less : Transferred to retained earnings * - 524.48

Total   1,916.31 2,088.58

₹ in Lacs31 Depreciation and amortisation expense

* Depreciation of Rs.Nil {(PY Rs. 346.21 lacs) (net of deferred tax Rs. 178.27 lacs)} has been transferred to retained earnings in accordance with 
provisions of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.   
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Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

 Payment to Auditors
 - As Auditors  22.81   21.91
 - For Certification  5.14   5.06
 - For Taxation Matters  -     3.93
  - For Reimbursement of Expenses  0.63   0.63

Total #   28.58   31.53

₹ in Lacs

Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Jobwork Charges  217.09   239.00
Security & House Keeping  1,519.24   1,312.10
Packaging Expenses  113.81   99.63
Distributor Share & Commission Charges  3,212.39   2,531.00
Fuel Charges   64.01   68.51
Bad Debts & balance w/off (net) (Refer note no. 25)  575.55   -
Consumable Expenses  20.47  18.69
Freight & Cartage  38.40   27.69
Other Operational Expenses  110.18   23.05
Lease Rent Paid  4,034.09   3,705.21
Electricity & Water Expenses  1,320.71   1,149.14
Insurance Expenses  85.48   90.35
Repair and Maintenance:
 - Plant & Machinery  209.18   233.98
 - Building  26.61   77.06
 - Others  158.44   166.55
Rates & Taxes   962.33   290.70
Payment to Auditors (Refer note no. 32.1)  28.58   31.53 
Legal & Professional Expenses  102.00   133.17 
Directors' Sitting Fee  9.22   9.25
Miscellaneous Expenses  244.99   253.32
Fixed Assets & CWIP written off  76.99   6.06
Loss on Capital Assets  26.02   0.17
Donation   3.27   3.11
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Refer note no. 32.2)  95.25   108.97
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (Refer note no. 25)  22.33 
Hedging Expenses  0.82   3.46
Loss on Future/Forward-Commodity & Currency (Refer note no. 25)  -     22.88
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses  172.20   139.51
Selling & Distribution Expenses  173.84   209.35
Commission & Service Charges  190.13   154.13
Advertisement  326.41   700.06
Prior Period Expenses  15.59   18.18
Service Tax Paid on Recipient Basis  39.83   - 

Total    14,195.45   11,825.81

₹ in Lacs
32 Other Expenses

32.1 Payment to Auditors

# Figures are inclusive of service tax.
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Particulars  

  

In Cash TotalYet To be paid in Cash

(i)   Construction / acquisition of any asset -     -  - -
(ii)  On purpose other than above (i) above *  9,525,000  - 9,525,000

* Expense incurred through SRS Social Welfare Association registered under section 80 G of Income Tax Act.

32.2 Detail of CSR Expenditure (for the year ended 31st March 2016)

 As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its 
average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas 
for CSR activities are eradication of hunger and malnutrition, promoting education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and 
rehabilitation, environment sustainability, disaster relief and rural development projects. A CSR committee has been formed by the 
company as per the Act.

 (a) Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year      :    Rs. 95,11,294 /-
(b) Amount spent during the year on

Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Materials  21,953.03  50,857.08

Total   21,953.03  50,857.08

₹ in Lacs35 Value of Import on CIF Basis (On accrual basis)

Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

a) Numerator:
 Net Profit after taxation as per Statement of Profit & Loss 3,973.58  4,132.13
b) Denominator * :
 No. of Shares at the beginning of the year 278,582,026  278,582,026
 Total Equity Share outstanding at the end of the year 278,582,026  278,582,026
 Weighted average no. of equity shares for the year 278,582,026  278,582,026
 Weighted average no. of diluted equity shares for the year 278,582,026  278,582,026

c)  Face Value per share (in ₹) 10 10

d) Earning per Share (EPS):
 - Basic (in ₹) 1.56  1.48
 - Diluted (in ₹) 1.56  1.48

₹ in Lacs33 “Earning per Share” computed in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS)-20 “Earning Per Share”:

"* After considering bonus issue. 

During the quarter bonus shares in the ratio of 1:1 were allotted on 29th June 2015. Corresponding previous year figures have been restated 
for the purpose of computation of Earning Per Share." 

Particulars  

  

31-Mar-15

For the year ended

₹ in Lacs

₹ in Lacs

31-Mar-16

₹ in Lacs % %

34 Value of Imported and Indigenous Material Consumed     

Imported  21,952.18 26.80 52,088.40 39.97
Indigenous  59,957.54 73.20 78,219.37  60.03

Total   81,909.72 100.00 130,307.77  100.00
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Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Advertisement -  0.05
Bank charges and other financial expenses 5.91  5.74
Insurance Expenses 0.51  0.04
Lease Rent Paid 2.57  0.41
Legal & Professional Expenses 0.15  0.87
Miscellaneous Expenses 0.05  0.14
Other Operational Expense 39.13  - 
Rates & Taxes  19.87  0.29
Security & House Keeping 0.21  0.03
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses -   4.04

Total   68.40   11.61

₹ in Lacs37 Expenditure in Foreign Currency (On accrual basis):

38 The amount of Exchange Di�erence (Net):
 The Foreign Exchange Income / (Loss) of ₹ (22.33 lacs) {PY ₹ 505.36 lacs} resulting from settlement and realignment of foreign 
exchange transaction has been adjusted in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

39 Employee Bene�ts
 a) De�ned Contribution Plans :-
  The Company has recognised ₹ 293.37 lacs (PY ₹ 257.96 lacs) as expense in Statement of Profit & Loss.

 b) De�ned Bene�t Plans :-
  The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a
  gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The scheme is funded.  
  The Company has also provided for Leave Encashment which is unfunded.

 The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss, the funded 
status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the respective plans (as per Actuarial Valuation as on 30th September 2015).

 The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity and leave liability for the Company's plans are shown below:

Particulars  

  

As atAs at

GratuityEarned Leave

31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Discount Rate (based on the market yields available on 7.75% 7.75% 7.75% 7.75%
Government bonds at the accounting date with term that
matches that of the liabilities)

Salary increase (taking into account inflation, seniority, 5.25% 5.25% 5.25% 5.25%
promotion and other relevant factor)

Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets-Holding Co.  0.00% 0.00% 8.35% 9.00%

Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets-SRS Entertainment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
India Ltd.(Formley known as SRS Entertainment Ltd.)

Average Outstanding Service of Employees upto  30.64  30.37 30.64 30.37
retirement (years)-Holding Co.

Average Outstanding Service of Employees upto  26.47  - 26.47  -   
retirement (years)-SRS Entertainment India Ltd.
(Formley known as SRS Entertainment Ltd.))

Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

FOB Sale   51,337.52  56,644.63

Total   51,337.52  56,644.63

₹ in Lacs
36 Earning in Foreign Exchange from (on accrual basis):
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Changes in the present value of De�ned Bene�t Obligation are as follows:

Particulars  

  

As atAs at

GratuityEarned Leave

31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the 57.78  38.85  172.24  149.67
beginning of the year
Interest Cost 4.77  3.01  14.67  11.60
Past Service Cost 0.26  -  0.98  -  
Current Service Cost 22.94  20.46  43.73  38.26
Benefits Paid (4.54)  (4.31)  (7.24)  (9.48)
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation (15.05)  (0.22)  (15.90)  (17.80)
Present Value of Defined Benefit
Obligation  at the end of the year 66.15   57.78   208.48  172.24

Net Asset / (Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet as on 31st March 2016:

Particulars  

  

As atAs at

GratuityEarned Leave

31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the year 66.15  57.78   208.48 172.24

Fair Value of Plan Assets  -    -    25.62  27.18

Net Asset / (Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet  (66.15)  (57.78) (182.86) (145.07)

Particulars  

  

As at

Gratuity

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Fair value of the plan assets at the beginning of the year 27.17  29.41

Expected return on Plan Assets 2.38  2.65

Contribution by employer 3.55  4.14

Benefits Paid  (7.24)  (9.48)

Actuarial (gain) / loss on Plan Assets (0.25)  0.45

Fair value of the plan assets at the end of the year 25.62   27.17

₹ in Lacs
Changes in the fair value of Plan Assets are as follows:

₹ in Lacs

₹ in Lacs
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Net Employees Bene�t Expense (recognized in the Statement of Pro�t & Loss for the year ended 31st March 2016: 

Bifurcation of Obligation at the end 31st March 2016 :

Particulars  

  

As at

Earned Leave

31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

Current Liability (Short Term) 4.19  3.81  14.05  12.32
Non Current Liability (Long Term) 61.96  53.97  168.81  132.75

Total 66.15  57.78  182.86  145.07

*Expenditure for Earned Leave includes an amount of Rs.0.05 Lacs pertaining to SRS Entertainment India Ltd. (Formerly known as SRS 
Entertainment Limited) for the period 1st April 2015 to 1st  Jan 2016 (pre-aquisition period), which is not considered in Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss.          

As at

Gratuity

40 Segment Reporting   

 The Company has identified three reportable segments viz. Cinemas, Retail and Gold & Jewellery. Segments have been identified 
and reported taking into account nature of products and services, the differing risks and returns and the internal business reporting 
systems. The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policy of the Company with 
following additional policies for segment reporting.

 a) Revenue and expenses have been identified to a segment on the basis of relationship to operating activities of the segment. 
  Revenue and expenses which relate to enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to a segment on reasonable basis have 
  been disclosed as “Unallocable”.

 b) Segment assets and segment liabilities represent assets and liabilities in respective segments. Investments, tax related
  assets and other assets and liabilities that cannot be allocated to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as
  “Unallocable”.

Particulars  

  

GratuityEarned Leave

31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Current Service Cost 22.94  20.46  43.73  38.26

Past Service Cost 0.26  -  0.98  -

Interest Cost 4.77  3.01  14.67  11.60

Expected return on plan assets  -  -  (2.38)  (2.65)

Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the year (15.05)  (0.22)  (15.65)  (18.25)

Expenses recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss* 12.91  23.24  41.36  28.95

For the year ended For the year ended

₹ in Lacs

₹ in Lacs
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40.1 Primary Segment Information :

* These figures have been audited by M/s Rakesh Raj & Associates except an amount of `51,256.87 lacs (Segment revenue), `750.62 Lacs 
(Segment results), `34,290.79 Lacs (Segment Assets) and `19,717.89 Lacs (Segment Liabilities) for UAE Branch for the year ended / as at 31st 
March 2016 which has been audited by branch auditor.       

** These figures have audited by respective subsidiary auditors

$ These figures have been audited by SS Kothari Mehta & Co except an amount of `178.53 lacs (Segment revenue), (`91.65 Lacs) (Segment 
results), `2138.78 lacs (Segment Assets) and `163.48 lacs (Segment Liabilities) for Subsidiary Company for the year ended / as at 31st March 
2016 which has been audited by subsidiary' auditors.

# These figures have been audited by M/s S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co.

@ These figures have been jointly audited by M/s S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co. and M/s Rakesh Raj & Associates.  

           

Particulars Period Cinemas $ Retail # Gold &
Jewellery * Wholesale**

Corporate &
Others

(Unallocable)
 @

Total 

1. Segment Revenue
 Net Sales/Income For the year  31-Mar-16 10,952.34  22,264.50  338,984.57  38,500.80  1,259.63  411,961.84
 (There is no inter- ended 31-Mar-15  9,372.61  21,117.02  350,777.12  6,633.46  1,217.05  389,117.26
 segment revenue) 

2. Segment Result
 Before interest, For the year  31-Mar-16 2,077.19 (585.47)  14,025.71 2455.53 (2,235.96) 15,737.00
 other income, ended 31-Mar-15 1,646.76 181.08  13,551.57 251.35 (1,907.69) 13,723.07
 depreciation, non-cash
 expenses and taxes 

 Add: Other Income For the year  31-Mar-16 (2.70) 22.30  5.54 - 55.50 80.64
  ended 31-Mar-15 12.66  38.78  (59.39) - 1.84 (6.11)

 Less: Depreciation For the year  31-Mar-16 906.95 263.37  112.57 12.83 620.59 1,916.31
  ended 31-Mar-15 973.72 243.78  112.63  0.15 758.30 2,088.58

 Less: Non-cash Items For the year  31-Mar-16 (7.17) 111.02  1,406.96  - 31.22 1,542.03
  ended 31-Mar-15 2.39 (7.16)  (567.92)  - (13.20) (585.89)

 Profit / (-) Loss before For the year  31-Mar-16 1,174.71 (937.56)  12,511.72  2,442.70 (2,832.27) 12,359.30
 interest and taxes ended 31-Mar-15 683.31 (16.76)  13,947.47  251.20 (2,650.95) 12,214.27

 Finance Cost For the year  31-Mar-16      8,094.28 8,094.28
 (Net of interest income) ended 31-Mar-15     7,063.43 7,063.43

 Pro�t before taxes For the year 31-Mar-16        4,265.02
  ended 31-Mar-15       5,150.84

 Taxes For the year 31-Mar-16      293.59   293.59
  ended 31-Mar-15      1,018.71  1,018.71

 Net Pro�t For the year 31-Mar-16        3,971.43
  ended 31-Mar-15        4,132.13

 Minority Interest For the year 31-Mar-16      (2.15) (2.15)
  ended 31-Mar-15      -  -

 Net Pro�t For the year 31-Mar-16        3,973.58
  ended 31-Mar-15       4,132.13

3. Other Informations:
 Segment Assets As at 31-Mar-16  11,141.38  5,504.27  148,770.89  4,225.95  19,244.57  188,887.06
   31-Mar-15  9,575.06  5,160.12  124,416.13 583.77  22,378.43  162,113.51

 Segment Liabilities As at 31-Mar-16  1,052.66  2,058.65  72,927.14  1,423.40  44,345.12  121,806.97
   31-Mar-15   672.01  1,281.06  58,083.43 235.17  38,748.50  99,020.17

₹ in Lacs

SRS Limited | Annual Report 2015-16

146



Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

1 Segment Revenue
 Net Sales/Income
 (There is no inter-segment revenue)
 -    Within India 322,204.17  325,839.16
 -   Outside India * 89,757.67  63,278.10

 Total Revenue 411,961.84  389,117.26

₹ in Lacs

40.2 Secondary Segment Information :    
Secondary segment for the company constitutes domestic market and international market.

Particulars  

  

For the year ended

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

2 Segment Assets
 -  Within India 150,370.32  138,463.34
 -   Outside India * 38,516.74  23,650.17

 Total Assets 188,887.06  162,113.51

3 Segment Liability
 -   Within India 100,665.68  98,778.15
 - Outside India * 21,141.29  242.02

 Total Liability 121,806.97  99,020.17

₹ in Lacs

* Includes an amount of Rs. 51256.87 lacs (Segment Revenue), Rs. 34,290.79 lacs (Segment Assets) and Rs. 19,717.89 lacs (Segment liabilities) 
for UAE Branch for the year ended/as at 31st March 2016 which has been audited by branch auditor. 

41 Related Party Disclosure   
 As per Accounting Standard (AS)-18 “Related Party Disclosures”, the Company’s related parties and transactions are disclosed below: 

a. List of related parties & relationships, where control exists:
 Holding Company
BTL Holding Company Limited
(Formerly known as BTL Investments & Securities Ltd.) (SRS Holdings India Ltd. merged with BTL Investments & Securities Limited 
w.e.f. 18.07.2013)

 Subsidiary Company
SRS E Retail Ltd. (From 03.12.2014 to 06.02.2015)
SRS Entertainement India Ltd.(Formley known as SRS Entertainment Ltd.) (From 03.12.2014 to 06.02.2015 and w.e.f 02.01.2016)

 Fellow Subsidiary Company
SRS Real Infrastructure Ltd. (From 18.07.2013)
 SRS Healthcare & Research Centre Limited

 Step Down Subsidiary Company
SRS Real Estate Ltd. (From 18.07.2013)
SRS Retreat Services Ltd. (From 18.07.2013)

b. Related parties & relationships with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

 i Key Management Personnel (KMP)
  Dr. Anil Jindal  - Chairman
  Mr. Sunil Jindal  - Managing Director
  Mr. Raju Bansal - Whole Time Director
  Mr. Vinod Kumar  - Whole Time Director
  Mr. Naresh Goyal  - Whole Time Director (From 1.10.2014 to 31.01.2015)
  Mr. Bhagwan Das Gupta  - Chief Financial Officer
  Dr. (Ms.) Navneet Kwatra   - COO & Company Secretary

 ii Enterprises owned or signi�cantly in�uenced by KMP and/or their Relatives
  SRS Finance Ltd.
  BTL Holding Company Limited
  (Formerly known as BTL Investments & Securities Ltd.) (SRS Holdings India Ltd. merged with BTL Investments & Securities
  Limited w.e.f. 18.07.2013)
  SRS Real Infrastructure Ltd.
  SRS Real Estate Ltd.
  SRS Global Securities Ltd.
  SRS Shining Ornaments Limited (Formerly known as Jai Shiv Jewellers & Manufacturers Ltd)
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41 Related Party Disclosure   
 As per Accounting Standard (AS)-18 “Related Party Disclosures”, the Company’s related parties and transactions are disclosed below: 

a. List of related parties & relationships, where control exists:
 Holding Company
BTL Holding Company Limited
(Formerly known as BTL Investments & Securities Ltd.) (SRS Holdings India Ltd. merged with BTL Investments & Securities Limited 
w.e.f. 18.07.2013)

 Subsidiary Company
SRS E Retail Ltd. (From 03.12.2014 to 06.02.2015)
SRS Entertainement India Ltd.(Formley known as SRS Entertainment Ltd.) (From 03.12.2014 to 06.02.2015 and w.e.f 02.01.2016)

 Fellow Subsidiary Company
SRS Real Infrastructure Ltd. (From 18.07.2013)
 SRS Healthcare & Research Centre Limited

 Step Down Subsidiary Company
SRS Real Estate Ltd. (From 18.07.2013)
SRS Retreat Services Ltd. (From 18.07.2013)

b. Related parties & relationships with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

 i Key Management Personnel (KMP)
  Dr. Anil Jindal  - Chairman
  Mr. Sunil Jindal  - Managing Director
  Mr. Raju Bansal - Whole Time Director
  Mr. Vinod Kumar  - Whole Time Director
  Mr. Naresh Goyal  - Whole Time Director (From 1.10.2014 to 31.01.2015)
  Mr. Bhagwan Das Gupta  - Chief Financial Officer
  Dr. (Ms.) Navneet Kwatra   - COO & Company Secretary

 ii Enterprises owned or signi�cantly in�uenced by KMP and/or their Relatives
  SRS Finance Ltd.
  BTL Holding Company Limited
  (Formerly known as BTL Investments & Securities Ltd.) (SRS Holdings India Ltd. merged with BTL Investments & Securities
  Limited w.e.f. 18.07.2013)
  SRS Real Infrastructure Ltd.
  SRS Real Estate Ltd.
  SRS Global Securities Ltd.
  SRS Shining Ornaments Limited (Formerly known as Jai Shiv Jewellers & Manufacturers Ltd)
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c. Transactions with related Parties:

1 SRS Finance Ltd.- Holding Co. Rent Received Income 12.00 12.00
 SRS Finance Ltd.-
 SRS Entertainment India Ltd. Loan Received Liability 1,166.92  -
 (Formerly known as Loan Disposed off Liability  700.74  -
 SRS Entertainment Limited)* Interest Paid Expense  38.13  -

2 SRS Real Infrastructure Ltd.- Holding Co. Reimbursement of Expenses (net) Expense  0.09  4.86
  Purchase of Building Material Expense  0.18  19.42
  (Repair & Maintenance Expenses)
  Sale of Goods Income  -  0.57
  CAM Charges Paid Expense  60.71  59.61
  Electricity Charges Paid Expense  34.67  37.89
 SRS Real Infrastructure Ltd.- Electricity and CAM Charges Expense  4.55  -
 SRS Entertainment India Ltd. 
 (Formerly known as SRS Entertainment
 Limited) *

3 SRS Real Estate Ltd. Reimbursement of Expenses (Net)  Expense  4.91  15.51

4 BTL Holding Company Limited  Reimbursement of expenses  Expense  0.18  13.41
  Rent Received  Income  12.00  12.00

5 SRS Global Securities Ltd. Reimbursement of expenses Expense  -  0.20

6 SRS Bright Retail Ltd. Advance Given Assets  -  56.19
 (Formerly known as SRS E-Retail Ltd.) Interest Received Income  -  0.92
  Investment in Equity Share made
  and disposed off during the year Assets  -  5.00
  Reimbursement of Expenses Expense  -  8.15
  Rent Received  Income  -  0.47
  Sale of Fixed Assets Assets  -  10.38
  Sale of goods Income  -  19.59

7 SRS Entertainment India Ltd. Advance given  Assets  -  156.00
 (Formerly known as Interest  Income  -  1.46
 SRS Entertainment Limited) Investment in Equity Share made Assets  -  5.00
  and disposed off during the year 
  Reimbursement of Expenses Expense  -  1.35 

8 SRS Retreat Services Ltd. Reimbursement of expenses Expense 0.55  0.84

9 SRS Shining Ornaments Limited Job Work Charges Expense  47.74  11.80
 (Formerly known as Jai Shiv Jewellers
 & Manufacturers Ltd) 

10 Dr. Anil Jindal Director’s Remuneration Expense  89.63  179.58

11 Mr. Sunil Jindal Director’s Remuneration Expense  48.00  42.00

12 Mr. Raju Bansal Director’s Remuneration Expense  29.86  27.16

13 Mr. Vinod Kumar Gupta Director’s Remuneration Expense  29.86  29.86

14 Mr. Naresh Goyal Director’s Remuneration Expense  -  2.81

15 Mr. Bhagwan Das Gupta Remuneration Expense  17.09  16.80

16 Dr. (Ms.) Navneet Kwatra Remuneration  Expense  17.37  17.07

S.  Name of the Party Nature of Transaction Nature
 For the year ended

No.    31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

₹ in Lacs
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e. O� balance sheet items with related parties :

1 BTL Holding Company Limited Corporate Guarantee Received Off Balance 83,500.00 83,500.00

2 SRS Retreat Services Ltd. Corporate Guarantee Received Sheet items  83,500.00 83,500.00

S.  Name of the Party Nature of Transaction Nature
 For the year ended

No.    31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

d. Closing balance with related parties :

1 SRS Finance Ltd.- Holding Co. Non Trade Receivable Assets  1.05 -

2 SRS Real Infrastructure Ltd.- Holding Co. Non Trade Payable Liability  38.19 36.49
 SRS Real Infrastructure Ltd.- SRS Non Trade Payable Liability  4.26  -
 Entertainment India Ltd. (Formerly
 known as SRS Entertainment Ltd.) 

3 SRS Real Estate Ltd. Advances recoverable Assets  -  7.70

4 BTL Holding Company Limited  Non Trade Payable Liability  0.18  -

5 SRS Shining Ornaments Limited Advance to suppliers Assets  6.74  -
 (Formerly known as Jai Shiv Jewellers &
 Manufacturers Ltd) 

6 Dr. Anil Jindal Amount Payable Liability  4.51  0.23

7 Mr. Sunil Jindal Amount Payable Liability  3.22  2.93

8 Mr. Raju Bansal Amount Payable Liability  1.99  2.01

9 Mr. Vinod Kumar Gupta Amount Payable Liability  1.88  1.87

10 Mr. Bhagwan Das Gupta Amount Payable Liability  1.06  1.33

11 Dr. (Ms.) Navneet Kwatra Amount Payable Liability  1.25  1.35v

S.  Name of the Party Nature of Transaction Nature
 For the year ended

No.    31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

*These figures have been taken from the Audited Financial Statements of SRS Entertainment India Ltd. (Formerly known as SRS Entertainment Ltd.) 
for the financial year 2015-16 ,however, SRS Entertainment India Ltd. (Formerly known as SRS Entertainment Ltd.) has become company's subsidiary 
with effect from 1.1.2016

42 In accordance with Accounting Standard "AS-19 on Leases" the following disclosures in respect of operating leases is made as
 under:

 A. Assets taken on operating lease:
 a) The Company has taken certain shops/offices/other Fixed Assets on non-cancellable operating lease. Minimum lease
  payments of ₹ 3770.4 lacs (PY ₹ 3433.09 lacs) are charged to Statement of Profit & Loss.

 b) Total contingent rents (Calculated on Revenue Sharing Basis) recognized as expense in the statement of profit and loss
  for the year is ₹ 263.69 lacs (PY ₹ 272.12 lacs).

 c) Future commitments in respect of minimum lease payments payable in respect of aforesaid lease entered by the
  Company are as follows:

 d) Sub-lease payments received (on accrual basis) of ₹ 132 lacs (PY ₹ 137.62 lacs) are recognized in the Statement of
  Profit & Loss.

 e) The total of future minimum sub-lease payments expected to be received under non-cancellable sub-leases at the Balance
  Sheet date are ₹ 261.58 lacs (PY ₹ 315.34 lacs).

Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

a. Not later than one year  4,203.74  3,122.89

b. Later than one year and not later than five years  16,812.96  9,974.84

c. Later than five years 10,931.86  5,374.82

₹ in Lacs

₹ in Lacs
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Particulars  

  

As at

31-Mar-1531-Mar-16

a. Not later than one year 111.38  109.88

b. Later than one year and not later than five years 232.97  242.06

c. Later than five years 16.39  50.89

₹ in Lacs

 B. Assets given on operating lease:

 a) Future minimum lease payments receivable by the Company in respect of non-cancellable operating lease for shops /
  kiosks entered by the Company are as follows:

 b) Total contingent rents (Calculated on Revenue Sharing Basis) recognized as income in the statement of profit and loss for
  the year is ₹ 36.06 lacs (PY ₹ 22.06 lacs).

43 Salient features of the �nancial statements of subsidiaries :
 (pursuant to first proviso of sub-section (3) of Section 129 of Companies Act, 2013, read with general instructions for the 
preperation of consolidated financial statements)

44 In the opinion of the management, the value on realization of current assets, loans & advances in the ordinary course of business 
would not be less than the amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet and provisions for all known liabilities have been 
made.

45 In the opinion of the management, all transactions with the associated enterprises are made on basis of arm length and/ or at 
comparative/ benefit assessment basis. The report of accountant u/s 92E (Transfer Pricing) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and related 
records will be submitted along with Income Tax Return. The Company does not expect any material liability on this account in view 
of fair assessment of mark ups, Management charges and/ other costs.

46 Figures of previous year have been regrouped and/ or rearranged wherever necessary to make them comparable with those of the 
current year.

47 All amounts in the financial statements are rounded off to the nearest Rupee in lacs, except as otherwise stated.

48 Note 1 to 47 are annexed to and form an integral part of the Balance Sheet as at 31a March 2016 and Statement of Profit & Loss for 
the year ended as on that date.

Name of Entity

Net Assets =
(Total assets minus total liabilities)

As % of
consolidated

net assets
Amount

(` in lacs)
As % of

consolidated
net assets

Amount
(` in lacs)

Share in Pro�t or Losses

Parent
SRS Limited 92.88%  62,302.24 39.93%  1,586.66
Subsidiary
SRS Worldwide(FZC) (Foreign) 4.18%  2,802.55 61.42%  2,440.76
SRS Entertainment India Ltd. (Formerly 2.94%  1,975.30 -1.36%  -53.84
known as - SRS Entertainment Limited) 

₹ in Lacs

For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co.   For Rakesh Raj & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
(Chartered Accountants)                        (Chartered Accountants) 
Firm Regn. No. 000756N                           Firm Regn. No. 005145N
   (Sunil Jindal) (Raju Bansal)
   Managing  Director Whole-Time Director
   DIN-00013791 DIN-00007344

(Yogesh K. Gupta)         (Ruchi Jain)         (Navneet Kwatra)            (Bhagwan Dass)
Partner              Partner      COO & Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
M. No. 093214    M. No. 099920   M. No. 16672            

Place: Faridabad 
Date:  08th June 2016
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Folio No. / DP ID/ Client ID:

    

Number of Shares held:     

Name and Address of the Member:

I hereby record my presence at the 16th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Friday, 30th September, 2016 at 3:00 P.M at “SRS 
Banquet”,  Near SRS Multiplex, City Centre, Sector-12, Faridabad, NCR Delhi - 121007

____________________

            Signature of Member/Proxy

Note:

1. Please fill the Attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall. Joint member may obtain additional Attendance Slip 
at the venue of the meeting.

2. Soft copy of the Annual Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2016 and Notice of the AGM along with Attendance Slip and proxy 
form is being sent to all members whose e-mail address is registered with the Company/Depository Participant. Members receiving soft 
copy and attending the AGM can print copy of this Attendance Slip.

3. Physical copy of the Annual Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2016 and Notice of the AGM along with Attendance Slip and 
proxy form is sent in the permitted mode to all members.

ATTENDANCE SLIP

SRS LIMITED

Regd. Office: SRS Tower, 305 & 307, 3rd Floor, Near Metro Station Mewla Maharajpur, 
G.T. Road, Faridabad, NCR Delhi - 121003

T: 0129-4323100, F: 0129-4323195
W: www.srsparivar.com,  E: complianceofficer@srsparivar.com   

CIN: L74999HR2000PLC040183





Name of the Member(s):__________________________________________________________________________________

Registered address:_____________________________________________________________________________________

E-mail ID:______________________________________________ Folio No.(DP ID and Client ID:________________________

I/We being the Member(s), holding _________________shares of SRS LIMITED hereby appoint

1. Name_____________________________________________  E-Mail ID:_______________________________________

 Address:__________________________________________________________________________________________

 __________________________________________________ Signature:_____________________, or failing him/ her

2. Name______________________________________________ E-Mail ID:_______________________________________

 Address:__________________________________________________________________________________________

 __________________________________________________  Signature: _____________________, or failing him/ her

3. Name_____________________________________________  E-Mail ID:_______________________________________

 Address:__________________________________________________________________________________________

 __________________________________________________ Signature:_____________________, or failing him/ her

whose signature (s) are appended below as my/our Proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 16th Annual 
General Meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 30th September, 2016 at 3:00 P.M at “SRS Banquet”, Near SRS Multiplex, City Centre, 
Sector-12, Faridabad, NCR Delhi-121003 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions and in such manner as are indicated 
below:

Signed this ………………….day of……………2016

       ______________________
     Signature of Shareholder

_____________________ ________________________ _______________________

Signature of first proxy holder      Signature of second proxy holder Signature of third proxy holder

PROXY FORM
(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

SRS LIMITED

Regd. Office: SRS Tower, 305 & 307, 3rd Floor, Near Metro Station Mewla Maharajpur, 
G.T. Road, Faridabad, NCR Delhi - 121003

T: 0129-4323100, F: 0129-4323195
W: www.srsparivar.com,  E: complianceofficer@srsparivar.com   

CIN: L74999HR2000PLC040183

 S. No.  Resolutions For Against

 1.  Adoption of Annual Audited Financial Statement, Reports of the Board of Directors and
   Auditors for the financial year ended 31st March, 2016
 2.  Re-appointment of Sh. Raju Bansal, who retires by rotation
 3.  Appointment of M/s. SVP & Associates, Chartered Accountants and M/s. Oswal Sunil & Co., 
   Chartered Accountants as Joint Statutory Auditor to fill the casual vacancy caused by the
   resignation of M/s. S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co. and M/s. Rakesh Raj & Associates
   Chartered Accountants 
 4.  Appointment of Sh. Praveen Kumar Kapoor as a Director, liable to retire by rotation
 5.  Appointment of Sh. Vaibhav Gupta as an Independent Director
 6.  Re-classification of Status of Promoter(s) as Non-Promoter(s)

Affix here

One Rupee

Revenue

Stamp



Note:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 
48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. 

2. A Proxy need not be a member of the Company. 

3. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of Companies Act, 2013, a person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty 
and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding 
more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person 
shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. 

4. This is only optional. Please put ‘Tick’ in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the Box. If you leave the ‘For’ or 
‘Against’ column blank against any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate. 

5. Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he so wishes. 

6. In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the joint holders should be stated.







If undelivered, please return to:
SRS LIMITED

Regd. Office: SRS Tower, 305 & 307, 3rd Floor, Near Metro Station Mewla Maharajpur, 
G.T. Road, Faridabad, NCR Delhi - 121003

T: 0129-4323100, F: 0129-4323195
W: www.srsparivar.com,  E: complianceofficer@srsparivar.com   

CIN: L74999HR2000PLC040183


